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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make
no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Global
Strategic Group Limited (the “Company” and its subsidiaries,
collectively referred to as the “Group”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Financial Highlights

As at
As at 30 September s Decezm(;eé
rARZtH e e
2022 2021 2020 2019 +ZA
ZECC _TC-F _T_EE “E-NE =+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FET TET TET
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(&) @z (B&7) EE=37) (BE7)
Results £
- Revenue Wi 136,241 71,486 42,734 35,925 108,716
- Profit/(Loss) —iafl/ (51#8) 10,681 (22,767) (274,163 (63,662) (88,431)
- Loss per share -SRER
Basic (in HK cents) AR (B (3.40) (15.20) (110.89) (40.71) (98.92)
Diluted (in HK cents) #38 (B) (3.40) (15.20) (110.89) (42.65) (98.92)
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(&5 (7)) (&5
Financial Position BERR
- Non-current assets -ERHEE 214,968 188,914 184,615 436,512 488,312
- Current assets -RBEE 24,889 56,329 41,053 58,809 65,605
- Current liabilities =L 75,911 99,598 118,415 110,412 61,903
- Non-current liabilties -ERBaE 81,609 73,013 73,506 107,126 134,599
- Equity -3 82,337 72,632 33,747 277783 357,415
Financial Ratios F L ®
- Current assets/Current liabilities -RBEE/ TBHEE 0.3 0.6 0.3 05 1.1
- Assets/Equity ~BE/ R 2.9 3.4 6.7 18 15
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ITHRAERERS
CEQ’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”), | am hereby
pleased to present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as, the “Group”) for the year ended
30 September 2022 for your review.

OVERVIEW

The Group’s revenue was approximately HK$136.2 million during the
year, of which the natural gas business recorded a segment revenue
of approximately HK$125 million, accounting for approximately 91%
of the Group’s revenue. The Group recorded a profit of approximately
HK$11 million for the year (2021: loss HK$23 million). The results
turned from loss into profit for the year ended 30 September 2022
was mainly attributable to significant reversal of impairment losses
on property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and right-of use
assets of HK$37.8 million in aggregate, as a result of the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit of Yichang Biaodian Natural Gas
Utilisation Co. Ltd.* (EEMEZHXARAMBARAE) (“Yichang
Biaodian”) being higher than its carrying amount.

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

At the time of writing, with the significant relaxation of domestic
epidemic prevention policies by the China government, the Company
believed that with the implementation of relevant normalization
measures, the domestic economy is expected to recover in 2023,
and the outlook is relatively optimistic.

Even though the external economic environment continues to be
weak, since the target customers for the Group’s key business
of natural gas supply are mainly domestic business, we remain
optimistic about the prospects of the natural gas business. In
the natural gas supply business, the Group holds the thirty-year
exclusive right to supply natural gas in Yichang, Hubei which will
be expired up to 2041 to 2044. With this advantage, the number
of potential customers has increased correspondingly with the
continuous expansion of the industrial parks.

HEURE:
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ITRAERERS
CEQ’s Statement

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continuea)

Looking forward, with the significant relaxation of domestic epidemic
prevention policies, the management believes that the economy will
recover in an orderly manner in the coming year, which is expected
to have a positive impact on the Group’s two core businesses.

Natural gas operations

Industrial customers will face the supply demand brought about by
the domestic economic recovery, which will lead to an increase in
gas consumption, and the revenue of this segment will continue to
grow.

Sales and leasing business

The closure measures during the epidemic in recent years have
delayed the progress of some leasing projects. It is believed that
after the relaxation of the prevention and control policies, customers
of various projects will catch up with the progress of the projects and
drive the income of the leasing business to increase.

Management will be more cautious and conservative in seeking new
potential merger and acquisition, business integration and expansion
in order to sustain the growth and profitability of the Group.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Lastly, on behalf of the Board of the Company, | hereby wish to
express my gratitude for the hard work contributed by all staff and
the Directors, as well as the support for the Company from all our
customers, creditors, business partners and the shareholders of the
Company. We will adhere to a proven management strategy, grasp
market trends and opportunities, and endeavor to bring greater value
to our shareholders and make new contributions to the community.

Wang Wenzhou
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 December 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$136,241,000 for
the year ended 30 September 2022 (“YE2022”) as compared with
approximately HK$71,486,000 for the year ended 30 September
2021 (“YE2021"), gross profit of approximately HK$20,287,000
for YE2022 against approximately HK$20,263,000 for YE2021
and net profit of approximately HK$10,681,000 for YE2022 as
compared to net loss of approximately HK$22,767,000 for YE2021.
The substantial increase in net profit is mainly attributable to
the significant reversal of impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use assets of
HK$37,755,000 in aggregate, as a result of the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit of Yichang Biaodian Natural Gas
Utilisation Co. Ltd.* (EEMEZEHXARAMBARAE) (“Yichang
Biaodian”) being higher than its carrying amount.

An analysis of the performance of the Group including the revenue
and results of natural gas operations, sales and leasing business
and independent financial advisory before allocation of the corporate
overheads is set out in note 10 “Segment Information” to the
consolidated financial statements.

For YE2022 the Group generated revenue from sales of natural gas
and pipeline installation services of approximately HK$120,162,000
and HK$4,437,000, respectively, compared to approximately
HK$57,558,000 and HK$3,276,000 for YE2021. The revenue
generated from sales and leasing business and independent
financial advisory business was in aggregate of HK$11,622,000
and HK$20,000 for YE2022 respectively as compared to YE2021,
it recorded HK$10,512,000 and HK$140,000, in aggregate,
respectively.

The total operating expenses, including selling and distribution costs,
general and administrative expenses, for YE2022 was approximately
HK$41,691,000 as compared to approximately HK$40,533,000 for
the YE2021, representing an increase of 3% which was causing to
increase in exchange losses due to depreciation of RMB over HKD
balances resulting from the US Federal Reserve interest rate hikes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW (continuea)

Finance costs of the Group were approximately HK$2,603,000
for YE2022 (YE2021: approximately HK$4,204,000), which mainly
consisted of interest on bank borrowings and non-convertible bonds.

The decrease was mainly due to no imputed interest on loans from

non-controlling shareholders and the decrease in interest on non-

convertible bonds when the relevant balances were repaid.

UPDATE ON NATURAL GAS BUSINESS

The Group acquired Yichang Biaodian, which is engaged in natural

gas supply operation, in 2016. The performance of Yichang Biaodian

significantly improved from the following reasons:

(i)

With the planning under the guiding ideology of the “14th
Five-Year Plan” in 2021, the central government vigorously
promotes the utilization of clean resources, and pipeline
natural gas has become the best choice for new enterprises
to use as heating energy; since 2017, Yaojiagang Chemical
Industry Park has been successively rated as key supporting
parks of circular transformation by the National Development
and Reform Commission and the Ministry of Finance;
has been rated as pilot parks for third-party governance
of environmental pollution by the National Development
and Reform Commission and the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment; the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology’s green industrial parks and China’s smart
chemical park pilot demonstration units. Yaojiagang Chemical
Industry Park has been promoting the advantages of green
industrial parks for many years, and the effect of attracting
investment is remarkable, driving the demand for industrial
pipeline natural gas in the region; and

B R E 5018 )
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Management Discussion and Analysis

UPDATE ON NATURAL GAS BUSINESS (continued)

(if) In recent years, many large chemical companies have settled
in the park to establish production bases. As the companies
have formulated and adapted to the operating model under
the new crown epidemic, the overall production capacity of
new and old customers has been efficiently recovered and
achieved ideal growth.

By considering the reasons as aforesaid, the management of the
Group performed impairment testing in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets” (“HKAS 36”) on the
assets that belong to Yichang Biaodian.

The key assumptions used in the value in use (“VIU”) calculation
for impairment assessment based on a valuation prepared by an
independent valuer are those regarding the expected average
revenue growth rate, expected average net profit margin and
discount rate for the next five years:

- Expected average revenue growth rate and expected
average profit margin for the next five years were based on
past practices and management’s expectations on market
development; and

- Discount rate was estimated using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the cash generating unit (“CGU”), i.e
Yichang Biaodian.

The key assumptions used in the impairment assessment in 2022
changed from that of 2021:

- In 2022, the expected revenue growth rate estimated for
the next five years was 8%. In 2021, the expected revenue
growth rate estimated for the next five years was 13%; and
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Management Discussion and Analysis

UPDATE ON NATURAL GAS BUSINESS (continued)

- In 2022, the expected average positive net profit margin
estimated for the next five years was 7%. In 2021, the
expected average positive net profit margin estimated for the
next five years was 2%.

The valuation method of discounted cash flow was adopted for the
calculation of the VIU of the CGU. In accordance with HKAS 36,
the recoverable amount should be the higher of (i) the fair value
less costs of disposal; or (ii) the VIU. After assessing both the VIU
and the fair value, the valuation opted for the VIU because it was
the higher between the two figures. VIU is based on the estimated
future cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate of 13.1% (2021:
13.23%) that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU. There is no change to
the valuation method adopted in 2021 and 2022.

Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount of Yichang
Biaodian was approximately HK$179,788,000 and reversal of
impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and right-of-use assets of approximately HK$21,012,000,
HK$16,565,000 and the HK$178,000 respectively in 2022.

On 16 March 2022, Yichang Biaodian, a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the Joint Venture Agreement with the Zhijiang Natural
Gas Co., Ltd.* (B IR AR B R EE A B (“Joint Venture Partner”)
under which the parties agreed to establish the Zhijiang Yuanheng
Natural Gas Utilization Co., Ltd.* (BUIFRIEXRARFIAER
‘A7) (“Joint Venture Company”) as a production and operation
platform to consolidate resources and jointly develop the natural gas
comprehensive utilization market in Zhijiang Yaojiagang Chemical
Industry Park, the PRC.

The Joint Venture Company was established on 18 March 2022.
For the details of the establishment of Joint Venture Company and
related Joint Venture Agreement, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 16 and 17 March 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s operations are being financed by internally generated
cashflow, bank borrowings and external financing. The Group
follows a policy of prudence in managing its working capital. The
management will continue to closely monitor the financial position of
the Group to maintain its financial capacity.

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
and its related parties

As at 30 September 2022, the amounts due to #ICIZH X AR H
fR’A& (Hubei Biaodian Natural Gas Co., Ltd*) (“Hubei Biaodian”)
and its subsidiary, Mr. Xiong Songgan (“Mr. Xiong”) and his
controlled entities, and B & #iAAESE/R A PR 2 8] (Yichang Dibogang
Energy Co., Ltd.*) (“Yichang Dibogang”) were approximately
HK$16,064,000, HK$11,280,000 and nil respectively, when
comparing approximately HK$27,433,000, HK$16,925,000 and
HK$65,000 at 30 September 2021 respectively. Hubei Biaodian
owns 20.92% of Yichang Biaodian and Mr. Xiong is the controlling
shareholder of Hubei Biaodian. Yichang Dibogang is the 24.49%
non-controlling shareholder of Yichang Biaodian.

The interest-free advance made by the above non-controlling
shareholders of the Group during the year was used for Yichang
Biaodian’s capital expenditure purpose. All the balances were
denominated in Renminbi.

Bank and other borrowings

The bank borrowings assigned RMB19,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$21,873,000) carry an interest at a fixed rate, with an effective
interest rate of 5% to 12.24% per annum. The bank borrowings are
pledged with natural gas supply exclusive rights of Yichang Biaodian
and a property owned by Mr. Xiong. The bank borrowings are also
jointly guaranteed by Mr. Xiong and the non-controlling shareholders
of Yichang Biaodian.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (continuead)

Bank and other borrowings (Continued)
As at 30 September 2022,

(@) the Group’s aggregate amount of bank and cash balances
was approximately HK$4,998,000 (as at 30 September 2021:
approximately HK$23,411,000).

(b) the Group’s total borrowings comprised (i) amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary and its related
parties; (i) bank borrowings; (i) due to directors; (iv) non-
convertible bonds; (v) lease liabilities; and (vi) due to related
parties totalling approximately HK$81,496,000 (as at 30
September 2021: HK$95,735,000).

(c) the Group’s total gearing ratio was approximately 93% (as at
30 September 2021: 99%). The gearing ratio was calculated
as the Group’s borrowings net of cash available divided by
total equity of the Group.

(d) the current ratio of the Group was approximately 0.33 (as at
30 September 2021: 0.57). The management will continue to
closely monitor the financial position of the Group to maintain
its financial capacity.

Rights Issue

On 20 November 2020, the Company announced a proposed rights
issue (the “Rights Issue”) on the basis of four rights shares for every
one adjusted share held on the record date at the subscription price
of HK$0.16 per rights share, to raise approximately HK$58,350,000
by issuing 364,688,000 rights shares to the qualifying shareholders.
Upon the Rights Issue was approved by shareholders’ resolution
passed at an extraordinary general meeting on 21 April 2021
and completion of the Rights Issue on 31 August 2021. The
gross proceeds raised from the Rights Issue were approximately
HK$58,350,000 and the net proceeds from the Rights Issue after
deducting the expenses were approximately HK$56,259,000.
The net price per Rights Share was approximately HK$0.15. The
company has fully utilised the net proceed as at 31 March 2022 in
accordance with the said intention.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE (continuea)

Rights Issue (Continued)

The breakdown of the Company’s proposed use of the Rights Issue
Proceeds as disclosed in the Prospectus and its actual use of the
Rights Issue Proceeds from the date of completion of the Rights
Issue to 30 September 2022 were as follows:

MBET MBEERKRERERE

(&
iR (&
FRABNBRAREZ HIRFTSURRZZA

MRHEHFEMEEBHREHNEBREE S
“THFENARB=THLEZERAREIWMT

Actual use Actual use

Balance of the of the
of the  Rights Issue  Rights Issue Balance of
unutilised Proceeds Proceeds the unutilised

Rights Issue during the during the  Rights Issue

Proceeds six months six months Proceeds

Net Rights

as at ended ended as at

Issue 30 September 31 March 30 September 30 September

Proceeds

2021 2022 2022 2022
BE BE
i —E-C —ECCE i

—_¥-_-% Z=ZHA=+-H RB=+H —E-C
hB=+8H EXEA#ER EAEAHER AB=+EW
RIRFR1S XBEMHRRK FrigsRIEH Frig s IEH XBAMHRR

Intended use B MIERE  RRBLER BERAR BERBE FRRELR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TAT TAT TET TAET

Legal and professional fee EREREEE 3,000 1,684 1,684 - -
Staff cost BTIMA 449
Rental He 27
Other operating expenses A& ERS 1,279

General working capital —hEEES 5,259 1,755 1,755 - -
Finance cost HME 929
Settlement of bonds BEES 20,918

Redemption of outstanding bonds BB 1T EIMES 48,000 21,847 21,847 - -

56,259 25,286 25,286 - -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

On 16 March 2022, Yichang Biaodian, a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a joint venture agreement with Joint Venture Partner
under which the parties agreed to establish a joint venture company
as a production and operation platform to consolidate resources and
jointly develop the natural gas comprehensive utilization market in
Zhijiang Yaojiagang Chemical Industry Park, the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”).

Further details of the abovementioned joint venture are disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 16 and 17 March 2022.

LW Insurance Brokers Limited

On 26 August 2022, the Company entered into a share transfer
agreement with an independent third party to dispose its 100%
equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary for a cash consideration
of HK$30,000. The disposal was completed on 26 August 2022.

LW Manin Immigration Consultancy Limited
On 15 September 2022, the Company entered into a share transfer
agreement with an independent third party to dispose its 60% equity

interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary for a cash consideration of
HK$10,000. The disposal was completed on 15 September 2022,

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

BARBRELEHBAT BE
ATREEEE

735_7__$ = AN =R /NI [ V=N
ERHE-NEEBHITLUGEGIFW

FOB TN AREBERIGERSIERSE
EREETG UEGERKHERBMEHRE

ARHEME (THE) FOIRBLETIEZX
ARG ETE-

BRI EEPENE—THEBENARTH
BAE_—F=ZH+HE+EHZAE
R

MERBELERAHE

RIEZZENBZ+NBH AAFHE—%
BUFE=Fs]IRMEERZ UBER
—BEEWBAB100%KRE  BReRES
30,0008 L ZHEEER _E -\ A
ZHRHE/M

FNEREFBRREMABRAE

RIEZZHFAA+HB  AREEH—%E
UE=HARMEER S UEE—HE2
BB AT60%M#  IREREA10,0007%8
TLeRHEEERZZ"FNA+AEHR
AX o

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F#R



BIEESwm~R O

Management Discussion and Analysis

LITIGATION

Yichang Biaodian Natural Gas Utilisation Co., Ltd

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Yichang Biaodian
entered into disputes with one of its suppliers regarding the
quality of work performed by such supplier. Legal proceedings
were initiated by the supplier (the “Yichang Plaintiff 1”) and
on 14 December 2018, pursuant to the application from the
Yichang Plaintiff 1, the Court in Yichang granted an order to
preserve the bank deposits of Yichang Biaodian amounted
to approximately RMB478,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$544,000).

On 13 March 2019, the Court issued civil mediation
agreement which set out that the Yichang Plaintiff 1 and
Yichang Biaodian agreed with the repayment terms in relation
to the aforesaid amount. Yichang Biaodian is required to
repay RMB200,000 on or before 30 April 2019 and an order
could be applied to unfreeze the bank accounts; and Yichang
Biaodian was required to settle RMB2,000,000 on or before
30 September 2019 and the remaining outstanding amount
on or before 30 March 2020. The Yichang Plaintiff 1 has the
rights to apply for a court order to enforce Yichang Biaodian
to settle all its debts if it fails to repay RMB2,200,000 to the
Yichang Plaintiff 1 on or before 30 September 2019. Amount
of RMB8,787,000 (equivalent to HK$10,006,000) are fully
provided as liabilities of the Group at 31 December 2018.
The restricted bank balance was released on 11 April 2019
upon agreement between the Yichang Plaintiff 1 and Yichang
Biaodian.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LITIGATION (Continued)

Yichang Biaodian Natural Gas Utilisation Co., Ltd (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

On 20 November 2019, the Yichang Plaintiff 1 has exercised
its rights to apply for a court order to enforce Yichang
Biaodian for settlement of amount overdue and on 13 May
2022, RMB1,000,000 had been settled. On 19 May 2022, the
Yichang Plaintiff 1 and Yichang Biaodian signed a mediation
agreement which set out that the outstanding balance would
be repaid in 25 monthly installments of RMB300,000 from
June 2022 to July 2024, and it would be guaranteed by Mr.
Xiong Songgan, a key management personnel of Yichang
Biaodian. If Yichang Biaodian fail to repay as scheduled,
default interest would be charged at 12% per annum on the
outstanding balance owed to the Yichang Plaintiff 1 since 1
May 2019. The directors of the Company considered that
as the full amount of the remaining debts of RMB6,387,000
(equivalent to HK$7,353,000) claimed by Yichang Plaintiff 1
are fully provided as liability of the Group as at 30 September
2022, no further liability will be incurred.

During the year ended 30 September 2019, there was
a dispute between Yichang Biaodian and one of its
suppliers regarding the settlement of outstanding amounts
for construction work performed by the supplier. Legal
proceedings were initiated by the supplier (the “Yichang
Plaintiff 2”). The Court of Sanxia Ba District denied the
application of Yichang Plaintiff 2 for the settlement amount.
Yichang Plaintiff 2 appealed to Intermediate People’s Court
of Yichang City. On 29 October 2020, the Court issued civil
ruling paper which set out the repayment of RMB1,036,000
(equivalent to HK$1,261,000) from Yichang Biaodian to
Yichang Plaintiff 2 within 15 days of the issuance of the civil
ruling paper. Yichang Biaodian is required to pay double of
the interest expenses for late payment (the “Default Interest”).
Yichang Plaintiff 2 has the rights to apply for a court order
to enforce Yichang Biaodian to settle all its debts if it fails to
repay within 15 days of the issuance of the civil ruling paper.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LITIGATION (Continued)

Yichang Biaodian Natural Gas Utilisation Co., Ltd (Continueq)

(b)

(Continued)

On 7 January 2021, Yichang Plaintiff 2 has exercised its
rights to apply for a court order to enforce Yichang Biaodian
for settlement of the amount overdue. On 10 June 2021,
the Court issued a consumption restriction order, to restrict
Yichang Biaodian (including its legal representative, main
person in charge, directly responsible personnel affecting the
liability enforcement and the actual controller) and a senior
management personnel from certain specified consumption
activities. Yichang Biaodian was required to apply for
permission from the court before carrying out those restricted
consumption activities. For any acts violating the consumption
restriction order, the Court has the rights to issue penalty or
detention.

On 27 March 2022, the Yichang Plaintiff 2 and Yichang
Biaodian signed a mediation agreement which set out that
Yichang Biaodian agreed to repay the outstanding balance
together with court fee and the Default Interest incurred up to
28 February 2022, amounted to RMB1,082,000 in aggregate,
in two instalments of RMB541,000 each on or before 31
March 2022 and 15 July 2022 respectively. Yichang Plaintiff 2
agreed to assist in application for the release of consumption
restriction order upon receipt of first instalment. Yichang
Biaodian fully settled the balance during the year ended 30
September 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LITIGATION (Continued)
Global Billion Trading (Shenzhen) Limited

During the year ended 30 September 2020, EIKERESZ (Fil)
BIRAF (Global Billion Trading (Shenzhen) Limited*) (“Shenzhen
Global”) has been in dispute with a former director of the Group
regarding the ownership of the building located in the PRC. Legal
proceedings were initiated by the former director (the “Shenzhen
Plaintiff”).
Shenzhen Plaintiff, the Court in Shenzhen granted an order to
preserve the building of Shenzhen Global from being sold by the
Group during the period from 9 July 2020 to 8 July 2023. On 6 May
2021, the Court in Shenzhen concluded that the ownership of the
building belongs to the Group. On 24 May 2021, the former director
lodged an appeal against the decision made by the Court. On 16
December 2021, the Court in Shenzhen rejected the appeal from the
former director. On 14 June 2022, the Court in Shenzhen decided to
remove the preservation order on the building of Shenzhen Global.

On 8 July 2020, pursuant to the application from the

Up to the end of the reporting period, no further action was taken by
the former director after the rejection from the Court in Shenzhen.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group pledged (i) natural gas supply exclusive rights
amounted to approximately HK$80,976,000 for bank borrowings
of approximately HK$21,873,000; (ii) a property amounted
to approximately HK$1,949,000 (2021: HK$2,221,000) to an
independent third party for obtaining an advance of HK$115,000 as
at 30 September 2022.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 30 September 2022 (2021: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROSPECT

Looking forward, with the significant relaxation of domestic epidemic
prevention policies, the management believes that the economy will
recover in an orderly manner in the coming year, which is expected
to have a positive impact on the Group’s two core businesses.

Natural gas operations

Industrial customers will face the supply demand brought about by
the domestic economic recovery, which will lead to an increase in
gas consumption, and the revenue of this segment will continue to
grow.

Sales and leasing business

The closure measures during the epidemic in recent years have
delayed the progress of some leasing projects. It is believed that
after the relaxation of the prevention and control policies, customers
of various projects will catch up with the progress of the projects and
drive the income of the leasing business to increase.

Management will be more cautious and conservative in seeking new
potential merger and acquisition, business integration and expansion
in order to sustain the growth and profitability of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 25 November 2022, Senchou Environmental Technology
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (RERERE (£B) BRAF) (“Shanghai
Senchou”) has completed the acquisition of certain machinery with
price of RMB24,270,000 from an independent third party vendor
included in the contracts signed with the vendor on 29 March 2022
and 3 August 2022 as announced on respective dates. Deposits
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment of RMB7,289,000
(equivalent to HK$8,391,000) as at 30 September 2022 are utilised
on that date. Details of the acquisition of machinery are disclosed in
the Company’s announcements dated 29 March 2022 and 3 August
2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE
FLUCTUATIONS

The Group’s foreign currency exposure is limited as most of its
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 30 September 2022, the Group employed 58 staff members
(at 30 September 2021: 50 staff). Remuneration is determined
with reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications
and experience of the individual employee. Remuneration includes
monthly salaries, performance-linked bonuses, retirement benefits
schemes and other benefits such as medical scheme and share
option scheme. The Group’s remuneration policies and packages
are reviewed by management on regular basis. The Company has
established a Human Resources and Remuneration Committee. The
Directors’ emoluments are determined with reference to Directors’
duties, responsibilities and the operating performance of the Group.

* For reference purposes only, the Chinese names of the PRC entities
and terms have been translated into English in this report. In the
event of any discrepancies between the Chinese names of the PRC
entities and terms and their English translation, the Chinese version
shall prevail.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wang Wenzhou (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Wang Wenzhou (“Mr. Wang”), aged 50, has over 27 years of
experience in textile industry and in-depth knowledge in products
operation, import and export trading and supply management. He
also has practical experience in corporate operation management.
Prior to joining the Company, he was a general manager of Shanghai
An Lin Trading Limited* (/8 ZME 5B BR /A B]) and he also worked
as a general manager at Shanghai Lan Hao Clothing Limited* (_£7&
ERRIFERAA).

Mr. Wu Guoming

Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr. Wu”), aged 57, has been the executive
Director since 30 April 2018. He holds a degree in Business
Management from Wuhan University, a degree in Civil Engineering
from China University of Petroleum and a degree in Economic
Management from Shanghai Jiao Tong University. Mr. Wu was the
engineering manager and the deputy general manager at Shanghai
Guangda Construction Decoration Engineering Company* (_Ei&7
KEBFEEHHFITIZAT). Since 2001, Mr. Wu has been the general
manager and the chairman of Shanghai Guangda Basic Engineering
Co., Ltd (EBEAERIIEAERAT). Furthermore, Mr. Wu is
the director of China Civil Engineering Society (FRE AR Ti22
®)and a construction technology committee member of Chinese
Institution of Soil Mechanics and Geotechnical Engineering — China
Civil Engineering Society (FEI+ ATREE+ HERETTHE
8). Mr. Wu has vast experience in business management and
construction business development.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continuead)

Mr. Duan Fanfan

Mr. Duan Fanfan (“Mr. Duan”), aged 39, has been the executive
Director since 8 November 2019. He holds a bachelor degree in
International Business from Charles Sturt University and a master
degree in Professional Accounting from Deakin University. Mr. Duan
was General Manager in Victoria & South Australia of Domino’s Pizza
Enterprises in Australia. He was granted with various Leadership
Awards in the years from 2009 to 2013. He was Chief Executive
Officer of ATI International Trading Pty Ltd from 2014 to 2019,
specializing in the business development for bilateral import and
export trading between China and Australia. Since 2020, Mr. Duan
has served as the Chief Executive Officer of Wuhan Kai Rui Pu
Ltd* (BUEFRBESRMAERAR),
and is committed to promoting the development of smart health

Information Technology Co.,

management equipment. Mr. Duan has vast experience in retalil
hospitality services sector and international trading.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chen Long

Mr. Chen Long (“Mr. Chen”), aged 34, has over 8 years of experience
in business operation and corporate financial management. Before
joining the Company, Mr. Chen was the chief executive officer of
Fortune Joy International Acquisition (a company proposed to be
listed on the Nasdag with symbol XYGJU) since 2022. Mr. Chen
also serve as a director of Zhongming Capital Holdings (Shenzhen)
Limited* (RS EARIZER CRYI) EEBRLAE).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

HITESE @
B FLIR 55 4

EERMEE T&EED) =+ BZE
—hF+—BN\HEBEARITES -KIFHE
Charles Sturt UniversityZ B[R ¥EE2 12
i1 &zDeakin Universityz X @ stiE 21 o
E& S 4 B A Domino’s Pizza Enterprises
HZH D REENNELIE T ST A
FEZZ -G/ TREBEGFRDEER
BB ZE—NEE T —NFEEATI
International Trading Pty Ltdz {TE48%; > &
ARFEEENEBELONE S 2 EFHE
B-BZE_ZFi BAEEMFREIR
ZEERMBRARITHAE NN IES
’Jﬁ 1@%?@5@ 1%5’]?’*)% Exf%iﬁ(‘%’i

FRTES
PREESE

PBREESRE (TRREAEY) » =+ M5g  IREFHK
ERECEVBEETEEABNFEER-
RMARRBR BT - _FE REE
EEGRER (—XBRAHER EHHA
8] > ISR IXYGJIU) TTEAREL  REE TR
BEPHERER (R)) EEERATNE
g

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F#R



EEREREEENRBEFR

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin (“Mr. Leung”), aged 42, has been the
independent non-executive Director since 16 October 2014. Mr.
Leung has been serving as an independent non-executive director
of KNT Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1025) since 31 January 2019.
Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor's Degree of Commerce in Accounting
and Finance from the University of Toronto in Canada. Mr. Leung
is the general manager of TL Property Consultants International
Ltd. (“TLP”),
management of real estate sector. Prior to joining TLP, he had

a consultancy group principally engaged in asset

worked at a multinational accounting and auditing firm for about 8
years. Mr. Leung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky

Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky (“Dr. Chung”), aged 48, has been the
independent non-executive Director since 16 June 2021. Dr. Chung
obtained a doctor degree in Queen’s University of Brighton on 2012.
Dr. Chung possess over 18 years of experience in trading, corporate
finance, technology application and human resources management.
Dr. Chung is an independent non-executive director and the
chairman of remuneration committee and member to each of the
audit committee and nomination committee of Dragon King Group
Holdings Limited since November 2022, the shares of which are
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8493). Dr. Chung
has worked in various organisation including Technology, Media and
Telecommunications companies. Dr. Chung was a director of TVNET.
HK since 2004 and a chairman of China Dragon Foundation Creature
Fuel Technology (International) Limited from 2007 to 2015.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Ms. Lam Yuk Kan Ester

Ms. Lam Yuk Kan Ester (“Ms. Lam”), aged 49, has over 13 years
of working experience in securities settlement, operation and
management in the financial services industry. Ms. Lam was a
responsible officer in two securities and brokerage firms, which
she was responsible for monitoring securities settlement, providing
advice for asset management. Ms. Lam obtained a bachelor’s
degree of Science in Business Administration from the Queen’s
University of Brighton in the United States of America in 2011.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ngai Tsz Hin Michael

Mr. Ngai Tsz Hin Michael (“Mr. Ngai”), aged 34, is the company
secretary and one of the authorised representatives of the Company
with effect from 1 July 2021. Mr. Ngai has over eight years of
experience in legal industry and had obtained his Bachelor of Laws
and postgraduate certificate in laws from City University of Hong
Kong in 2011 and 2012, respectively. He is a practicing solicitor in
Hong Kong, and currently a partner of Michael Ngai & Co. and Khoo
& Co., and a consultant of O Tse & Co.. He is currently the company
secretary of six companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ngai
had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during YE2022.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Nip Chi Kin

Mr. Nip Chi Kin (“Mr. Nip”), aged 42, is the Financial Controller of
the Group since June 2018. He had over 22 years’ experience in
auditing, accounting and financial field.

CHANGE IN DIRECTOR BIOGRAPHICAL
DETAILS UNDER RULE 17.50(2) OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

After publication of the Company’s third quarterly report for the
nine months ended 30 June 2022 and up to the date of this report,
Dr. Chung has become an independent non-executive director of
Dragon King Group Holdings Limited since November 2022, the
shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 8493). Save for the aforesaid, there has been no change in
Director’s biographical details which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules.

For reference purposes only, the Chinese names of the PRC entities
and terms have been translated into English in this report. In the
event of any discrepancies between the Chinese names of the PRC
entities and terms and their English translation, the Chinese version
shall prevail.
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EFEHRS

Report of the Directors

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September
2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review of the Group is set out in the paragraph headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2022
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 61 to 62.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
reporting period are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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EFgHRS
Report of the Directors

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

The share premium of the Company is available for payment
or distributions of dividends to its shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution or dividend
payment the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association, dividends can be distributed out of the
profits, special reserve and share premium of the Company. No
distribution reserves of the Company was recorded as at 30
September 2022 (as at 30 September 2021: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Wenzhou, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Wu Guoming
Mr. Duan Fanfan

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Chen Long
(appointed on 21 October 2022)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin
Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky
Ms. Lam Yuk Kan Ester
(appointed on 3 October 2022)
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun
(retired on 16 June 2022)
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EEgHRS
Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Duan Fanfan, Mr. Chen Long, Mr. Leung Oh
Man, Martin and Ms. Lam Yuk Kan Ester will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. No director has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation). The
non-executive Director has a service contract with the Company
for a term of two years commencing on the date of respective
appointment. Each of the independent non-executive Directors
has a service contract with the Company for a term of one year
commencing on the date of their respective appointment but
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at an annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section titled “Connected Transactions”
below, no Director or connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the holding company of the Company, or any of the
Company’s subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

As at 30 September 2022, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the Directors as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:
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EFEHRS

Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, EZENXZ -ZHHAGHNZHER
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS (continued) #=

Interests in the Company i YN o

The table below sets out the aggregate long positions in the shares, TFTXREIIEAATEERESTEAEREAR

underlying shares and debentures of the Company held by the

Directors and chief executives of the Company:

AERMN - BRARNDRESZHFEMHBER !

Corporate Percentage of
Directors/chief executive Interests Long (L) or short (S) position interests
BEE 'BETHAE REMER FRL)FKE(S) EZE L
Mr. Wu Guoming 18,437,500 L 4.04%
SEREE
L: Long position L =

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2022, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined in Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by the Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of

the GEM Listing Rules.
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EFEHRS

Report of the Directors

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 September 2022, so far as known to any Director or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRKREMA LR KRE

FiRDZzEm R RXE
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A WE BRI AR EIRERE 5 AR
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Number of Approximate

shares Long (L) or percentage of

or underlying short (S) interest in the

Name of Shareholder Capacity shares held position Company

FR ¥ Rg 15 3 LB AT S

IR 1% HRARGHEE FEWL)TXE(S) L ESEa g

Sze Ching Lau Beneficiary owner 61,690,000 L 13.52%

=i BmEAA

L: Long position L wa

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2022, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons who had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.
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EFEHRS

Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders in the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
on 20 August 2020 and refresh the scheme mandate limited of the
Share Option Scheme pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by
the shareholders in the annual general meeting of the Company on
16 June 2022. The Share Option Scheme is a long-term incentive
scheme of the Company to reward its employees, Directors and
other eligible participants for their contributions to the Group and
to assist the Group in its recruitment and retention of high-calibre
employees and other eligible participants who are instrumental to the
growth and development of the Group.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include: (a) any
employee or proposed employee (whether fulltime or part-time and
including any executive Director), consultants or advisers of or to the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any invested entity; (b) any non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any invested entity; (c) any
supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any
invested entity; (d) any customer of the Group or any invested entity;
(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group or any invested entity; and (f) any
shareholder of any member of the Group or any invested entity or
any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or
any invested entity, and any company wholly owned by one or more
persons belonging to any of the above classes.

Subject to the earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme in
accordance with the rules thereof, the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in force for a period of ten years commencing from the date
of adoption.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee within any
12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time.
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Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuead)

Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
a general meeting.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all options (excluding for this purpose options which have lapsed)
which have been or may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 45,586,000 shares, representing 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of approval of the Share Option
Scheme and 2% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the
end of Reporting Period and the date of approval of this report. The
maximum number of shares to be issued upon the exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21
days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the Directors, which period may
commence from the date of the offer of the share options, and ends
on a date which is not later than ten years from the date of grant
of the share options subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof.
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EFgHRS
Report of the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuea)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer; (i) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (i) the nominal value of a share.

As at the date of this report, no share option had been granted
under the Share Option Scheme.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for about 54.3% of the revenue of the Group and the largest
customer of the Group accounted for about 13.8% of the total
revenue.

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
about 86.2% of the purchases of the Group and the largest supplier
of the Group accounted for about 36.4% of the total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital), has an interest in any of
the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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Report of the Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Material lease contract

On 20 April 2020, FRBEREREREK (L8) ARASF
Environmental Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.*) (“Senchou
Environment”) and /82 BRER TEERAR (Shanghai Junsheng
Ltd.*) (“Shanghai Junsheng”)
entered into a material lease contract, pursuant to which, Senchou

B (Senchou

Construction Engineering Co.,

Environment agreed to lease the equipment to Shanghai Junsheng
for the period from 20 April 2020 to 19 August 2020. Due to the
COVID-19 pandemic, the execution of the above contract was
postponed. For the year ended 30 September 2022, the transaction
amount was approximately HK$859,000.

As Mr. Wu Guoming, the Director of the Company, and his spouse,
own 100% equity of Shanghai Junsheng, Shanghai Junsheng is a
connected company of the Company, and in accordance with the
GEM Listing Rules, the transactions proposed under the material
lease contract constitute connected transactions of the Company.

The above-mentioned connected transactions are one-off
transactions.

The omission by the Company to comply with the GEM Listing
Rules requirements to make timely disclosure for the Connected
Transactions. The Company wishes to apologise in this regard
and an announcement will be published to provide details of the
Connected Transactions as soon as possible.

* For reference purposes only, the Chinese names of the PRC entities
and terms have been translated into English in this report. In the
event of any discrepancies between the Chinese names of the PRC
entities and terms and their English translation, the Chinese version
shall prevail.
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EFgHRS
Report of the Directors

THE USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE RIGHTS
ISSUE

Reference is made to the prospectus published by the Company
dated 26 March 2021 (the “Prospectus”) in respect of the Rights
Issue. Unless otherwise specified, terms used in this section shall
have the same meanings as those defined in the Prospectus.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the net proceeds from the Rights
Issue after deduction of expenses and professional fees amounted to
approximately HK$55,320,000 (“Rights Issue Proceeds”).

The breakdown of the Company’s proposed use of the Rights Issue
Proceeds as disclosed in the Prospectus and its actual use of the
Rights Issue Proceeds from the date of completion of the Rights

HERFRISRIERAR

FIRAAASNEARS-T—_—F=1
“HARBAERERZERER ((E12)) FF
SHEEREN FEMAARREASEMR
EERBMEREZE-

MERFE BN EKR AT REES
BE  HERZFERIBFEEL 455,320,000
Bt (MERRFTSFIED) ©

MEBREFIRE > A RAE 2 HRFFISIERZ
BRREMSHRIEEHRTEREBREE"F
T TFENR=THIEZERARBMESIN

Issue to 30 September 2022 were as follows: e
Actual use Actual use
Balance of the of the
of the  Rights Issue  Rights Issue Balance of
unutilised Proceeds Proceeds the unutilised
Rights Issue during the during the  Rights Issue
Proceeds six months six months Proceeds
Net Rights as at ended ended as at
Issue 30 September 31 March 30 September 30 September
Proceeds 2021 2022 2022 2022
BE BE
i ZEIZE ZEZZEF N

—_¥-_-% ZHA=+-H hB=+H —BCCE
hB=+88 EXEAHEER EAEAHEE AB=+EH
RIRFR1S XBEMHRRK FrigsRIEH Frig s IR XBAMHRR

Intended use BER% FEFE  ERUELER ERR®% ERRE FSRESER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT

Legal and professional fee UREISEES= 3,000 1,684 1,684 - -
Staff cost BIMA 449
Rental A& 27
Other operating expenses A& ERS 1,279

General working capital —hkEEES 5,259 1,755 1,755 - -
Finance cost HHERAE 929
Settlement of bonds BEES 20,918

Redemption of outstanding bonds BB 1THEIMES 48,000 21,847 21,847 - -

56,259 25,286 25,286 - -
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Report of the Directors

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year
ended 30 September 2022.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the Group entered
into transactions with related parties as set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issue
shares as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year, none of the Directors, the controlling shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or their
respective associates had any business or interest which competed
or might compete with the business of the Group nor had any other
conflict of interest with the Group.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

WE HEXWESARZ LT
e

BE_TZ__HFNA=tHLEFEE £RQF
HEEFANBAEMERE  HESBELO K
ABEEA EHESe

BAEET3X 5
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EFgHRS
Report of the Directors

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Group was entered into or existed during the
year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined with
reference to market terms and the performance, qualifications and
experience of the individual employee.

The emoluments of the Directors were recommended by the
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of the Company
after considering factors such as the Company’s Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and the operating performance of the Group.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme
are set out in pages 33 to 35 to this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period are set in note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout the reporting period.
Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been provided by the Company to cover potential legal actions
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duties.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F

EEAN
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Report of the Directors

AUDITORS

The Company has appointed RSM Hong Kong as the auditors of
the Company for the Year with effect from 30 January 2019. There
has been no change in auditors since the date of appointment. RSM
Hong Kong will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for reappointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution to
reappoint RSM Hong Kong and to authorize the Directors to fix its
remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Wenzhou
DIRECTOR

21 December 2022

1% Sl
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. It met all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) set out in Appendix 15 of
the GEM Listing Rules in the year ended 30 September 2022 except
for the following deviation:

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and the chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company did not appoint
a chairman from 19 April 2018. The Board will keep reviewing
the current structure from time to time and appoint candidate
with suitable knowledge, skill and experience as chairman of the
Company, if identified.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealing set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required
Standard”) as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Required
Standard during the year ended 30 September 2022.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms it has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules,
and considers that the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by a board of Directors (the “Board”)
which has the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company. The Directors are collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board set strategies and directions for the Group’s
activities and lead the Group’s management team through the
Directors with a view to developing its business and enhancing
shareholder value.

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the Board’s composition
and the individual attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings, board committee meetings and shareholder meetings
during the year ended 30 September 2022 are set out in the table
below:

o

FRABREFE ((BEFg) BB RFARE
EREREEAANF -BEFEEETAEE
AEEZEH HEHEEEERBRMI
EFEREAEREBZRBRAM  LHE
BEFREAEENEEREER £X%F
Rk RERERE-

BE_T__FNA=+tHULEFE BFg
HRREUEENBE_SE__FAA=+
ALFEEHREFEER " EFZ8983
RBRERGHBEREN TR !

Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of his/her office in the year

ERURRY ARENBTEERY

Human
Resources &
Board  Remuneration Nomination Audit Shareholder
Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
ANERR
EZggHE HMESE REZEE BEn%8Y RRAE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Wang Wenzhou, IXBEE THEH 8/9 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Chief Executive Offcer TER TEA TER
Mr. Wu Guoming REB\LE 79 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
TER TEA TER
Mr. Duan Fanfan BAREE 8/9 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
TER TEA TER
Non-Executive Director ERITES
Mr. Chen Long BETERZ2-28F N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 21 October 2022) +BZ+-HEZA) TER TER TEA TER TER
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BIJFHITES
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin 2REEE 1/9 0/0 0/0 4/4 11
Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky EE 1= hchn 99 0/0 0/0 4/4 11
Ms. Lam Yuk Kan Ester WEELL (RZEZ"& N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 3 October 2022) +E=HEZD) TER TER TER TER ER
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun (retired on 16 June 2022)  AEEXE W_E__F 3/5 0/0 0/0 2/3 11
ANATRERE)
N/A:  Not applicable TER . NEA
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the Board held nine
Board meetings to review, among other matters, the Group’s
financial and operating performance and discuss the business
direction and strategy. Agenda and accompanying board papers
were sent to all Directors in a timely manner.

Directors who could not attend in person could participate the Board
meetings and Shareholder meetings through other electronic means
of communications.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 23 to 27 in this annual report.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. During the year ended 30 September 2022 and up
to the date of this report, Mr. Wang Wenzhou, Mr. Wu Guoming,
Mr. Duan Fanfan, Mr. Chen Long, Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin, Dr.
Chung Ling Cheong Dicky and Ms. Lam Yuk Kan Ester engaged
in business activities in their respective fields as continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills so as to ensure that their contributions to the Board remain
informed and relevant. Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin has participated
in continuous professional development programs required by The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Directors
also participated in other trainings and professional developments
such as attending seminars, studying reading materials relating to
the Group or its industries and businesses; rules and regulations;
business management; or the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.

BEEg @

BE_T__FNA=+tHULEFEE BFg
BONARESEEH st (EFPEHE &~
EEMPHREERT WaImEHH#H K
RE - ZREAREREEEFEXHCREFHE
XERRES-

BEIRIHFEFTERRRIAGHES
BUHEMEFBEAL LB

EFZEREMNENAFRF2BE27TEE
EREREEBNBEEFIBEI—®-

KABRBAMPIBEERZRHEEXURZH
GENEINTREERCE - a#E_T =
FNE=+tHLFEKEEFTRSHH £
XBRERBEBREBRNNTE  BREE
TESRHXRE - BEBNEBLRMEEY
THERSEEENEFIHEBRSETES
FE R LR B EM# AR BR
HEEERRAREEN KRB EEEF
HEM R ECRREBGAMAE
MERBAEAFBEFEXERRAE -EFTSH
HMEIIREXERE AN HENE B
BEHXE ABERAERRETERE
% RARED  BEEE, HLEHRATE
EHNAE BEREEE
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the leadership of the
Board, ensuring its effectiveness in all aspects of its role and for
setting its agenda and taking into account any matters proposed by
other directors for inclusion in the agenda. Through the Board, he is
responsible for ensuring that good corporate governance practices
and procedures are followed by the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) did not hold meetings during the year
ended 30 September 2022. The Remuneration Committee has
reviewed and approved the Group’s remuneration policy, including
that for the executive Directors, and the levels of remuneration
paid to executive directors and senior management of the Group.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee follow the
guidelines set out in the Code and it is responsible for, among other
things, making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management.
The remuneration paid and payable to the Directors for the year
ended 30 September 2022 is set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The remuneration paid and payable to the senior management
excluding directors by band for the year ended 30 September 2022
is set out below:

FriNsEE

Remuneration of band

1TER AR

THRHAEEREERTT HREFIE
ERMBETHESTEZEE TREEEE
F URERRBAMESFRIREZEME
ERARRERN ZEREFT NEERELR
EEBTRENEERERERNERF-

ANBERKRFMNEES

BE_T__FNAA=tHLEEE  ANE
BRFHNEES (HNEZEE) UERTE
ZoFMEEECERKILERER (B1F
HITES) 2#FMER REAEBERTES
REMERRE ZHIKF A B RETH
ez eS|l EfmNEZE G - HEHE B
BEZ—SRNEFETRREAHNATEEKS
REEENFHNEE BEZT_FANA
“tTHLEFE EARBANEEZHMEN
A MB|RRWEIS.

BE_Z__FhAB=1HLEEFE BNk
ENEHEEE FEEES) NiHNZEE
B DEAWMT

Number of
Individuals

A

HK$0 — HK$500,000 078 75— 500,0007% 7T,

1
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BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a policy concerning diversity of Board
members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which is summarised as
follows:

The Company is committed to maintaining a highly effective Board
which should have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of its business. When
deciding on the appointment of directors, it is the policy of the
Company to consider a number of factors, including but not limited
to, gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, and other qualifications, skills and experience which the
Company considers that it will make a positive contribution to the
performance of the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) monitors the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy and reviews it from time to time and shall bring to the
attention of the Board any significant issues or recommendations
as and when necessary and appropriate. Any reviews, updates and
amendments to the Board Diversity Policy shall be approved by the
Board.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the Code. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for identifying potential new directors and making
recommendations to the Board for decision. A director appointed by
the Board is subject to re-election by shareholders at the first annual
general meeting after his/her appointment. All Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years. In accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association, one third of the directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders
at each annual general meeting of the Company.

Potential new Directors are selected with reference to the Board
Diversity Policy whenever necessary and appropriate.

The Nomination Committee did not hold meetings during the year
ended 30 September 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the Code and has delegated the
Group’s corporate governance functions to the Audit Committee of
the Company (the “Audit Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, with the inclusion
of the corporate governance functions, follow the guidelines set out
in the Code. The Audit Committee is responsible for, among other
things, having relationship with the Company’s auditors, reviewing
the Group’s financial information and its financial reporting, financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems and
corporate governance, including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function. The Audit
Committee reports to the Board any significant issues relating to its
terms of reference.

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the Audit Committee
held four meetings and work per formed included reviewing the
Group’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual results, its risk management
and internal control systems, and corporate governance matters for
inclusion in the Company’s Annual Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to RSM Hong Kong for audit and non-
audit services for the year ended 30 September 2022 amounted
to approximately HK$1,050,000 and approximately HK$1,360,000,
respectively. The non-audit services provided by RSM Hong Kong
to the Group were in relation to certain agreed upon procedures
services during the year.

The remuneration paid to RSM Hong Kong for audit and non-
audit services for the year ended 30 September 2021 amounted
to approximately HK$1,050,000 and approximately HK$730,000
respectively. The non-audit services provided by RSM Hong Kong
to the Group were in relation to certain agreed upon procedures
services and being reporting accountants for circular and
prospectus.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group (the “Consolidated
Financial Statements”) which give a true and fair view and are in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
Directors endeavor to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable
assessments of the Group’s performance, position and prospects in
financial reporting. Accordingly, appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently; judgments and estimates made
are prudent and reasonable.

They are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities. The Directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparation of the consolidated financial statements
and are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statement of the Company’s auditors about their reporting
responsibilities on the Consolidated Financial Statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 57 to 60.

The auditors did not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. As disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has net current liabilities of HK$51,022,000
as at 30 September 2022. In addition, as at 30 September 2022,
the Group had capital commitments amounting to HK$30,353,000.
Besides, the Group was in default of non-convertible bonds of
approximately HK$350,000 which was overdue as of 30 September
2022. These events and conditions indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

B8R KRZH

EFARRERAERBEET RGN AER
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continuead)

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon measures
taken by the directors to improve the Group’s financial position, cash
flows and profitability and the financial supports from two Directors
of the Company, at a level sufficient to finance the working capital
requirements of the Group as explained below.

The Directors have estimated the Group’s cash requirements by
preparing a Group cashflow forecast for the eighteen-month period
ending 31 March 2024. Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr. Wu”), a shareholder
and a director of the Company, and Mr. Wang Wenzhou (“Mr.
Wang”), a director of the Company, as at 30 September 2022, have
agreed to provide sufficient funds to the Group so that the Group
will be able to meet all current obligations as they fall due for the
foreseeable future. Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang both agreed to pledge their
properties as collaterals, if necessary, to borrow funds to provide
financial support to the Group.

Near the end of the reporting period, the bondholders with principal
amount of HK$3,850,000 have signed letters of intent with the
Company agreeing to further extend the maturity date to 30
September 2024. Subsequent to 30 September 2022, the bonds
with principal amount of HK$3,850,000 have been renewed with
maturity date extended to 30 September 2024.

However, the auditors were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to satisfy themselves that Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang
had the financial resources to provide the required level of financial
support to the Group. Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang both agreed to pledge
their properties to provide financial support to the Group. Based on
the market valuations of the properties, the auditors considered that
it was uncertain whether Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang would be able to
borrow funds using the properties as collateral at the level necessary
to support the Group’s liquidity requirements. In addition, they
were unable to ascertain whether Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang had any
personal liabilities which would affect their credit standing and ability
to borrow against the pledged properties. Accordingly, the auditors
were unable to determine the validity of preparing the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continuead)

In order to address the uncertainties which may cast doubt

regarding the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, the

Directors have given careful consideration to the future liquidity

and performance of the Group and its available sources of finance

to continue as going concern. In the opinion of the Directors, the

Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations

and to meet it financial obligations as and when they fall due in the

foreseeable future, based on the cash flow projections of the Group

and after taking into consideration the following:

(1)

implementing stronger measures aiming at improving the
liquidity and financial position of the Group, including but not
limited to closely monitoring the operating costs;

reviewing and shortening the reporting intervals and improving
follow up measures on receivables collection. As at 30
November 2022, approximately HK$3,364,000, or 20% of
our trade and bills receivables as at 30 September 2022 was
settled;

negotiating with non-convertible bondholders to extend the
maturity date of the bonds once mature. Subsequent to 30
September 2022, non-convertible bonds of HK$3,850,000 as
at 30 September 2022 has been renewed with maturity date
extended to 30 September 2024;

negotiating with the Group’s suppliers and related companies
to extend the payment terms;

the Directors of the Company, Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang will
continue to provide financial support to the Group including
the availability to pledge various properties in Tianjin and
Shanghai, the PRC. According to a preliminary valuation
summary prepare by an independent valuer, these properties
worth over RMB50,000,000. They have undertaken not to
require the Company to repay the loans until such time when
repayment will not affect the ability of the Group to repay
other creditors in the normal course of business; and

looking for new bank facilities from other banks.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continuead)

The management considered that the proposed measures
mentioned above, if successful, could improve the Group’s liquidity
and therefore could help to address the audit matter. However, as
the management’s assessment of the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern for the purposes of preparing the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ending 30 September
2023 has to take into consideration of the future conditions and
circumstances and could only be made at the end of the relevant
reporting period, the management is unable to ascertain at this
moment whether the audit matter can be removed in the next
financial year purely based on the Company’s measures above.

The audit committee has discussed with the Company, reviewed the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September
2022, and agreed with the going concern basis of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements and to finalise and implement the
action plans for addressing the disclaimer of opinion.

The audit committee has also discussed with the Auditors and
reviewed the disclaimer of opinion and the basis of disclaimer of
opinion.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control system with an aim to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets in compliance with the
provisions of the Code. The purpose is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatements, errors,
losses or fraud, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
achieving the Group’s business objectives.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems to
safeguard the interests of shareholders and the Group’s assets.
The Board also acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group’s risk management, financing reporting, and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and reviewing their effectiveness at
least annually through the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance
roles in the Group’s financial, operational, compliance, risk
management and internal controls, and the resourcing of the finance
and internal audit functions.

To this end, appropriate policies and controls have been designed
and established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against
improper use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered
to and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records are
maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on
the Group’s performance are appropriately identified and managed.
Besides, management continues to allocate resources for the risk
management and internal control systems to provide reasonable,
though not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss and to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has delegated the internal
audit function to an independent external assurance provider, who
has conducted a review on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended 30 September 2022. The Board considers that the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, leads and provides
direction to management by laying down strategies and overseeing
their implementation by management, monitors the Group’s
operational and financial performance, and ensures that sound risk
management and internal control systems are in place.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

The Board reviewed and was satisfied with the adequacy of the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes,
on the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions.

The Board, through delegation of its authority to an environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) working group, is also responsible for
reviewing the Company’s corporate social responsibility strategies,
principles and policies; setting guidelines, direction and overseeing
practices and procedures; and monitoring progress on the
Company’s corporate social responsibility and related activities.

The following highlights the key risk management measures under
the Group’s “Three Lines of Defence” model and enhancements
made by the Group for the period.

1st line of defence - Risk management

° Management conducted an annual Internal Control Self-
Assessment for the period. Management confirmed that
appropriate internal control policies and procedures have
been established and complied with.

° Various policies, procedures and guidelines are in place with
defined authority for effective segregation of duties, controls
and risk management, and they are subject to regular review.

° The Group’s anti-bribery and anti-corruption guidelines
are in place to set out minimum standards in recognizing
circumstances which may lead to or give the appearance of
involving corruption or unethical business conduct, to help
avoid conduct which is clearly prohibited, and to encourage
everyone in the Group to seek appropriate guidance promptly
when needed.

° The Group’s whistleblowing policy is in place to facilitate
internal reporting of any malpractice and unethical conduct
within the Group without fear of reprisal and victimization.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

2nd line of defence - Risk oversight

° The Group’s Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) Policy
is developed to outline the principles, governance, roles
and responsibilities, and approach within a coherent risk
management framework that addresses and prioritizes risks
that are material and relevant to the Group’s corporate goals.

° The Group’s ERM Framework aims to help management
assess and manage risks arising from and associated with
new business activities and environments, including emerging
risks. An integrated risk assessment approach was adopted
to address risks across various subsidiaries of the Group, to
assess those risks on an integrated group-wide basis.

3rd line of defence - Independent assurance

° The external assurance provider takes up the internal audit
function, who is responsible for conducting independent
reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control systems and reporting the review results
regularly to the Board through the Audit Committee.

For internal audit, a risk-based approach is adopted. The three
years’ work plan of external assurance provider for internal audit, is
subject to review annually, covers major activities and processes of
the Group’s operations, businesses and service units. The results of
these audit activities are communicated to the Audit Committee and
key members of senior management of the Group. Audit issues are
tracked, followed up for proper implementation, and their progress
are reported to the Audit Committee and senior management of the
Group (as the case may be) periodically. The external assurance
provider for internal audit provides independent assurance to the
Board, the Audit Committee and the senior management of the
Group on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls for the
Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

The Group’s ERM Policy is established by the Board as an effective
and adequate approach to be applied across the Group to manage
the risks associated with its business and operations. This policy
is designed to enhance enterprise risk management of the Group
through a holistic and integrated framework so that all material risks
faced by the Group are identified and appropriately managed to:

(i) promote consistent risk identification, measurement, reporting
and mitigation;

(i) set a common risk language to avoid any conflicting
terminology or confusion in risk reporting;

(iif) develop and communicate policies on enterprise risk
management and controls aligned with the business strategy;
and

(iv) enhance reporting to provide transparency of risks across the
Group.

The Company has adopted policies and procedures for assessing
and, where prudent, improving the effectiveness of its risk
management and internal control systems, including requiring the
management of the Group at least annually to assess whether
the risk management and internal control systems are functioning
effectively in the belief that this will enhance the corporate
governance of the Company and its business practices in the future.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the Code of Conduct to ensure inside
information remains confidential until the disclosure of such
information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such
information is efficiently and consistently made.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ngai Tsz Hin Michael, the company secretary of the Company,
has complied with the relevant professional training under Rules 5.15
of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 30 September 2022.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Wang Wenzhou is the compliance officer of the Company. His
biographical details are set out in Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management on page 23 of this report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting the
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims to
allow shareholders to participate in the Company’s profit and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Company would consider various factors
including the Company and the Group’s actual and expected
financial performance, the Group’s current and future operations, the
level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, liquidity position and capital
requirement of the Group, general market conditions and any other
factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company maintains a non-going dialogue with its shareholders
through various channels including announcements and annual,
interim and quarterly reports published on its website at
www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk and the Company’s general
meetings. All shareholders are encouraged to attend general
meetings and they may put to the Board any enquiries about the
Group through its website at www.globalstrategicgroup.com.hk
or in writing sent to the principal office of the Company at Room
803, 8/F., Wanchai Central Building, 89 Lockhart Road, Wan
Chai,
appropriate members of senior management respond to enquiries

Hong Kong. The Directors, company secretary or other

from shareholders promptly. The Chief Executive Officer, chairmen
of board committees (or their respective delegates) and external
auditors attend the annual general meeting and are available
to answer questions raised by shareholders. Shareholders may
also access the Company’s corporate website for the Group’s
information.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business (including
any proposals) specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in
the same manner.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Board is not aware of any significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year ended 30 September
2022. Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
is available on both the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 61 to 199, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 September
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report,
we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated
financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion the
consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that as at 30 September 2022, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by HK$51,022,000 and the
Group had capital commitments amounting to HK$30,353,000
as disclosed in note 46. The Group was also in default of non-
convertible bonds of HK$350,000 as of 30 September 2022.

These events and conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis, the validity of which depends on the
continuous financial support of Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr. Wu”) and Mr.
Wang Wenzhou (“Mr. Wang”) as disclosed in note 2. However, we
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy
ourselves that Mr. Wu and Mr. Wang had the financial resources
to provide the required level of financial support to the Group. Mr.
Wu and Mr. Wang both agreed to pledge their properties to provide
financial support to the Group. Based on the market valuations of
the properties, we considered that it was uncertain whether Mr. Wu
and Mr. Wang would be able to borrow funds using the properties
as collateral at the level necessary to support the Group’s liquidity
requirements. In addition, we were unable to ascertain whether Mr.
Wu and Mr. Wang had any personal liabilities which would affect their
credit standing and ability to borrow against the pledged properties.
Accordingly, we were unable to determine the validity of preparing
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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BRI S
Independent Auditor’s Report

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern in the
foreseeable future, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities that might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities respectively. The effect of these
adjustments have not been reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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BALZ BT S
Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms
of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

However, because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Wo Cheung.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two
28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

21 December 2022
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FZBEMITHEERREE RS MAEE
fizEEBFEES EREEZRGYH
BRREBZHBRE - AR EREZERIF
mER BT (FRER) RS BRItz ihE
BERERMB B - AZHENITH A B AR
SRR EMEMALTEENRES T

A BRAZBEMTREFEEIRTER
ZEE—MMAEE  AZBEMITREER
REBEENSEHRE UMZEESUHR
RZBSHAERREHEE

REEBGAMASRMNEXLSSTENE
fesrR) (TsPR) - aRZEBEITBILN B
T ERITTRITHEMESESE-

HERB U ZBMRENESFEETBEAR
TR E

BEHRETTEAERFR
HEZ AT

58

R E2857

FIE —HR2012

BT HF+ZRBZ+—H

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F#R



o AdO L
:ZNT\I:I:,I:E\JIEL

P EH MM EE R E R

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE_Z - _FHhA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

2022 2021
—E_-C T —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FAT TFATT
Revenue Y 25 7 136,241 71,486
Cost of sales == NN (115,954) (51,223)
Gross profit EF 20,287 20,263
Other income HMk A 8 962 2,629
Other gains and losses Hittim 518 9 139 54
Selling and distribution costs & K 0 8 A AN (8,731) (8,555)
General and administrative expenses —f& & {TEL H (32,960) (31,978)
Reversal of impairment loss on ME--BREMZERERBIE
property, plant and equipment $5 0] 19 21,012 -
Reversal of impairment loss on m B E R ER B
intangible assets 20 178 -
Reversal of impairment loss on FREE EREHIBED
right-of-use assets 22 16,565 -
Allowance for trade and bills FEUN B F R R EiR B
receivables 6(b)(i) (1,823) (2,200)
Reversal of allowance/(allowance) FEUR E R B el
for loan receivables (B ) 6(b)(ii) 1,173 (121)
(Allowance)/reversal of allowance e R EMBEWERR
for deposits and other receivables (B /EHEEL 6(b)(ii) (13) 724
Allowance for due from a related party FEUW—ZRBEFE S RIBEIE  6(b)(ii) (6) (22)
Profit/(loss) from operations R EFEF (B5i8) 16,783 (19,206)
Finance costs RN 11 (2,603) (4,204)
Share of loss from a joint venture DMEEELEZER (49) -
Profit/(loss) before tax PRIATER (B518) 14,131 (23,410)
Income tax (expense)/credit PRt (BR) % 12 (3,450) 643
Profit/(loss) for the year FERiEd (B8 13 10,681 (22,767)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

2022 2021
—E-C —ET—4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 5 FHET TFATT
Other comprehensive income Hth2mka= (RiR%E)
after tax
Items that may be reclassified B gt BB T EE B ”
to profit or loss: EE
Exchange differences arising on R BRRIAERET
translation of financial statements EREF 2 ERER
to presentation currency (991) 5,393
Exchange differences reclassified NS 59#%%@?
to profit or loss on deregistered %%ﬁﬁiﬁ =i
foreign subsidiaries RER 2 -
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKE
for the year, net of tax (Bi11R) (989) 5,393
Total comprehensive income FRAEEKEEEE
for the year 9,692 (17,374)
(Loss)/profit for the year UTALTEGER
attributable to: (&548) a@#) -
Owners of the Company KABHEB A (15,504) (20,982)
Non-controlling interests R 26,185 (1,785)
10,681 (22,767)
Total comprehensive income UFTALEGEAZE
for the year attributable to: s 4858
Owners of the Company KABEB A (14,334) (18,203)
Non-controlling interests JEERR R m 24,026 829
9,692 (17,374)
Loss per share SRE51E 18
Basic (HK cents per share) BEA&R (BB (3.40) (15.20)
Diluted (HK cents per share) #E (B A (3.40) (15.20)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZE-__FHhAB=+H Asat30 September 2022

2022 2021
—E_-C T —F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET TFATT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y ERY NS 19 121,577 112,246
Right-of-use assets FREEE 20 3,495 2,055
Goodwill Bk 21 - -
Intangible assets BLEE 22 80,976 71,031
Investment in a joint venture R—REeErEZKE 24 183 -
Deposits for acquisition of property,  WEWXE -BRERREZ
plant and equipment BE 8,737 3,582
214,968 188,914
Current assets MEBEE
Inventories = 25 1,489 797
Trade and bills receivables FEWE SR R EE 26 8,920 6,576
Prepayments, deposits and BRI -BEREM
other receivables & W BR =X 27 8,073 13,794
Loan receivables FEWE 28 - 4,310
Bond receivables FENES 29 - -
Due from a related party FE U — 54 RE B 5 =R 18 47(d) 1,019 1,591
Value-added tax (“VAT”) recoverable ~ AJ U [O]g &R (T8 {ER ) 390 5,850
Bank and cash balances R1T IR 45 R 30 4,998 23,411
24,889 56,329
Current liabilities mREAaR
Trade payables FEfS B 5 iR 31 1,145 873
Accruals and other payables FEST & B R M ET IR 32 40,608 51,874
Contract liabilities aMNaE 33 10,798 6,352
Lease liabilities HE&E 34 1,580 1,405
Due to related parties FEAT ARG 5 =18 47(d) 9,888 1,218
Due to directors FE(tEERRI1E 35 1,142 3,011
Non-convertible bonds RA#RES 36 7,852 27,166
Bank borrowings IRITREE 37 2,878 7,680
Current tax liabilities BrEfRIE & B 20 19
75,911 99,598
Net current liabilities mEAEREEE (51,022) (43,269)
Total assets less current liabilities #BERRHSEE 163,946 145,645
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

MRZE-__FHhAB=+H Asat30 September 2022

2022 2021
—E-C B
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET THET
Non-current liabilities EREIEE
Accruals and other payables FE=H B B R A E (TR 32 3,209 -
Due to non-controlling shareholders B —RIM B AT =~
of a subsidiary and its JEHE AR A% B e EL R Bt
related parties FRIA 38 27,344 44,423
Lease liabilities HEaE 34 1,237 445
Non-convertible bonds THB|RES 36 8,900 -
Bank borrowings RITHEE 37 20,675 10,387
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIE & & 39 20,244 17,758
81,609 73,013
82,337 72,632
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRRKHEE
Share capital N 40 4,559 4,559
Reserves E1E 41(a) 11,217 23,296
Equity attributable to owners KABVHEB ANEG#ER
of the Company 15,776 27,855
Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) JEEREEm
(TIEYERG M2 ) 66,561 44,777
Total equity R 82,337 72,632

Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 December 2022 and are R _Z__

signed on its behalf by:

Wang Wenzhou

ExXAE
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EaRRERE
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATER AR
Share Capital Share Other  Translation Accumulated
capital reserve premium reserve reserve losses Total NCI  Total equity
i EiitE RiIFER Hitikts BERE RitER FEE S 31377 574 BHAE
(note 40)  (note 41(b)())  (note 41(0)(ii))  (note 41(b)v))  (note 41(b)v))
(sE40)  (RsE410)0))  (HE4100))  (BEA0)N)  EHEAD)WY)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TET TEL TET TET TEL FET TEL FET
At 1 October 2020 RIZZZE+E-H 45,586 7,540 293,640 12,255 (4,087) (365,135) (10,201) 43,948 33,747
Total comprehensive income for the year R 2 AWGEE - - - - 2,779 (20,982) (18,209) 829 (17,374)
Capital reduction (note 40(a)) BRI (H5E40(a) (44,674) - - - - 44,674 - - -
Issuance of shares on rights issue FERETRR (H5E400))
(note 40(b)) 3,647 - 52,612 - - - 56,259 - 56,259
At 30 September 2021 and RIZZ-FnBE=+HE
1 October 2021 Z2”-%tB-H 4,559 7,540 346,252 12,255 (1,308) (341,443 27,855 44,777 72,632
Total comprehensive income for the year R 2 EWGEE - - - - 1,170 (15,504) (14,334) 24,026 9,692
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43(a)) HEMBAT (H:43() B - - - B - - 13 13
Acquisition of non-controlling interests ~ UiEESERERRIE S (F13£43(0))
(note 43(0) - - - - 9% 2,157 2,255 (2,255) -
At 30 September 2022 RZZEZZFAR=1A 4,559 7,540 346,252 12,255 (40) (354,790) 15,776 66,561 82,337

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE_Z - _FHAA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

2022 2021
—E-C T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHRSRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BRAGATIRF], (B518) 14,131 (23,410)
Adjustments for: HEE
Depreciation of property, ME- -BEMREBITE
plant and equipment 8,991 8,933
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTREEEINE 1,596 1,379
Amortisation of intangible assets m & E 2,899 2,876
Finance costs A 2,603 4,204
Interest income FEUWA (126) (1,723)
Loss on written off of property, WIS % R KRR EEIE
plant and equipment 2 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZWm (141) (52)
Share of loss from a joint venture DME—REEeERECEIE 49 -
Impairment loss on goodwill EmERERIE - 580
Reversal of impairment loss on M ERREREREE
property, plant and equipment #[0] (21,012) -
Reversal of impairment loss on FREEEREBERED
right-of-use assets (178) -
Reversal of impairment loss on w B E R ER BRI
intangible assets (16,565) -
Allowance for trade and bills receivables FEWE 5 AR R E iR 15 1,823 2,200
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance FERE ™ (BEER) HE
for loan receivables (1,173) 121
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) % K HMEW AR
for deposits and other receivables BfE BEEL) 13 (724)
Allowance for due from a related party FE U — 54 RE Bt 75 =R OB B85 15 6 22
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FERERER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE_Z - _FHAA=+HLEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Operating cash flows before working SEETEHA o KE
capital changes HWERE (7,082) (5,594)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEW B 5 AR 7 R 2R 18 70 (4,672) (4,682)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FEMRA R R EMER
deposits and other receivables RFURL 7 (1 h0) 5,080 (6,762)
Decrease in VAT recoverable ] U [o] (& AR s > 5,420 1,069
Decrease in inventories EFEERD 340 18
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERE ZERIIE M, GRi) 413 (30)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and F& 5t & B K H A FE (AR R
other payables CRiZb) /1810 (5,436) 6,850
Increase in contract liabilities BRaEEN 5,050 2,354
Movements in balance with related parties BB 5 FiIE 45 6h 4 &) 9,713 (2,762)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations ~ #&&FF1E, (FrA) IRE 8,826 (9,539)
Interest on lease liabilities HEsBAEZNE (173) (90)
Income tax paid B2 ER (32) (57)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ RETEBMRE (FTA)
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEFEE 8,621 (9,686)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHRSRERE
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant WY B &
and equipment (648) (2,052)
Interest received BlF B 575 2,061
Increase in loan receivables el - (8,000)
Receipt from repayment of loan receivables W ZIFEUR B FUE 5,000 25,170
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, WEYZE -BERREZ
plant and equipment BftiZE (9,208) (3,053)
Cash outflow arising from investment KRER—BaEbEEEZ
in a joint venture REMEH (243) -
Cash (outflow)/inflow arising from HENBABRELZRE
disposal of subsidiaries R /S RmA (4) 10
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED BREES (FRA) Fri
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFRE (4,528) 14,136
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE_Z - _FHA=+HLEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

2022 2021
—Eg-— —E-
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFATT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEEHFIFRERE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of new ordinary BIIMESBRZITEHIEFEE

shares, net - 56,259
(Repayment to)/advances from m—ENE AR ZIFERKER

non-controlling shareholders of RERK S GBR) B®

a subsidiary and its related parties, net FEE (15,452) 1,129
New bank borrowings raised EEEMLRTEES 23,053 6,655
Decrease in amounts due to directors FE{IE B RIE R D (1,796) (1,198)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAR (1,764) (988)
Proceeds from non-convertible bonds RETAMERES ZFIEMIE 8,900 -
Repayment of non-convertible bonds BEFTRRES (19,319) (30,797)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERRTEE (16,234) (10,458)
Interest paid BEHE (2,411) (4,792)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED RMEES FrA) Fri8

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REFEE (25,023) 15,810
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN HERREEEW RL)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EINEEE (20,930) 20,260
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 4 b BB SR B RO A 2,517 1,173
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FNRERFEEEY

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 23,411 1,978
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRREKRFEEEY

AT END OF YEAR 4,998 23,411
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

EZZTFNB=+HIEFE  For the year ended 30 September 2022

GENERAL INFORMATION

Global Strategic Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands. The address of its principal place of
business is Room 803, 8/F, Wanchai Central Building, 89
Lockhart Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares
are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange and with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting year of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting years
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZ

T2 FHAA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of Going Concern

As at 30 September 2022, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$51,022,000 and the Group
had capital commitments amounting to HK$30,353,000 as
disclosed in note 46. The Group was also in default of non-
convertible bonds of HK$350,000 as of 30 September 2022.

These events and conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties which may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to realise
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

The directors have estimated the Group’s cash requirements
by preparing a cashflow forecast of the Group for the eighteen
months period ending 31 March 2024. Mr. Wu Guoming (“Mr.
Wu”), a shareholder and a director of the Company, and Mr.
Wang Wenzhou (“Mr. Wang”), a director of the Company, as at
30 September 2022, have agreed to provide sufficient funds
to the Group so that the Group will be able to meet all current
obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable future. Mr.
Wu and Mr. Wang both agreed to pledge their properties as
collaterals, if necessary, to borrow funds to provide financial
support to the Group.

Near the end of the reporting period, the bondholders with
principal amount of HK$3,850,000 have signed letters of intent
with the Company agreeing to further extend the maturity date
to 30 September 2024. Subsequent to 30 September 2022,
the bonds with principal amount of HK$3,850,000 have been
renewed with maturity date extended to 30 September 2024.

MRBUEE =
BEGE R

RIEZZHFNB=1TH &xEBZR
BEEBBERHEES1,022,0008
T R IR 46PN AEBNE
S & £30,353,00058 70 o AEE IR
BEZ__FAA=+HHBXAA
P& E25350,00078 7T

ZEFMHRBRBRTEEERTETE
Mo RREHAERFECERNESE
HEEPERHEEREREAGEN
FENEEERRERE

EECDABAREAEREEE T Y
F=B=+—HI+ /@A HBNIR
ERERARMTAERNREE R
N ZEZZFNAA=1TH AREKRE
RESZERALYE (TREE)) REAA
BEEEXALRE (TEEE) BERE
MAEEERAEES UELREELE
FEMN T TE R KRR EANPRA B AR
B REERTREHRENR ML ER
RHRENMEFRERD UEAES
AAEEREN B

BRiL ¥R &5 HASK » A& %8 433,850,0007%
THESHBEACEAATEERH
R BFARE—FTRIBRAEREZZ
ZHFEAB=+H-RIEZZFNA
=—+HB% K& %43,850,0008TH
BECEWMER JPREEES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of Going Concern (Continued)

The directors of the Company therefore consider it appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these
consolidated financial statements on the basis that Mr. Wu
and Mr. Wang have agreed to provide continuous financial
support to the Group. Should the Group be unable to operate
as a going concern in the foreseeable future, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying value of the
Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities that might arise, and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively. The effect of these adjustments have not
been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning
on or after 1 October 2021 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 16 ~ COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEAB=+HIEFEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

HE_Z_—

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from (i)
accounting for changes in the basis for determining
contractual cash flows of financial assets, financial
liabilities and lease liabilities as modifications, and (ii)
discontinuing hedge accounting when an interest rate
benchmark is replaced by an alternative benchmark rate
as a result of the reform of interbank offered rates (“IBOR
reform”).

The amendments do not have an impact on these
financial statements as the group does not have contracts
that are indexed to benchmark interest rates which are
subject to the IBOR reform.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

B FBERRMIEE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The Group previously applied the practical expedient
in HKFRS 16 such that as lessee it was not required to
assess whether rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic were lease
modifications, if the eligibility conditions are met (see
note 4(f)). One of these conditions requires the reduction
in lease payments affect only payments originally due on
or before a specified time limit. The 2021 amendment
extends this time limit from 30 June 2021 to 30 June
2022.

The Group has adopted the 2021 amendment in this
financial year. The amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group as the
Group does not have any rent concessions that were
previously ineligible for the practical expedient because
of the original time limit and accounted for as lease
modifications, become eligible.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022
3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. FRHEET R
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING RS ZER =

STANDARDS (Continued)

(b)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b)

effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 October 2021.
and revised HKFRSs include the following which may be

relevant to the Group.
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Combination — Reference to the ERESH - SERREDR 2 —HF—H

Conceptual Framework
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property,
Plant and Equipment: Proceeds

before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous

Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements —
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors — Definition of
Accounting Estimates
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b)
effective (Continued)

]:“, n\w ¥ﬁ I!:I- & :%g(é
wEER &

BT ERME

EEMERRERZHETREE
SIEARAMBREER (7

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or

after

RTH BB ZE

MMz Gt AR EN

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes BB G stZER|E 1258 (B5TAR) Fri8H — 1 January 2023

- Deferred Tax Related to Assets B-RZMEENEEKREENERM 2 =-%F—HF—H
and Liabilities Arising from a Single IR 1B

Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification &A@ 5t %85
of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current 93484 7 Eh sl JE 7 &f
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
Presentation of Financial Statements 5 —
— Classification by the Borrower of a BN ERERN DA
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment

on Demand Clause

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Leases —
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback #&

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture

ZERF285% (BFT4)

HENESE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments to standards is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZ

T2 FHAA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are

disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 30 September. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
" “HEAB=1+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

HE_ZS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net assets
of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve relating
to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

BRI ERRMIEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

Consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
" “HEAB=1+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

HE_ZS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and
any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
the costs are incurred and the services are received.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair
values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
sum of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUSs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two
or more parties have joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control. Relevant activities are activities that
significantly affect the returns of the arrangement. When
assessing joint control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if

the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHhA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint
venture. A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is a joint
arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. The Group has assessed the type of each
of its joint arrangements and determined them to all be
joint ventures.

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the joint venture in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill, which
is included in the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - _FHAA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEGHHEE @
(Continued)
(c) Joint arrangements (Continued) (c) BEZRH (&

The Group’s share of a joint venture’s post-acquisition REETEELENKRHEREBR

profits or losses and other comprehensive income is Ko B fih & UK & R P Ak BV 15 BB TE

recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss GEETRHMEZERERPE
=J]

and other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its
interest in the joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint venture), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the joint venture. If the
joint venture subsequently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after
its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture that
results in a loss of joint control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
joint venture and (ii) the Group’s entire carrying amount
of that joint venture (including goodwill) and any related
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in
an associate, the Group continues to apply the equity
method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of joint ventures have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHhA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Foreign currency translation

()

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is the
Company’s presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”).
The directors consider that choosing HK$ as the
presentation currency best suits the needs of the
shareholders and investors.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting year. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in term of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rate ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the entity initially
recognised such non-monetary assets or liabilities.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHAA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (Continueq)

(i)

(i)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements (Continued)

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

BRI ERRMIEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (Continueq)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

BRI ERRMIEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

2.5% - 20%
20% — 33"/5%
12.5% — 33"/5%
20% - 60%
20% - 25%

5% - 20%

10% - 20%

Buildings

Computer system and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles

Pipeline and equipment

Plant and machinery

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending
installation, is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are
available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHhA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether

the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or

contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to

control the use of an identified asset for a period of time

in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where

the customer has both the right to direct the use of

the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the

economic benefits from that use.

()

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets which, for the Group are primarily car parking
spaces. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHAA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Leases (Continued)

()

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting year in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHhA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Leases (Continued)

()

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

When the Group obtains ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term upon exercising purchase options, the cost
of the relevant right-of-use assets and the related
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss are
transferred to property, plant and equipment.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is
a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When
the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - _FHAA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Leases (Continued)

()

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case
the lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification. The only exceptions are any rent
concessions which arose as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied
the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS
16. In such cases, the Group took advantage of
the practical expedient not to assess whether the
rent concessions are lease modifications, and
recognised the change in consideration as negative
lease payments in profit or loss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_—

FNB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Intangible assets

()

(i)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting year,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

BRI ERRMIEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

Intangible assets (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods comprises
all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised. When the contract includes
a significant financial component, the contract balance
includes interest accrued under the effective interest

method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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T "HFAA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)]

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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B FBERRMIEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)]

(k)

U]

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable,

non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is

including any

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

Trade and bills receivables, other receivables, loan
receivables and bond receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

(o)

(p)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”).

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings and bonds

Borrowings and bonds are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings and bonds are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

BRI ERRMIEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(r)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes VAT or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from sales of steel support axial force servo
system is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been delivered
to the customer’s specified location (delivery), and
the agreed service performed. Following delivery,
the customer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to the customer as this represents the
point in time at which the right to consideration becomes
unconditional, as only the passage of time is required

before payment is due.

Revenue from pipeline installation services is recognised
at a point in time when the installation completed and
the government inspected and issued approval report.
Payment for installation services is not due from the
customer until the installation services are complete.

4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHhA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

The performance obligation of sale of natural gas through
pipelines to the customer are satisfied over time as the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits of the natural gas provided by the Group as
it performs, therefore, revenue arising from the sale of
natural gas through pipelines is recognised over time. The
revenue from sale of natural gas is based on the price as
set out by the government.

The Group provides leasing of steel support axial force
servo system and related installation services and
technology support to customer. Leasing income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term
in accordance with the accounting policy in note 4(f).
Installation services and technology support services
income are recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits of these services
provided by the Group as it performs.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) (recycling) that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.

Leasing income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

BRI ERRMIEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

®

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

BRI ERRMIEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

(u)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group
to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,

construction or production of qualifying assets, which

are assets that necessarily take a substantial period

of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are

capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the

temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

BRI ERRMIEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

Borrowing costs (Continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the year, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. Any specific
borrowing that remain outstanding after the related asset
is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHhA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and joint venture, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting year and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting year. Deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

BRI ERRMIEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting year, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

BRI ERRMIEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment
and where an asset is impaired, it is written down as
an expense through the consolidated statement of
profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount
is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use and the
fair value less costs of disposal of the individual asset or
the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/
CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse
the impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

BRI ERRMIEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, loan receivables
and bond receivables. The amount of ECLs is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and
bills receivables. The ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECLs that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to

a financial instrument. In contrast,

result from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

AA TSR R MIEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which the
Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant
think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
core operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, E
(Continued)
(x) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (x)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

= significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHhA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - _FHAA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for
the purposes of assessing the financial instrument
for impairment. In assessing whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee contracts, the Group
considers the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI ERRMIEE

HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default (Continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the

counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - _FHAA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade and bills receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As
for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at
the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the
exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the
reporting date, together with any additional amounts
expected to be drawn down in the future by default
date determined based on historical trend, the Group’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHhA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. For a
lease receivable, the cash flows used for determining the
ECLs is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring
the lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of
the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss
allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that
the Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor
or any other party.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

4.

BEGHHEE @

EMEERE &

FHIEEEIRZ A BERER (&

TREEZRREEBERRE
BNRNEAEBZAGHNRSE
MERAEEES WA R
THE BRERETERNERKE) =~
BB EZ G E - i E & B UER W
Mme > RESBVHRSENS
1658 ANETEHEMEEREZ
ReREWARtEHERIR
MZRERE—He

MY BRFESOMS > BRRE
RERTIEZGRR ~EEER
REFHANBORFLIR BH
BEERBAEERBAMELRE
BEEZ AR A& B A
BREABHEAXEAEMS
W Z AR ]88 o

it E—¥R SRR Al = 5 B2 A
EHEMEEEEEEZ A
ESMIAZEREFE MEA
BEOHERESTBNGEHE
HEEBERZKN xEBNE
AR E HHIR12E R FAIEERES
BZHARTEERERRE &
ERBIEENEERI -

FEBREBEnTREIBAESRT
BZBENRDNER LEBE
BREERBEERAEREEREE

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F3#R

111



112

VA=A
T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

AA SRR MIEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

()

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - _FHhA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

=

ESTIMATES

(i)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (i) FERT

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have

5. XFEFIENREKRMEE

sTEUER B Z X B H

TREBEHERE EFEMFH
TIHGREMBRRERZNIE

the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in BEREBAZEZHE (RF&E

the consolidated financial statements (apart from those
involving estimates, which are dealt with below).

(a) Going concern basis (a)

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity
of which depends upon measures taken by the
directors to improve the Group’s financial position,
cash flows and profitability and the financial
supports from two directors of the Company, at
a level sufficient to finance the working capital
requirements of the Group as explained in note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Consolidation of entity with less than 50% (b)
equity interest holding

Although the Group owns less than 50% of the
equity interest in EEMEHRXRAAFNBEERLE
(Yichang Biaodian Natural Gas Utilisation Co. Ltd.)
(“Yichang Biaodian”), Yichang Biaodian is treated as
a subsidiary because the Group is able to control
the relevant activities of Yichang Biaodian as a result
of the shareholders’ agreement among the Group
and other shareholders of Yichang Biaodian. The
assessment on the control is set out in note 23(a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI ERRMIEE

HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(i)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in accounting policy as disclosed
in note 4(x), ECL are measured as an allowance
equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or
lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset
moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does
not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of
an asset has significantly increased the Group takes
into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable
and supportable forward-looking information.

Joint control assessment

The Group holds 50% of voting rights of its joint
arrangement of I ITRIBRARTFBERAE]
(“f3I3R18”). The directors have determined that
the Group has joint control over the arrangement
as under the contractual agreement, it appears that
unanimous consent is required from all parties to the
agreement for all relevant parties.

Joint arrangement of limited company

The Group’s joint arrangement of & TJRIE is
structured as limited company and provide the
Group and the party to the agreement with rights
to the net assets of the limited company under
the arrangement. Therefore, the Directors have
determined that #;IJRIE is classified as joint
venture of the Group.
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AA TSR R MIEE

FEAB=+HIEFEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other

key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the

reporting year, that have a significant risk of causing a

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed

below.

(a)

Depreciation and impairment on property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. The Group will
revise the depreciation charge where useful lives
and residual values are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FNB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

HE_Z_—

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(a)

Depreciation and impairment on property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

The Group assesses whether property, plant and
equipment and construction in progress have
any indication of impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy. The recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment have been
determined based on value in use calculations
of each CGU the property, plant and equipment
belonged, which requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are stated at costs less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgment and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the
case of value in use, the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections
and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the assets belongs. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the recoverable amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FNB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Depreciation and impairment on property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
(Continued)

Reversal of impairment losses of HK$21,012,000
and HK$178,000 (2021: Nil) were recognised
for the year ended 30 September 2022 to
increase the carrying amount of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to
the recoverable amount of the CGUs belonged
respectively. The carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as
at 30 September 2022 was HK$121,577,000 and
HK$3,495,000 respectively (2021: HK$112,246,000
and HK$2,055,000 respectively).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in
several jurisdictions. Significant estimates are
required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

During the year ended 30 September 2022,
income tax of HK$3,450,000 was charged (2021:
HK$643,000 credit) to profit or loss based on the
estimated assessable profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(c) Amortisation and impairment on intangible

assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation for the Group’s intangible
assets. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite, based on
the expected usage and technical obsolescence
from the changes in the market demands or
services output from the assets. Intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised over the
expected useful economic lives and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible assets may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method
for the intangible assets with a finite useful life are
reviewed by the management at least at the end of
each reporting year. The Group assesses whether
any indication of impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of
intangible assets have been determined based on
value in use calculations of each CGU the intangible
assets belonged which requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value.

Reversal of impairment loss of HK$16,565,000
(2021:
September 2022. The carrying amount of intangible
assets at 30 September 2022 was HK$80,976,000
(2021: HK$71,031,000).

Nil) was recognised for the year ended 30
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

Impairment of trade and bill receivables,
other receivables, loan receivables and bond
receivables

The management of the Group estimates the
amount of impairment loss for ECL on trade and
bills receivables, other receivables, loan receivables
and bond receivables based on the credit risk of
these receivables. The amount of the impairment
loss based on ECL model is measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected, or
being revised downward due to changes in facts
and circumstances, a material impairment loss may
arise.

As at 30 September 2022, the carrying amounts of
trade and bills receivables were HK$5,849,000, net
of allowance for trade receivables of HK$7,501,000
(2021: HK$6,576,000, net of allowance for trade
receivables of HK$6,264,000) and HK$3,071,000,
net of allowance for bills receivables of HK$152,000
(2021: Nil) respectively.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d) Impairment of trade and bill receivables,
other receivables, loan receivables and bond
receivables (Continued)

As at 30 September 2022, the carrying amount
of prepayments, deposits and other receivables
was HK$8,073,000, net of allowance for other
receivables of HK$23,000 (2021: HK$13,794,000,
net of allowance for other receivables of
HK$11,000).

As at 30 September 2022, the carrying amount of
bond receivables was nil, net of allowance for bond
receivables of HK$10,935,000 (2021: Nil, net of
allowance for bond receivables of HK$10,935,000).

As at 30 September 2021, the carrying amount
of loan receivables was HK$4,310,000, net of
allowance for loan receivables of HK$1,138,000.

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHhA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk
as some of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the Group entities such as United States
dollars (“US$”) and HK$. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

At 30 September 2022, if RMB had weakened 10%
against the HK$ with all other variables held constant,
consolidated profit after tax for the year would have been
HK$2,012,000 lower (2021: consolidated loss after tax
for the year would have been HK$425,000 higher), arising
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange loss on non-
convertible bonds and other payables denominated in
HK$, but partly offset by deposits and other receivables
and bank and cash balances denominated in HKS$. If
RMB had strengthened 10% against HK$ with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax for
the year would have been HK$2,012,000 higher (2021:
consolidated loss after tax for the year would have been
HK$425,000 lower), arising mainly as a result of the
foreign exchange gain on non-convertible bonds and
other payables denominated in HK$, but partly offset
by deposits and other receivables and bank and cash
balances denominated in HK$.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

BRI ERRMIEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

(b)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily trade and bills receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group

considers to have low credit risk.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 89% (2021:
85%) of the total trade and bills receivables at gross were
due from the Group’s four (2021: three) largest customers
as at 30 September 2022, of which 34% (2021: 45%)
came from the largest customer of the Group and all of
the customers are located in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

6.

HEEEEIE @

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F#R

e

EERBIVIERE FHRAREE
TEREMIAXETREMNIET
ZEEMERTHBERZAR -
FERZEERH (EE/RWK
BRRMKZER) UKBEZH
(BEREBETREMEBEZZ
FNERZ RAMER TR fE
HEREERR AEEEEZ
HRERREEEVEEZEER
RERER TEHREFSRER
H RS BRI BT ERBE
BRI RERMEE AL
AEEDBBEERBRE-

R _H#HNB=+H>&&
BEEEEETARK  REE89%
(ZEBE-—4% :85%) EINE 3

AR ZEEELERBE RE
BEO(ZE-2F =) KEF
ZHRIE HAB34% (ZEZ—4 .

A5%) KRB EAEBERAETEER
FrEERHURNTEAREANR
(TR EEy) ©



iR E MR ERARMIEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHhA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade and bills receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade and bills receivables are
due within 180 days from the date of billing. Debtors
with balances that are more than 3 to 6 months
past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
and bills receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FNB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

S —

(i)

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBRMRER @
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERK #&)
Trade and bills receivables (Continued) () ERESRZEER (&
The following table provides information about the TREINR_Z2Z-_FNA
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade —t+HAEEREREZR
and bills receivables as at 30 September 2022: FEREFEERZEERRE K
FBHEESEENER
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHARS I8 =X IREARE E5iEEE
% HK$’000 HK$’000
% FET TAT
2022 —E—C
Current (not past due) BRER (ki HER) 4.72% 6,058 286
1-90 days past due #HA1—90H 12.55% 2,523 317
91-180 days past due #HA91 —180H 17.09% 372 64
181-366 days past due #EA181—366H 18.06% 773 139
More than 366 days past due %R HB8366H 100.00% 6,847 6,847
16,573 7,653
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FTERARS 1B =X IRmE4EE Es BB
% HK$’000 HK$’000
% FET FET
2021 B %
Current (not past due) BOER (ki HER) 3.52% 2,689 94
1-90 days past due #EA1—90H 7.59% 4,066 308
91-180 days past due #HA91 —180H 11.08% 25 3
181-366 days past due #HA181—366H 14.97% 237 36
More than 366 days past due i EfEi8366H 100.00% 5,823 5,823
12,840 6,264
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BRI ERRMIEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade and bills receivables (Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past three years. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the year over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group’s view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect
of trade and bills receivables during the year is as
follows:

6.

HEEEEIE @

(b) EER

(i)

% (&)

BB G RAREE (&
FEHEBREDLREBBEE=F
Z2ERBEBELRBH ZFE
EEESEHBAREURMER
EESLEBEZEEZLBER
T~ E AR I R A i R
W BR TR FE R HA 2 AR R
ZH T ER

FREKRESERNRZEZ
BREEEREEHINT !

2022 2021

—E”C TET—fF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET TAT

At beginning of the year REH] 6,264 4,424
Allowance recognised FREREE

for the year 1,823 2,200

Write-off b=t - (659)

Exchange differences bR =R (434) 299

At end of year RER 7,653 6,264

The loss allowance increased in 2022 because
of slow settlement from customers causing to
balances long outstanding and increase in days
past due over 1 year resulted in an increase in loss
allowance.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

- "HFABZ=Z+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022
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BRI ERRMIEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

Bond receivables, loan receivables, deposits
and other receivables and due from a related
party

The Group transacts only with recognised and
loan
receivables, deposits and other receivables and due
from a related party are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

creditworthy third parties. Bond receivables,

The credit quality of the financial assets included
in bond receivables, loan receivables, deposits and
other receivables and due from a related party is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past
due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
quality of the financial assets is considered to be
“doubtful”.

6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_—

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

FNB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

6. MHEERAMRERE @

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERAMKE &)

(i) Bond receivables, loan receivables, deposits (i) FEWES BREZ EE
and other receivables and due from a related REMEKRZDREK—%5
party (Continued) R B IE (&)

The loss allowance account in respect of bond and EREWRESERER L2

loan receivables, deposits and other receivables To ELAth 2 U B =0 L e g W —

and due from a related party during the year is as Z R B BIERER
follows: BUF

Deposits Due from

Loan Bond and other a related

receivables receivables receivables party

BERHEM FEl—%

e &S FEUe B % FEMRTR  BAEEATUIE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET FAET FHET

At 1 October 2020 RZE-_ZF+5—H 1,017 10,935 700 -

Allowance recognised for the year ERXHEZ B 1,138 - - 22

Reversals #[a] (1,017) - (724) -

Exchange differences ERERE - - 35 -

At 30 September 2021 and RIBZ-FAB=+HK

1 October 2021 —2_—%+B—H 1,138 10,935 11 22

Allowance recognised for the year E R & - - 13 6

Reversals #[a] (1,173) - - -

Exchange differences ERESR 35 - (1) (1)

At 30 September 2022 RIZEZZFAB=1+H - 10,935 23 27

The management of the Group assessed the risk of
default based on both quantitative and qualitative
information on hand after initial recognition. Based
on their assessment, there was a significant
increase in the loss allowance in bond receivables
because of the increase in default risk that certain
bond receivables have been overdue since maturity
as they have financial difficulty to repay or the
debtor has been under litigation process.

AEBREEEENBES
BIEAETEREMLERT
HEORR BERREFZ
i BARETERVRESES
BAMBRNEHEUEENRE
BACEATAEFMEH
ZENRBREN BBRES
B 1R B R R RGN

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 4 $8 127



iR MR ERARMIEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. MFEEREIR »

(c) Liquidity risk (c) REINEZEE
AEBZHRATHAGEZNEAR
FERREBESE R URBER
TRZESHERCSEERRE
Az R#sESEK-

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

FEBEREERESORKR
REREAEZFBHINUMT ¢

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows:

128

Total
Less than Between Between undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flows
RER
DRME 1-26F 2-56 RERBAHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET THET THET
At 30 September 2022 WZE--#hB=+H
Trade payables FINEZE N 1,145 - - 1,145
Accruals and other payables fEst & A R E AT BR R 38,651 3,209 - 41,860
Lease liabilities HE&®E 1,678 659 632 2,969
Due to related parties e BB 5 FB 9,888 - - 9,888
Due to directors EEETE 1,142 - - 1,142
Non-convertible bonds AR ES 9,232 1,132 9,753 20,117
Due to non-controlling EN—EREARZ
shareholders of a subsidiary FEERIRERK
and its related parties HEAM 508 - 27,344 - 27,344
Bank borrowings RITEE 4,132 4,511 18,180 26,823
65,868 36,855 28,565 131,288
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

(c)

B FBERRMIEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MHFEMER @
Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REEZEMRE (&)
The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted AEEBTHEBERESORMIER
cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows: RERSHEZHBE2MAOT -
(Continued) (#)
Total
Less than Between Between  undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flows
REHIR
DRE 1-28F 2-5% BeREBE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET TET FHET
At 30 September 2021 RZEZ—-FhB=+H
Trade payables ENEZERER 873 - - 873
Accruals and other payables FEsT & A R E T ER R 49,804 - - 49,804
Lease liabilities HEERE 1,500 454 - 1,954
Due to related parties FES BN H FIB 1,218 - - 1,218
Due to directors N EEHRE 3,011 - - 3,011
Non-convertible bonds AR ES 27,526 - - 27,526
Due to non-controlling EN—ERBARZ
shareholders of a subsidiary FEFERR AR R
and its related parties HEFH A8 44,423 44,423
Bank borrowings RITEE 8,829 9,356 1,278 19,463
92,761 54,233 1,278 148,272

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBREE B RA R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. UHRAMKRERE @
(d) Interest rate risk (d) FZERE
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly AEBZRERENERARETE
concentrated on the fluctuation of benchmark interest EPRAEBRUAREFEZS
rate of the People’s Bank of China arising from the FRTBEELEZFEHARIET
Group’s certain bank borrowings denominated in RMB. HEREFH o
Other than bank borrowing mentioned above, the Group’s ﬁ%\tﬁfﬁﬁfﬁgﬁl\ 7 EE B B IR
loan and bond receivables, non-convertible bonds, ERKkES FOBRES BT
certain bank borrowings and other borrowings bear ‘i‘EﬁTE s REMEE S ZEEF
interest at fixed interest rate and therefore are subject to EHE o RAILLEBAFEANER
fair value interest rate risk. fg o
The Directors consider the Group’s exposure to interest EENALAEERERBEZNERAR
rate risk is not significant and therefore no sensitivity AR E K [E I AR SR E
analysis has been prepared. DT
(e) Categories of financial instruments at 30 September (e) MAB=+HzZz&RIAEDE
2022 2021
—E-C —E - —4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFAET
Financial assets: EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost G IH A AFIR Z S RAE E 16,295 37,208
Financial liabilities: EHMAaRE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost Z#IHM AR EREE 121,684 144,562

(f)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

(f)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - _FHhA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

7. REVENUE

(a) Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
by major products or service line for the year is as

follows:

BRERNTEEMNRFEEEKE
EREHNZW@EDWT :

2022 2021
—EF %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FE&T
Revenue from contracts with EHBMFEREERF15588E
customers within the scope RAKBEEZRGHZIE
of HKFRS 15
Disaggregated by major products 1#+ B & R el IRFS 42 21D
or service lines
— Sales of natural gas —HERAR 120,162 57,558
— Sales of steel support axial —IHENZIE#HIEIRAR
force servo system 5,787 -
— Rendering of services — RS 6,482 5,871
— Commission income N 20 140
132,451 63,569
Revenue from other sources H & E > I
- Leasing income —HAEWA 3,790 7,917
136,241 71,486
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHAA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

7. REVENUE continued)

(a)

(b)

7.

W= &

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (a) W=D &
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods KEBRRMUTEZERE TG
and services over time and at a point in time in the BEEEENE—FEMNERE R
following major product lines and geographical regions: AR EF W !
Sales of steel Provision of
support axial force technology Independent
Sales of natural gas servo systems Pipeline installation services support services financial advisory Total
BEXAR BERLBUNAREG ERRERE RERHTERYE BUHBER it
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
“®-CF - Z¥-CE "B_-F C®-CE % Z¥-CE CB--F ¥ “TC-f T®ICE CB°-f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TEn TR TR TR TR TR AR TR TR
Primary geographical ~ TEHETH
markets
- The PRC except ~HE (FREER)
Hong Kong 120,162 57,558 5,787 - 4,431 3,276 2,045 2,59 - - 132,431 63,429
- Hong Kong -&% - - - - - - - - 20 140 2 140
Revenue from external RENIEE 2 Wi
customers 120,162 57,658 5,787 - 4,437 3,276 2,045 2,59 20 140 132,451 63,569
Timing of revenue WBERRE
recognition
Products transferred at ~ RE-BHREBZ
apoint in time ER - - 5,787 - 4,431 3276 - - 20 140 10,244 3416
Products and services BEEELZERR
transferred over time % 120,162 57,658 - - - - 2,045 2,59 - - 122,207 60,153
Total fast 120,162 57,558 5,787 - 4,431 3,276 2,045 2,59 20 140 132,451 63,569
Transaction price allocated to the remaining (b) AEEHREFEFSNRTEROEME

performance obligation for contracts with customers

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 such that the Group need
not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the
effects of a significant financing component if the Group
expects, at contract inception, that the period between
when the Group transfers a promised good or service to
a customer and when the customer pays for that good or
service will be one year or less.

The Group has also applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts for
provision of technology support services such that the
Group need not disclose the information about revenue
that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the
remaining performance obligations. The Group recognises
the revenue at the amount to which it has a right to
invoice, which corresponds directly to the value to the
customer of the Group’s performance completed to date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hfthig A
2022 2021
= - —E 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
Bank interest income HRITH B WA 35 4
Interest income from loan to REFE=ZFER
third parties FEUWA 91 1,719
Government grants (note) BT Al (BT 5E) 453 788
Others HAth 383 118
962 2,629
Note: During the year, the Group recognised government grants of et RAFEER ZAEBERDBNM®
approximately HK$443,000 (2021: HK$520,000) relating to BE#9443,0008 7T (ZEZ—F
Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong 520,000 7t) > BE BB R2019
government in respect of COVID-19. The remaining government BRFEFHMEENGFRMESEE
grants represented government subsidy granted to enterprise, BB THENHAENBEARE
which had fulfilled certain requirements such as employing BFIEMEZEMBNRAFTEET
specific number of staff members (2021: engaging in research HE BINEAREHENTIEAER
and development activities, duly paid taxes in previous years and (ZEBEZ—F  {EMAREFH - PB
use of IT to support its business), by the local government of the AFEREARRNBEARES
region that the subsidiary operates. BEDR)) 2 ERENBATMHE) -
9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. Hfthim K518
2022 2021
S - —E T4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR W= (MT5E43(a))
(note 43(a)) 141 52
Loss on written off of property, WM E BB MR EEE
plant and equipment (2) -
Others Hh - 2
139 54

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IEIRERRERB AR AT ANNUAL REPORT 2022 £ R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

EZZTFNB=+HIEFE  For the year ended 30 September 2022

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has three (2021: three) operating segments as

follows:

Natural gas operations - including investment in natural gas
projects, sales of natural gas,
natural gas cooking appliance
and accessories and pipeline
installation

Sales and leasing - including sales and services

business* rendered from leasing of steel
support axial force servo
system and technology support

Independent financial — including services rendered from

advisory independent financial advisory

and insurance brokerage
business

The name of this segment was “leasing business” prior to 30
September 2021. The name was changed due to the recent
business expansion.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include amounts
for unallocated corporate expenses, certain other income,
other gains and losses, reversal of allowance/allowance for
certain deposits, other receivables and loan receivables,
finance costs and income tax. Segment assets do not include
bank and cash balances and unallocated assets. Segment
liabilities do not include non-convertible bonds, some other
borrowings and unallocated liabilities. Segment non-current
assets do not include deposits for acquisitions.

10. S EE

AEEZZECZEZ—F: =@ K&
DEWTE

RARES — BEREXARE
B HEXAR
RARRIRE KB
HFUREBRE
HERHEE — CENBEENXE
ES #7718 AR & 47 K
iz kR EZ
HE KRR
B - BEBYMBEEM
B RIRBRE I ET
RMHZRE

- RIBZ-FAA=+THZA Z%
Br2BRHEER - ETHE
BiER WEHZLRIFHENR -

AEBZAIBREDEBRERREE®R
RRFZ R EFEL -HNEFER
BETEAEMEHEHERE &0

EBILEE

MEDBZ G BERAGEHMB®RE
MY SE4PR AL E FRR) o 23 BB IE F A 1R
WAEERDEEERASZ  ETHEMIK
ANHthRm REE S TEE - Hit
FE W IR AR R FE W B R s i B,
MBERARPAIERZER - DHEEL
TEERTRREEHFEURRDESR
EenElaETNaEFRRES
ETHMEBERKRDEERE DEIFR
HEEUTERERBERZES-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= ——

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as

if the sales or transfers were to third parties,

(a)

i.e. at current

FNB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

10. D EE

SNy

$$H%ﬁﬁﬁ B8N & K s 5Bk I8 a0
FHENEEMF =7 BAIZETH

market prices. 1251) EH ©
Information about operating segment profit or loss, (a) BEHAKESHER - BEEKRER
assets and liabilities: ZEM
Sales and Independent
Natural gas leasing financial
operations business advisory Total
ARRER  HERHEEER 1L M R @
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TAT TAT THET
Year ended HE-ZT--F
30 September 2022 NB=1+HILEE
Revenue from external KRENPE L 2 Wa
customers 124,599 11,622 20 136,241
Segment profit/(loss) AEEF/ (E518) 38,439 (1,989) 851 37,301
Interest revenue FIE Wz 29 6 - 35
Interest expense FERE (1,034) (82) - (1,116)
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #& K #4H (9,526) (2,151) - (11,677)
Net foreign exchange gain R EE 136 - - 136
Other material non-cash items:  EtEAIFFHEER :
Share of loss of a joint venture  EfE—FIAE ¥ (49) - - (49)
Reversal of impairment loss on )% = K& RE
property, plant and equipment  E5#8# ol 21,012 - - 21,012
Reversal of impairment loss on  {ER#EE ER{EEE
right-of-use assets & 178 - - 178
Reversal of impairment loss on &/ & E Bi{EEEEE
intangible assets 16,565 - - 16,565
Reversal of allowance/ EWESRARZEEE
(allowance) for trade and R/ (R
bills receivables 42 (1,865) - (1,823)
Allowance for deposits and Be R EMERERRURE
other receivables ®) @) = (6)
Allowance for due from e — B 5 B E
a related party - (6) - (6)
Additions to segment REDHERDEE
non-current assets 3,440 778 - 4,218
As at 30 September 2022 RZB-_Z&#hR=+H
Segment assets NEEE 201,082 29,682 8 230,772
Segment liabilities HHEE (114,207) (15,747) (10) (129,064)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

I &K

=1

10. 9 EEF @)

PHED EERER

(a) Information about operating segment profit or loss, (a) =
assets and liabilities: (Continued) Z2EM (&
Independent
Natural gas Leasing financial
operations business advisory Total
IRRER HEE® B SRR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET TET TET
Year ended HEZZ”_-F
30 September 2021 NB=1+HILEE
Revenue from external RENMBEE 2 e
customers 60,834 10,5612 140 71,486
Segment (loss)/profit A (518) /&7 (4,870) 3,196 (1,260) (2,934)
Interest revenue F S - 3 - 3
Interest expense FIEEY (2,157 - - (2,157)
Depreciation and amortisation 7 K84 (9,325) (1,968) - (11,293)
Net foreign exchange gain R a3 8 130 - - 130
Other material non-cash items: HMEAJFREER :
Impairment loss on goodwil AL - - (580) (580)
(Allowance)/reversal of allowance fEI & R (Bfs) /
for trade receivables g (49) (2,152) 1 (2,200)
Reversal of allowance for e REMEWRIED
deposits and other receivables i #(a] 4 - - 4
Allowance for due from e — B8 AR B R
a related party - (22) - (22)
Additions to segment REDHERDEE
non-current assets 1,986 4,161 - 6,147
As at 30 September 2021 RZZ2-_-FhA=1+AH
Segment assets DHEE 182,423 26,748 15 209,186
Segment liabilities NEEE (126,379) (8,167) (935) (135,481)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - _FHhA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. B EPER @
(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or (b) SEPUEEEIIEEEER :
loss:
2022 2021
—E_C —E—fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT FAT
Revenue W=
Consolidated revenue FeWlm 136,241 71,486
Profit or loss B
Total profit or loss of reportable oREDPIEREE
segments 37,301 (2,934)
Unallocated amounts: PPl vt
General and administrative expenses —fR & 1TE L (23,369) (21,291)
Reversal of allowance/(allowance)  FEUR S E L/ (B H)
for loan receivables 1,173 (121)
(Allowance)/reversal of allowance &R EMEUWERT (BH)
for deposits and other receivables B & #:[a| (7) 720
Finance costs SR A (1,487) (2,047)
Other income HUgA 497 2,211
Other gains and losses Hi s & 518 23 52
Consolidated profit/(loss) before tax IR AT4R &% F,/ (B518) 14,131 (23,410)
Reconciliations of segment SHEERARHE
assets and liabilities:
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments  BI R &5 LA E E 230,772 209,186
Unallocated KnEe 9,085 36,057
Consolidated total assets REEEE 239,857 245,243
Liabilities aff
Total liabilities of reportable AREDHLERE
segments 129,964 135,481
Unallocated K 27,556 37,130
Consolidated total liabilities REEas 157,520 172,611
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or (b)

loss: (Continued)

Geographical information

All of the Group’s revenue and non-current assets by

location of customers or by location of assets are within

the PRC, including Hong Kong.

(c) Revenue from major customers:

(c)

An analysis of revenue from major customers which

account for 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue is

10. 9 EEF @)

DEMmEEm AR . (@)

HEFH

BERFEMNIREEMREME
DZAEBERER@mKRIFABE
EHURTE 8FEES-

RKEXFEZRZHE:

REFBEERZWE

(A& E

WE10%8 A E) 2 iR F ¢

as follows:

2022 2021
ZEICZHE —E—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TR
Customer A ZEA 18,859 -
Customer B ZFAB 16,985 -
Customer C ERC 14,287 11,233

Customer D ZFED 13,883
Customer E EFE - 9,926
Customer F ERF - 7,002

Each of the major customers represents a single external

customer whose transaction is generated from natural

gas operations segment (2021:

segment).

natural gas operations

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. B
2022 2021
—E__F B —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT TR
Interest on bank borrowings RITEERNE 1,116 1,900
Imputed interest on loans from JFERERRERAB Rt
non-controlling shareholders and BREHEEFNR
its related parties - 257
Interest on non-convertible bonds Aal R ESZFE 1,296 1,888
Interest on lease liabilities HEaGZHNE 191 159
2,603 4,204
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 12. FRiSMRAS  (K%)
Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as following: EREBEEPERZFAERNT
2022 2021
—E-C —E 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFATT
Current tax — the PRC BNEATRIE —
Provision for the year FREE 34 76
Deferred tax (note 39) RIEFRIE (F15E39) 3,416 (719)
3,450 (643)
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman lIslands, RBIEMEEE EED - EEHNREB
Samoa, Seychelles and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the BUHE ((RBEREES)) RAKE
Group is not subject to any income tax in these regions. o AEERZSHEBBEMNTR
(S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT”)
and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2021: 25%). Pursuant to relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC, the effective EIT rate for a
subsidiary which qualified as small and micro enterprises is
2.5% (for assessable profits below RMB1 million) for the period
from 1 January 2021 to 30 September 2022. No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the Group has
no assessable profit for the year ended 30 September 2022
(2021: Nil).

The reconciliation between the income tax expense/(credit) and
the product of profit/(loss) before tax multiplied by the PRC EIT
rate is as follows:

12.

FRSIRFAY  (E%) @&

BIEFEEEMER (TRXEMERL
EREEMBMIEBHEEA > P EM
BABINMEAE25% (ZE - —4F
25%)  IRFAPEBEREERER &
Ad%*ﬂzﬁ%ﬂ HH—REHEBARRC

T—E—A—HBEZZE"HFhA
:+E|HHF'%7EB PEFMEBRMES
2.5% (FEFEMAFENRAREI008
T CHRAEERBEEZZS -4
B=tHIFEUTEEFREZN =
T—F ) WBAEEEBEAER
o

FrEMmEs, (B%R) BBRenEs
(B518) SRUF R TCEMEREZEZ
HERUWT ¢

2022 2021
- —ET £
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAT TATT
Profit/(loss) before tax BrIATRF (B518) 14,131 (23,410)
Tax credit at PRC EIT rate A E R EPTERE25%
of 25% (2021: 25%) (Z2Z—F125%) 2
MIBIR R 3,533 (5,852)
Tax effect of expenses that are AEHMRSZHZ B E
not deductible 2,191 2,213
Tax effect of income not taxable RRBAZREEE (1,083) (634)
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary <FESEIRIBE 1B & B4
differences not recognised ERBIRBETE (2,402) 2,635
Utilisation of tax losses not BN SRl R RS 2 IR IR 18
previously recognised (748) (78)
Tax effect of tax concessions MIERE 2 MBEEE 72 (766)
Effect of different tax rates of REMBE AR ZHE AR
subsidiaries operating in other ZAEMEZHE
jurisdictions 1,887 1,839
Income tax expense/(credit) Frigiest / (&%) 3,450 (643)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

13. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 13. FAEF (E518)
The Group’s profit/(loss) for the year is stated after charging the REBZEREGH, (B58) 75 &M%
followings: MTEIERIIER:
2022 2021
- £
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT TATT
Amortisation of intangible assets mLBESE GrtAHEHER
(included in selling and ﬁ i) %:)
distribution costs) 2,899 2,876
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B4 B i B
- Audit service —BZRH 1,050 1,050
— Other services —H R 1,360 540
2,410 1,590
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERT 106,284 45,196
Depreciation of property, ME- -BERZEITE
plant and equipment 8,991 8,933
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEENE GtA—K&
assets (included in general TBZH)
and administrative expenses) 1,596 1,379
Loss on written off of property, WIEME BB MR EEE
plant and equipment 2 -
Impairment loss on goodwill mEREERE GtA—KK
(included in general and TEXE )
administrative expenses) - 580
Net exchange loss tERESIEEEE 2,975 916
14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. EEEGMHEX
2022 2021
—E-= —=-
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT TAT
Employee benefits expense EBEGHES (BIFEESHH) :
(including directors’ emoluments):
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e~ TEAL RoR Ry 11,378 13,903
Retirement benefit scheme RIREA] FTEIH R
contributions 561 552
Severance payments EWME 3 9
11,942 14,464

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHAA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (continuea)

One director (2021: one) is included in the five (2021: six)
highest paid individuals in the Group during the year. The

emoluments of the remaining four (2021: five) individuals during

the year are as follows:

14.

EBEERARBZ @

REFERNRERLR (CEZ—F
RN BReFMALTEE - (ZF
TF R EF-FRRGHNL (T
T —F 0% ALZEEWT

2022 2021
s B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBEIT

Salaries, allowances and e R ARBYEN
benefits in kind 3,088 5,189

Retirement benefit scheme RINEFFHEH R

contribution 69 81
3,157 5,270

Number of individuals

A
2022 2021
—EF B
The emoluments fell within AU UL TER !
the following bands:
Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 %1,000,0007 75 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TE
1,500,00078 7T = 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 8T E
2,000,000 75 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 TE
2,500,000 75 = -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 TE
3,000,000 7T = 1
4 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (continuea)

During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Group
to any of the five (2021: six) highest paid individuals or the

directors set out below as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS

14. EERIHEAXZ @

RARFEER > ARERIESHEMNIRK
RTFARG (CTEZ—F 1 75%) &l
ATHFXFHBESHR2ERM—BA
TOERRSIEFMAINMALREEH
B 82 SiIE R RER R 2 B o

15. EFZ @M EF =

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EHEME
The remuneration of each director is set out below: BEFZMEHAOT
30 September 2022
ZEZ”EhRA=+H
Retirement Total
Salaries and  benefit scheme directors’
Fees other benefits contributions emoluments
e HEREMEN BABEHFEI®R EXMERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Name of director EENS TAT TAT THET T#ERT
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Wu Guoming SEBLE - 120 6 126
Mr. Duan Fanfan BRI E - 120 6 126
Mr. Wang Wenzhou IXARE (THER)
(Chief Executive Officer) - 480 18 498
Independent non-executive BIUFHTES
directors
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin REXEE 120 - - 120
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun (note (a)) HEELE (W) 85 - - 85
Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky EANERL 120 - - 120
Total Bt 325 720 30 1,075
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S —

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

FEAB=+HIEFEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

DIRECTORS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(a)

15. EF 2@ RF=E &

EEME (&

30 September 2021

2T -FhA=+H
Retirement
Salaries and benefit scheme Total directors’
Fees other benefits contributions emoluments
we  HeEREMEN BREFFAER BExHeLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name of director ERMA FTER TET TET TET
Executive directors HiTESR
Mr. Wu Guoming SEBLE - 120 126
Mr. Duan Fanfan BANEE - 120 126
Mr. Wang Wenzhou IXAEE (TBUREH)
(Chief Executive Officer) - 480 18 498
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Mr. Leung Oh Man, Martin RENEE 120 - - 120
Mr. Sun Zhi Jun REELE 120 - - 120
Ms. Huang Yu Jun (note (b)) ,aaiﬁﬁi (GEL) 56 - - 56
Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky BANERL (Hi5Hc)
(note (c)) 35 - - 35
Total 45t 331 720 30 1,081
Notes: [

(a)

(o)

Mr. Sun Zhi Jun retired on 16 June 2022.

Ms. Huang Yu Jun retired on 19 March 2021.

Dr. Chung Ling Cheong Dicky was appointed on 16 June
2021.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

There was no payment of the performance related
incentive payments for both years.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IEKEREBBE AT ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F#
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF SEEZEMNKRF=E @
DIRECTORS (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EXEMNE &)
Saved as disclosed above, neither the chief executive nor fr EXFIEEIIN REEZS
any of the directors waived any emoluments during the T THFAB=tHLEFEfEER
year ended 30 September 2022 (2021: Nil). BITBABRERESHEEM

M (CTEZ—F 18-

(b) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (b) UEB -ZEFEERMBAESRE
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies ATHEANER HBELUERKRHE
corporate and connected entities 32 ZHE R
(i)  The information about loans, quasi-loans and iy AEDRBEERBNHEAT

other dealings entered into by the Company or MAABEELZZEBILEN
subsidiary undertaking of the Company in favour of SEGEE AT AT LM
a controlled body corporate of Mr. Wu Guoming, a ERHUBERKEMKZS
director of the Company, is as follows: HERNT :
As at 30 September 2022 N _E_FhA=4+H
Outstanding Maximum
amount Outstanding outstanding
Total at the amount amount Amount Provision
amount  beginning  at the end during due but  for doubtful
Name of the borrower payable  of the year  of the year the year not paid  debts made Term Interest rate Security
RENH RERH ERRK
BEALE EftfRmEE KEESE XEESE XEENE IBX(LE REEEE R GilES i

HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TET TERT

Quasi-loans or credit transactions
BUENAEERS

TEERERTIRERAT 1,706 2,596 1,706 2,596 1,706 (908) 180 days H Nil & Nil &
As at 30 September 2021 RZZEZ—HFhB=+H
QOutstanding Maximum
amount  Outstanding  outstanding
Total at the amount amount Amount Provision
amount beginning at the end during due but  for doubtful
Name of the borrower payable of the year of the year the year not paid  debts made Term  Interest rate Security
REH RERE ERRK
EEASHE BARTEE AHEELE FBRELE AEENE MBK(2H RERE il % i

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL TET TET TET TET TERL

Quasi-loans or credit transactions
BEYERAEERS
TEERERTIRERAT 2,59 - 2,596 5,079 2,596 (205) 180 days A Nil £ Nil &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

EFZEM KR @

(b) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (b) UEE -ZEWEIEKREESRE
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies ARHEANER BELUERKRHE
corporate and connected entities (Continued) MR ZHER &)

(i) The information about loans, quasi-loans and (iy X®RABHIEANTHHEAT
other dealings entered into by the Company or L;{ﬁ@ EEELEEEE S|
subsidiary undertaking of the Company in favour of EHERAT@mAGIIINE
connected entity of Mr. Wu Guoming, a director of FNELUERREMZZH
the Company, is as follows: BREoT
As at 30 September 2022 RZBE-ZFhB=+H

Outstanding Maximum
amount  Outstanding  outstanding
Total at the amount amount Provision
Nature of amount beginning at the end during  for doubtful
Name of the borrower connection payable  of theyear  of the year theyear  debtsmade  Term Interest rate Security
REN REXH EREA
REARTE RERE EfETEE KEEEE KEEEE KHENE REEE BB fE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAR TAR FER TAT
Quasi-loans or credit
transactions
BUERAEERS
Wu Xiachen Son of Mr. Wu 1,046 1,613 1,046 2,101 (27)  Repayable on Nil & Nil &
Guoming demand
S8R SERRENRT BERBE
As at 30 September 2021 RZZEZ—HFhB=+H
QOutstanding Maximum
amount  Outstanding outstanding
Total at the amount amount Provision
Nature of amount beginning at the end during for doubtful
Name of the borrower connection payable of the year of the year theyear ~ debtsmade  Term Interest rate Security
RENH RERH ERRA
EEARTE HEkE EUEIEE  ARELZE  ABERR  AEEIR REEE  HR fE g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TER Thn TER TEn
Quasi-loans or credit
transactions
BUERAEERS
Wu Xiachen Son of Mr. Wu 1,613 (637) 1,613 1,613 (22)  Repayable on Nil & Nil &
Guoming demand
RER SHRRENGT REXEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE

15.

16.

“E"HFABZ=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

(c) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save for those disclosed in note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements, no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company and the director’s connected
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement plans
which are available for eligible employees in the PRC and Hong
Kong.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Group has joined defined contribution retirement schemes
for the employees arranged by local government labour and
security authorities (the “PRC Retirement Schemes”). The
Group makes contributions to the PRC Retirement Schemes
at the applicable rates based on the amounts stipulated by
the local government organisations. Upon retirement, the local
government labour and security authorities are responsible
for the payment of the retirement benefits to the retired
employees.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F

15. EF 2@ RF=E &

(c) EFENXBZ -LHHESHTHES
ZEKE

Prir M BRI ETATFIINEE
7$ﬁﬁh¢$jimﬁﬁﬁ%
FEZHEMERBERITNTT R
FRBEFREFZHEALR
HAOEZNEERAEEARRD Y
EMAEREHZEARS
BREanFE-

16. BRIABFEE

A E 0] RE BRI RUR RS B (AR
RPERERNGERESHEI 2

REFEERERRER ZEE/KE
FR it 75 BURT 55 T e 2 fR i B 2 HF A B
NESESHERHIERNKRE (THEH
BIREHE]) - FEBIRBE BT HE
RENTRIRBABLLE R P EIR KRG
B EH R - BRINE > T BUF S TR
ZREAEEEIOERKEEXNTR
REEH] o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHAA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

16.

17.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(Continued)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong)
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the laws of Hong
Kong). The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and the employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000.

During the years ended 30 September 2021 and 2022, the
Group had no forfeited contributions under the PRC Retirement
Scheme and MPF Scheme and which may be used by the
Group to reduce the existing level of contributions. There
were also no forfeited contributions available at 30 September
2021 and 2022 under the PRC Retirement Scheme and MPF
Scheme which may be used by the Group to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

During the year ended 30 September 2022, retirement benefit
scheme contributions paid amounted to approximately

HK$561,000 (2021: HK$552,000).

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 30 September 2022 (2021: Nil).

16.

17.

BAEFHEE =

NEBBIERFIELBETEEG (B
BEBIE485%) AIRBES B RE KRG
(BBEFIESTE) Al LEEEEAN
EEEERFIEA TS (MAREE
FEL) cRBEHEABRBILERAE
B2 ERAMFTCRIAETE IR RBEE 5T
o EEREEBHEREERRBBAN
5%ME st EMHEFT S B BRWAN L
[E %30,0007 7T ©

BE_TS_—FR-F-"F1A
Zt+HIEFE REPERAKTE R
AT s8> AEE I E SR IHERE
HAERBLURMBEIRA HRKF 1R
TR FRIZTFAR=+A
RFPERAS B RBREE &%
B 7R i O OR W R B A & B A LU
BRRERE ZHRRAKF -

BE_E-__F#AB=+tHLEE 'R
RBH 5T 2 R4 &561,0008 7T (=
E — —4F : 552,000 7T) ©

e
EETEEMBE_S __F1A

=t+HLEEFERNEARE CEZ—
FrE)-e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

18. LOSS PER SHARE 18. Bk ES1E
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based BEREAREBEBEERNGDREUTRE
on the following: 8

2022 2021
—EF %
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET

Loss for the purpose of calculating M EERELAREEER
basic and diluted loss per share MmaE k18 (15,504) (20,982)
Number of shares in g8 ’000 ’000
T T

Weighted average number of ordinary FistEERE AR EEE

shares for the purpose of calculating = 2 Z @R MNEFHH
basic and diluted loss per share 455,860 138,037

The weighted average numbers of ordinary shares used as
denominators in calculating the basic and diluted loss per
share are the same as the Company had no potential ordinary
shares outstanding for the years ended 30 September 2021
and 2022.

HRAQABREEZZEZ—FRIE
T TFNA=StHHIEFELEETE
SN2 BEZSER WETESRERKE
EEBERBEIINEERMNETY

EGEIEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%K

B FBERRMIEE

T2 "HFABZ=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. Y E - BB Rz

Computer Furniture
system and and Leasehold Motor  Pipeline and Plantand  Construction
Buildings  equipment fixtures improvements vehicles  equipment machinery i progress Total
ERZAR
gr B GEREE BEEE RE BERE BEREE TEIR am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TER TEn TER TEn TEn TEn TE#n TER
(note (a) (note (b))
(F5t(a)) (Fz(0)
Cost I‘M
At 1 October 2020 “ERE+A-H 9,072 652 1,480 2,209 1,145 279,766 12,349 1,438 308,111
Additions /?E - 56 - - 410 - 4,161 1,738 6,365
Transfers &% - - - - - 2,085 - (2,085) -
Written off ik - - - (1,056) - - - - (1,056)
Exchange differences ERER 579 - 85 74 17 17,705 836 88 19,384
At 30 September 2021 and ~ RZEZ-£ABZ+AK
1 October 2021 Z”-E+A-H 9,651 708 1,566 1,221 1,672 299,556 17,346 1,179 332,804
Additions HE — - 84 - - 647 778 2,709 4,218
Transfers E ] - - - - - 2,211 - 2.211) -
Transfer as inventory ErAiFat - - - - - - (1,115) - (1,115)
Written off g - - (1) - - &) - - @)
Exchange differences ERES (526) - (80) (67) (34) (16,459) (927) (90) (18,183)
At 30 September 2022 RIEZZENB=TH 9,125 708 1,568 1,160 1,538 285,952 16,082 1,587 317,720
Accumulated depreciation  RtTERHE
and impairment
At 1 October 2020 “ERE+A-H 1,046 507 1,104 1,416 573 193,548 1,749 - 199,943
Charge for the year E nEx 346 46 141 525 208 5,679 1,968 - 8,933
Written off s - - - (1,056) - - - - (1,056)
Exchange differences ERER 70 - 69 42 12 12,411 134 - 12,738
At 30 September 2021 and ~ RZEZ-EABZ+ARK
1 October 2021 “2Z-E+A-H 1,462 553 1,314 927 813 211,638 3,851 - 220,558
Charge for the year ERER 340 46 116 240 264 5,834 2,151 - 8,991
Witten off i3 - - 0] - - (1) - - 2
Reversal of impairment ERHERE (D)
for the year (note (b)) - - - - - (21,012) - - (21,012)
Exchange differences ERER 97 - (72) (64) (16) (11,823 (320) - (12,392)
At 30 September 2022 RIEZZENA=TH 1,706 599 1,357 1,103 1,061 184,636 5,682 - 196,143
Carrying amount EEEE
At 30 September 2022 RIZZZEAR=1H 7,420 109 211 57 4 101,316 10,400 1,687 121,577
At 30 September 2021 RZEZ-ENA=1H 8,189 155 251 300 759 87,918 13,495 1,179 112,246

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FNB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

HE_Z_—

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

The Group’s buildings are located in the PRC under medium term
leases.

The Group’s pipeline and equipment belong to the CGU of
Yichang Biaodian. The recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined on the basis of its value in use using discounted cash
flow method. The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow
method are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and
budgeted gross margin and revenue during the forecast period.
The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates are based
on long-term average economic growth rate of the geographical
area in which the businesses of the CGU operate. Budgeted
gross margin and revenue are based on past practices and
expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors.
Yichang Biaodian’s cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 2% (2021: 3%) growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry in which Yichang Biaodian operates. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculation relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
revenue and gross margin, such estimation is based on Yichang
Biaodian’s past performance and management’s expectations for
the market development. The pre-tax rate used to discount the
forecast cash flows from the Group’s is 13.10% (2021: 13.23%).

The performance of Yichang Biaodian CGU has been improved
because:

(i) with the planning under the guiding ideology of the
“14th Five-Year Plan” in 2021, the central government
vigorously promotes the utilisation of clean resources,
and pipeline natural gas has become the best choice for
new enterprises to use as heating energy. Accordingly,
the municipal government of Yichang encourages all
natural gas suppliers in Yichang to work together in order
to stablise the natural gas supply among Yichang city
and areas nearby so as to attract industrial users to use
natural gas as their major energy source in manufacturing
process; and

19. ME - -BERKRE =

AEEZBFIHEPEUTBELOR
EO

FERZEEARRBFERBNESRA
REELBN-REELEBUZT
WOEHEEERMKRRAEREEFRE
REEEE BRRBEERBEZIE
BRETFAPEANEREERE
RBFEMER KRR M A EMR
ARBEEHBERREEEEMNZ
BEREZREH ST HIRIRAT
REFHRF - BEXRERSEL
BUEBHKERTHEZ RETHE
B REXRFE - BEEN TR E
RBXEARTHERARFE -

NEBBRESWEZRMMBEES
FREBERETEN -5 S 1ZHABBES
FHZRERENEHR2% (ZEZ—
FI3%) ZIEEHEXHEHE ZEE
ENIREEBTESERAME B
TEBEERBCEMEMRITES
TR ER FHEEFEZH
MEIRBRR I RRERAREGE
o BEBEEREREFE ARG
SINIRBEEERAZBEFREREE
BHHIHERZTEHAME - ARIIR
SEEBARESFTEZRALLES
13.10% (B - —4F : 13.23%) ©

BT RE B EaRe R
(1B 2 17 88 -

i) ‘BENR-B_—FT+MOHIR
FIEER B TWRE > PR
FRITEEBZERZFA
MEBRARM AT B EER
ERNREEEZE I - 58
BRESEESNMAEXARME
ERERZSHAEETKER

TH¥ARPRRARERELEE
BEPNEZER; &

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F3#R

151



152

VA=A
T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHAA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

AA SRR MIEE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(o)

(Continued)

(ii) the government provides subsidies to manufacturers
engaging in chemical industry to move into the industrial
area which one of the gas supply locations that Yichang
Biaodian operated, and so as to encourage manufacturers
to use natural gas as their major energy source.

Accordingly, the Group has revised its cash flow forecasts
for this CGU. The recoverable amount of this CGU was
HK$179,788,000. Therefore, reversal of impairment losses on
non-current assets are credited to profit or loss for the year and

19. ME -BERR

Sl =

MisE : ()

(b)

(%)

(i) BREASEFRCREIENRES
REME LEASREER
HEERAENRARME 2 —
WIEME: %ﬁ*ﬁé%ﬁ%t?ﬁ
FERRARIEAREIEER

At REBETHILBSEEEN
NIESREEA LIRS EEE UM
AW EI£EEA179,788,0008 7t ©
It JERBE EMN R E BRI A

are analysed as follows: FRERW TN T
2022 2021
—=2_— T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FBT
Property, plant and equipment ME - -BERKE 21,012 -
Intangible assets (note 22) mEEE (5122) 16,565 -
Right-of-use assets (note 20) EREEE (MsE20) 178 -
Credited to profit or loss st AEB = 37,755 -

At 30 September 2022, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment pledged to an independent third party
for obtaining an advance of RMB100,000 (equivalent to
HK$115,000) amounted to RMB1,693,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,949,000) (2021: RMB100,000 (equivalent to HK$122,000)
amounted to RMB1,824,000 (equivalent to HK$2,221,000)).

On 24 September 2019, the Group entered into a sales
and purchase agreement with an independent third party
(“Purchaser”) to dispose its building located in the PRC together
with associated leasehold improvements. The aggregate
carrying amount the aforementioned building and leasehold
improvements as of 30 September 2022 was HK$1,949,000
(2021: HK$2,221,000). Deposit was received for the disposal of
building of the Group (note 32).

On 8 July 2020, the Group received a preservation order from
the Court in Shenzhen, which preserve the building from being
sold by the Group. On 14 June 2022, the court in Shenzhen
decided to remove the preservation order, and the Group has not
agreed with the Purchases on any follow up actions up to the
reporting period ended. Details of the litigation are set out in note
44(c).
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RIE__FAB=+H > AWER
T AR #100,0007T (FHE 115,000
BT MR\ —LBULE=HNY
¥ BEARRENEREAARE
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100,0007t (1HE 7122,000% 7T) ™
BREF—2LBIE=ZFNWE -BE
K FENIREE A ARTE1,824,0007T
(FER2,221,00087T) ) ©

RIE—HAEABZ+NH  &~ER
B—g@uE=s (TExH))TILE
BEWE UHEEURTEZEFTE
FERBEEEE - #E_S-__FAh
B=+H > LigF REEEERT
4E{E#41,049,0008T ( T - —%:
2,221,000 7T) c EHEXNEEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE

TECFHAA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 20. EFHHEEE
Leased
Leasehold Leased motor

land properties vehicles Total

HELH HEME HESE st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET AT FAET FAET

At 1 October 2020 RZZ2ZZF+A—H 576 895 477 1,948

Additions wE - 1,450 - 1,450

Depreciation nE (13) (1,103) (263) (1,379)

Exchange differences [ERELE 36 - - 36
At 30 September 2021 and RAZEZ-FAA=t+HK

1 October 2021 “2”_-%+A—H 599 1,242 214 2,055

Additions HE - 542 2,355 2,897

Depreciation & (15) 971) (610) (1,596)

Reversal of impairment FRHERED (F5E19(0))

for the year (note 19(b)) 178 - - 178

Exchange differences [ERELE (31) 8) - (39)

At 30 September 2022 RZBZZFhB=+H 731 805 1,959 3,495

Lease liabilities of HK$2,817,000 (2021: HK$1,850,000) are N_ZE-_"_HFHhhABA=+H> wHEMAE

recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$2,764,000
(2021: HK$1,456,000) as at 30 September 2022. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for

borrowing purposes.

FREEE2,764,0008 7T (&
—— :1,456,000% %) BRAHEE
812,817,000t (Z& = —F :
1,850,000/ 70) R AFTFHESR
EZIEFRERIN SRR ST
A2 -HEEEFESREEERRZ
HEfRo

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAT FHET
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use FAEEEFTERS
assets 1,596 1,379
Reversal of impairment loss on FREEEZRE
right-of-use assets E5 18 # [o] (178) -
Interest expenses on lease liabilites HE&GEF %
(included in finance costs) (5t AR 75 Al ) 191 159
Expenses relating to short-term B ERRMZMAX
lease (included in general and (FFA—fR R ATESZ )
administrative expenses) 192 173
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20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 43(e).

For the year ended 30 September 2022, the Group leases
properties, motor vehicles and car parking spaces for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of one to three years, but may have termination option to
terminate the leasing agreement of a motor vehicle after one
year. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns a natural gas station and office
complex located in the PRC. The Group is the registered owner
of these property interests, including the underlying leasehold
land. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire these
property interests. The leasehold land component of these
owned properties is presented separately only if the payments
made can be allocated reliably.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

20. FHESE @

MEZ R &0 L4
43(e) °

BERZ X IR EIC MY 5L

BE_Z__FAR=THLEE"
rEEHEE %%\ﬂ@&@EM%?%
B-HEGNR—E=FZEEHRET
ﬁ’@ﬁﬁtﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ%—iﬁﬁt
MERERZ - HERRTLEE R 25
EhER TEESBARIRR AR
B 7 T FH A R R A A BT BBl HA ) 2 B
R AEERBAENZERLEES
#Y BT SR 1T 2 HARE ©

EW#K%I%EMF$IZ%% ik
R rtEe-rERBZEMFEER (B
EEBEAE L) Y EEEB A B
BREVERD BIFH—RMIRe
EEFHNMRER ZDORR  ZF
EYEZHEEI M DHERZY -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

Carrying amount
At 30 September 2022

At 30 September 2021

IREE
N TEZTFNABE=+H

RZZE-—FhB=+H

21. GOODWILL 21. HE
Yichang LW
Biaodian Insurance Total
HEEH FERRR 45t
HK$ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000
TET FAET TFET
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(M zE(a)) (Ffd 5% (b))
Cost 7=
At 1 October 2020 N TETEF+E—H 4,345 2,538 6,883
Exchange differences bE 52 = %A 277 - 277
At 30 September 2021 and RZIEZ—FNB=+H
1 October 2021 kR-ZZE2-—%+H—H 4,622 2,538 7,160
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBREBAS - (2,538) (2,538)
Exchange differences PE R E%R (252) - (252)
At 30 September 2022 R_E__FHhB=+H 4,370 - 4,370
Accumulated impairment RitRERE
losses
At 1 October 2020 RZZEZZ2H+H8—H 4,345 1,958 6,303
Impairment for the year FERNRE - 580 580
Exchange differences PE 52 = 28 277 - 277
At 30 September 2021 and RIZIZEZ—FNB=+H
1 October 2021 RZZ2Z—%+A—H 4,622 2,538 7,160
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBREAS - (2,538) (2,538)
Exchange differences PE R E%R (252) - (252)
At 30 September 2022 RIE__HAB=+H 4,370 - 4,370
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHAA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

21. GOODWILL (continuea)

Notes:

(@)

The Group acquired 49% of the equity interest in Yichang
Biaodian in 2016. The goodwill arising from the acquisition is
allocated to CGU of Yichang Biaodian. The amount has been
fully impaired since 30 September 2019.

The Group acquired 100% of the equity interest in LW Insurance
Brokers Limited (“LW Insurance”) in October 2019. The goodwill
arising from the acquisition is allocated to CGU of LW Insurance.

The recoverable amount of the investment in LW Insurance
is determined from the fair value calculations using market
approach by an independent valuation expert. The key
assumptions for the fair value calculations are those regarding
the enterprise value multiples, the control premium and the
discount for lack of marketability.

The measurement of the fair value of recoverable amount was
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

At 30 September 2021, before impairment testing, the carrying
amount of goodwill allocated to LW Insurance was HK$580,000,
net of impairment of HK$1,958,000. The recoverable amount
of this CGU was below the carrying amount of the CGU of
which the assets belong. LW Insurance did not perform as
expected because of the effect of COVID-19 that potential
customers cannot visit Hong Kong and seek professional advice
on insurance plan from the Group. Besides, as there was no
professional party acting as representative on behalf of LW
Insurance for compliance purpose, the management of the
Group considered to suspend the business in LW Insurance
thereof.

The CGU has been reduced to its recoverable amount to zero as
at 30 September 2021. Therefore, impairment loss on goodwill of
HK$580,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended
30 September 2021.

21. B2 &=
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BE_Z_-FNAZF+HEEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 22. BB E
Natural gas
supply
exclusive rights
AR
BRMERE
HK$’000
FATT
(note)
(B 3%)
Cost (5%
At 1 October 2020 N_Z2_ZF+H—H 225,467
Exchange differences PERE%R 14,381
At 30 September 2021 and 1 October 2021 N ZEI—FAB=1+HBX
—E_—H+A—H 239,848
Exchange differences FERE%E (13,061)
At 30 September 2022 N ZEZZFHhB=1+H 226,787
Accumulated amortisation and impairment Bt ERRE
At 1 October 2020 N _E_EF+HB—H 155,960
Charge for the year FARZ 2,876
Exchange differences PERE%R 9,981
At 30 September 2021 and 1 October 2021 N ZEI—FAB=1THX
“E”—H+A—H 168,817
Charge for the year FREZ 2,899
Reversal of impairment for the year (note 19(b)) FRREEE (FFEE19(b)) (16,565)
Exchange differences PERE%R (9,340)
At 30 September 2022 WNZE2-__FhBA=+H 145,811
Carrying amount BREE
At 30 September 2022 N _E___FHNB=+H 80,976
At 30 September 2021 A ZE - —FNAB=1H 71,031
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z - _FHAA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

22,

23.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Note:

The natural gas supply exclusive rights arose from the acquisition of
Yichang Biaodian completed on 24 February 2016 and is amortised
over the remaining years of the contractual period of 30 years till the
years ranging from 2041 to 2044.

The Group performed impairment assessment on natural gas supply
exclusive rights and other assets which belong to the CGU of
Yichang Biaodian. The performance of Yichang Biaodian has been
improved and it generated profit this year. Reversal of impairment has
been recognised for the year ended 30 September 2022. Details of
impairment assessment are set out in note 19(b).

As at 30 September 2022, the natural gas supply exclusive rights was
pledged to bank for obtaining loan of RMB19,000,000 (2021: Nil) (note
37).

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 30 September 2022 are as

22,

23.

BEEE @
Mz :

ARRBREBEEENREAEER T
—ANEZA AR EE SR I
REEZZN—FE_ZMNFIL30FE
KHAZ FIBRFE R

REFBHRARBREBERBENES
RHARSELEU HMEEETRET
H-BERBZRBEAMNE  WNAF
EELEMN HEZLNERB®E T "
NA=TRHILFERED - BEFGFBRN
MiEE19(b) ©

RIBZ__FAA=+H RARBRMHEE
IR FIRTT > UER A K119,000,0007T
2T —F | B (HEE37) o

KRB ARZKRE

RIEZZFAR=THZWBRATAFIE

follows: mE
Principal country of Issued and
operation and country fully paid
of incorporation or share capital/ Percentage of
establishment/ registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary Kind of legal entity capital to the Group Principal activities
BEITR
TEREARKEMAILR BERE/
ilEYNGEY RIBR EEEREL HMEE FEERMGRET AL TEEH
2022 2021
ke ZET-F
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM INC. BVI/Company limited by US$1 100% 100% Inactive
shares
HEEUHEE/RNER 1% RIEE Sy
NS
Digital Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong/ HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited liability company
&8/ BREEAT 2ETT REER
Logo Plus Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1,000 100% 100% Inactive
Limited liability company
&8/ BRETLT 1,000 7T DiEEES)S

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

23. RIB AR ZIRE @

Principal country of Issued and
operation and country fully paid
of incorporation or share capital/ Percentage of
establishment/ registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary Kind of legal entity capital to the Group Principal activities
BETR
TEREERKEMMILEK BRERE/
Lol YNGIE T BIAR EEERER AMES rERRGERETAL TEEH
2022 2021
S —E-F
Pickworth Limited Samoa/ USS$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Company limited by
shares
EET /BB ERAT 1E7T REER
Rich Ascent International Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of
Limited liability company administrative services
to the Group
SEERBRAT 58/ BREERT 18T ) A 5 B4R 1T BUAR %5
Global Billion Access Investments BVI/Company limited by US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited shares
RIGERREBRAS HEEUHEE/RNER E BREER
NS
Hong Kong Global Billion Access Hong Kong/ HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investments Limited Limited liability company
BRRNERRERRLA &8/ BRETAT 18T REER
RIGERESR (RN BRAS PRC/ HK$14,000,000 100% 100%  Inactive
(Global Billion Trading Wholly foreign-owned
(Shenzhen) Limited) entity
(“Shenzhen Global”) FE/ BB E 14,000,000 7t TEEH
(TFRIIETR)
Yichang Biaodian (note (a)) PRC/ RMB58,800,000 25% 25%  Natural gas operations
Limited liability company
HERHE (M) FE/EREEAT AR RARES
58,800,0007¢
King Sailing International Limited BVI/Company limited by USS$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
shares
HEHERBRAT HEEUHE/RNER E REER
NS
Eternal Goal Limited (note (b)) Seychelles/Company limited USs$100 - 60%  Investment holding
by shares
Eternal Goal Limited (Ff (b)) EER/RHERAT 100£ 7T BREER

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F3#R

159



160

iR MR ERARMIEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

23. RMIB AR ZIKRE &

Principal country of Issued and
operation and country fully paid
of incorporation or share capital/ Percentage of
establishment/ registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary Kind of legal entity capital to the Group Principal activities
BETR
TEREERKEMMILEK BRERE/
Lol YNSIET BIAR EEERER HAMES rERRGERETAL TEEH
2022 2021
S —E-F
Heroic Sunshine Limited (note (c)) Seychelles/Company limited US$100 100% 60%  Investment holding
by shares
Heroic Sunshine Limited (Ffi3%(c)) EEW/RINERAT 100%7T REER
Hong Kong Central Environmental Hong Kong/ HK$10,000 100% 60%  Investment holding
Technology Limited (note (c)) Limited liability company
EERERENRARRD (M3H0) &8/ BREEAT 10,000 7T BREER
HERBHE (LB) ERAR PRC/ RMB10,000,000 100% 60%  Leasing business of the
(“Shanghai Senchou”) (note (c)) Wholly foreign-owned steel support axial
entity force servo system
REBRGRE (L) BRAS RE/MEEE R E AR AL EGHARRSR
(TEBRE)) () 10,000,0007C THEEH
RE(LR) BEBRAA PRC/ RMB30,000,000 - 60%  Dormant
(note (d)) Limited liability company
R (BB BEBRAF HE/BREFAT AR HRER
(FizE(d)) 30,000,0007%
RE(MWIBEER) ERERAT PRC/ RMB30,000,000 - 60%  Dormant
(note (d)) Limited liability company
%E(,?ME 8E) ERBRAA FE/EREFEAT AR HRER
(P (o)) 30,000,000
East Perfection Development Limited BVI/Company limited by Us$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
shares
REZERABRAA HEEUHE/RNER 10E7T REER
NS
Global Business (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong/ HK$10,000 100% 100% Inactive
Limited liability company
REE (B8) BRAA &8/ BREGERAT 10,000% 7T WEER
Billion Champion Business Limited BVI/Company limited by Us$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
shares
KZEZBRAT BEELHEE/RINER 10%7T REER
NS

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

23. RIB AR ZIRE @

Principal country of Issued and
operation and country fully paid
of incorporation or share capital/ Percentage of
establishment/ registered equity attributable
Name of subsidiary Kind of legal entity capital to the Group Principal activities
BETR
TEREERKEMMILEK BRERE/
Lol YNGIE T BIAR EEERER AMES rERRGERETAL TEEH
2022 2021
S —E-F
Billion Champion (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong/ HK$10,000 100% 100% Inactive
Limited liability company
Kz (BB BRAF &8/ BRETLT 10,000 7T WEER
LW Capital Group Limited Hong Kong/ HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited liability company
HEetmERBRAR &8/ BREEAT 10,000 7T BREER
LW (Hong Kong) Finance Limited Hong Kong/ HK$10,000 100% 100%  Dormant
Limited liability company
FE (B8 UBERAF &8/ BRETAT 10,000 7T HRER
LW Insurance (note (€)) Hong Kong/ HK$3,687,500 - 100%  Insurance broker
Limited liability company business
FIERR (5He) &8/ BRETLT 3,687,500/ 7T REELES
Rich Point Credit Limited Hong Kong/ HK$10,000 100% - Not yet commenced
Limited liability company business
RIHEEBRAT &8/ BREEAT 10,000 7T HAREBER
Bright Able Century Limited BVI/Company limited by USs$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
shares
LRULARAT BRELHE/RNER 1= REER
NG
Smart Target Billion Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited liability company
ERERRAT &8/ BRETLT 1B REER
LW Manin Immigration Consultancy Hong Kong/ HK$10,000 - 60%  Dormant
Limited (note (e)) Limited liability company
FESFERRBEMBRAR (He) &8/ BREERAT 10,000 7T LEEY

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F
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otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEZZZ_HFNA=+HIEFE For the year ended 30 September 2022

RS 2 NI —

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

Notes:

(@)

Yichang Biaodian is a subsidiary of the Group even though the
Group has only 25% (2021: 25%) ownership interest in Yichang
Biaodian.

The Group has held 25% equity interest in Yichang Biaodian
upon the capital contribution from two shareholders on 4
January 2019. MIEZBHKXAREMRAE (‘Hubei Biaodian”), B
EMABERERAR (‘"EEMMAR), EEEZSERERA
&) and Mr. Li Wanging (“Mr. Li") (collectively the “Non-controlling
Shareholders”) owned 21%, 24%, 20% and 10% equity interest
in Yichang Biaodian, respectively, after the capital contribution
and up to the date of this report.

The Directors, with the assistance of the legal counsel in the
PRC, assessed whether or not the Group still has control
over Yichang Biaodian based on whether the Group has the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities at Yichang
Biaodian unilaterally. In making their judgement, the directors
considered the Group’s power to affect the board of directors
(the “BOD”) of Yichang Biaodian. The BOD of Yichang Biaodian,
responsible for all relevant activities at Yichang Biaodian,
consisted of eleven directors, of which six were appointed by
the Group while the other five directors were appointed by
the Non-controlling Shareholders. BOD resolutions of Yichang
Biaodian were reached by more than two-third of the attending
directors. In accordance with the terms of a further shareholders’
agreement entered into among the Group and the Non-
controlling Shareholders, in any events where the Group and the
Non-controlling Shareholders have diversed views in the BOD
meetings, the Group, being the single largest shareholder of
Yichang Biaodian, has the power to make the final decision.

Based on the assessment mentioned above, the directors
concluded that the Group under the terms of the shareholders’
agreement had the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of Yichang Biaodian and therefore the Group has control over
Yichang Biaodian after the capital contribution.

The subsidiaries were struck off during the year.

The Company acquired 40% equity interest of Heroic Sunshine
Limited and its subsidiaries during the year.

The subsidiaries were deregistered during the year.

23. PTMB AT ZIRE @

GER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_—

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

Notes: (Continued)

©)

()

FNB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

The subsidiaries were disposed during the year.

The following table shows information on the subsidiaries that

have NCI material to the Group. The summarised financial

information represents amounts before inter-company

eliminations.

23.

RBATZIRE @
GERRr )

() ZMBRABNEANHE-

()

TRETEEHAEEMEBEARZ
SFEREBEZNBRATNER 2
MHBEMBNABBIEHEA 2258

Yichang Biaodian

HEZH
2022 2021
—T—C TET—4F
Principal place of business and FEEEMB R R ER PRC
country of establishment == |
% of ownership interests/voting EERERFE AR
rights held by NCI BEREHLL 75%/45% 75%/45%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE 190,929 167,566
Current assets RENEE 9,272 12,720
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE (70,367) (71,351)
Current liabilities MEIEE (40,333) (51,269)
Net assets BEEZFE 89,501 57,666
Accumulated NCI Rt IEERER 66,561 42,497
Revenue & 124,599 60,834
Profit/(loss) for the year EEr (E518) 35,048 (4,074)
Total comprehensive income SHER AL 31,835 (416)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI PDEEFIFERERZ
wmF, (E518) 24,065 (520)
Net cash generated from operating — #&& ¥FE5FT1SIR & 328
activities 10,315 7,000
Net cash generated from/(used in)  REEEFFFE, (FiA) IREFE
investing activities 474 (1,363)
Net cash used in financing activities BYE EENFFAIR S H 5 (9,806) (5,792)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and IR&RIBEEBEYEM, L)
cash equivalents B 983 (155)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHAA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

24. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 24. REETENKE
2022 2021
—EF %
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FHT
Unlisted investments: FEEFEE
Share of net assets EIEEEZRE 183 -

Details of the Group’s joint venture at 30 September 2022 are

RIZEZ_FhA=+tH Tx&EESE

as follows: EEFFHINUWT !
Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/
Name Place of registration Registered capital profit sharing  Principal activities
BEERRREH#
Eap X {3t 26 EAIEEN /ENAREAL  FEED
LRIE The PRC RMB30,000,000 50%  Not yet commenced
business
RIRE i AR #30,000,0007¢ EENEEED

The following table shows the Group’s share of the amount
of immaterial joint venture that accounted for using the equity

TRITAEBEGEBEDEAR
RFEESEENTE-

method.
2022 2021
—EF B
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET TFHT
At 30 September: HhBA=+8":
Carrying amounts of interests HEmARHEE 183 -
Year ended 30 September: BEAA=1THILEEE:
Loss after tax brinEEIE (49) -
Other comprehensive income Hittemam (11) -
Total comprehensive income SHEU R ABEE (60) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

24.

25.

26.

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

As at 30 September 2022, the bank and cash balances of

24.

ReEl

RZEBE-_FHH

ENRE =

=+8 MARMEH

the Group’s joint venture in the PRC denominated in RMB
amounted to HK$277,000 (2021: Nil). Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

As at 30 September 2022, this joint venture did not have any
significant commitment or contingent liabilities (2021: Nil).

BzAEREGELERTRIBESAR
A277,0008 7w (B - —& !
REERRABINEBETHEIESE
BRI 5B SRR T ETIERTE

/) o A

RIEZ_HFAAR=+H IkEEH
XU BEREARKEIIREGE (CF

——F i\
INVENTORIES 25. 78

2022 2021
—E-C B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBEIT
Finished goods SN 1,042 96
Raw materials R 447 701
1,489 797

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 26. EWE S IRAKRERE
2022 2021
—E-C —EC—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Trade receivables (note) FE U & 7 8RRk (Mt 5E) 13,350 12,840
Bills receivables (note) U EE (i) 3,223 -
16,573 12,840
Less: impairment losses (note 6(b)()) & : JB{EEE (Mi5E6()()) (7,653) (6,264)
8,920 6,576

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE

26.

T2 FHAA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note:

Generally there is no credit period for customers of sales of natural
gas as the customers need to prepay before the usage of the natural
gas. For a few specific customers they can use the gas on credit and
the Group allows an average credit period of 60 days. The Group
recognises revenue for natural gas pipeline installation service when the
installation is completed and the Group allows an average credit period
of 30 days upon completion. For sales and leasing business, the Group
allows an average credit period of 180 days upon service rendered or
goods sold. For independent financial advisory, the Group allows an
average credit period of 30 days upon service rendered.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables at the end of the
reporting year based on the goods or services delivered is as follows:

26. BB B R KEE @

BHSE -

HEXRRRNERBEBLAERHEEER
RERERBENERBRARAB RN
ﬁt/'%lﬁudaffﬁit@ﬁﬁ%%fﬁz%ig
)Eﬁﬁ?f’Z!K%l?ﬁ%EBOEIZIFi’:J%%,HHO
FERRZETRHERIRAREBZE
BR s~ Wam > I e & - A EER T HI0H

ZTHEER -MEEREEEBMS 1
RHBRBIHEERE  FERK T H180
HzPHEER MBIV HEEMS  1©
RERHE  ~EBERFHIBZTHEER
Hio

RBEFERBRBEFAZNERARE 27
ZBWEZERRRBBRE DT

2022 2021

S - BT

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHBET

0 to 90 days 0FE90H 2,830 1,451
91 to 180 days 91FE180H - 1,891
181 to 365 days 181E365H 5,457 3,234
Over 365 days BiB365H 633 -
8,920 6,576

Before accepting any new customer, the Group’s finance and
sales management team would assess the potential customer’s
credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Credit
limits attributable to customers are reviewed regularly with
reference to past settlement history. The Group’s finance and
sales management team considers trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality as
continuous repayments have been received.

ERMERNERA AEBMBKRIE
EEREKGTLEETE R ZEEE
FRUNEBERERZEER-BRZEER
PESTEEMNMERMERETE
R AEBUHFRIHEEERRD S
RIS BEFF AR U EE AR S BE R A BR 7R R
HMEZBWEZRTARFEREER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
- "HFABZ=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

BE_

26. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

27.

s 2 U —

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills receivables

26. EINE S IRAKREE @

FEERBEZRRRREZREE

are denominated in the following currencies: MUFF)E8EHE -
2022 2021
—EF %
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT FHET
HK$ BT - 1
RMB AR 8,920 6,575
8,920 6,576

Included in trade receivables of HK$798,000 (2021:
HK$2,391,000) were due from a related company controlled by
a director of the Company.

FE Ll B2 3 BE =0 798,000 7T (&2 - —
£ :2,391,00087T) BFEEW—BBEAR

NEEFENZBABMAT ZMIE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 27. TR -1 R EHMEY

RECEIVABLES BRFX
2022 2021
—EF —E—fF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHET TFET
Deposits e 812 807
Prepayments SEENEESEN 6,715 12,474
Others H1h 546 513
8,073 13,794

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F
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28. LOAN RECEIVABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

28. FEIRE

2022 2021

—EZ_F BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Loan receivables, unsecured [EWE R > EIKIE - 5,448
Less: impairment losses (note 6(b)(i)) & : FBIEE 8 (M 5E6(b)() - (1,138)
- 4,310

The loan balances as at 30 September 2021 represented loans ﬁi T —FAB=THZEME

to two private companies incorporated in Hong Kong with
maturity at 4 November 2021. Loan receivables are unsecured
and are charged on effective interest rate mutually agreed with
the contracting parties, at a fixed rate at 12% per annum. The
borrowers are obliged to settle the amounts according to the
terms set out in the relevant agreements. The balances were
settled during the year ended 30 September 2022.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
loan receivables so as to minimise credit risk. The granting
of loans is subject to approval by the management, whilst
overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the management.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s loan receivables are
denominated in HKS.

FRIEMMBERNEBEMMILZAER
BRHEITR _E-—F+—AWB3
Az E/M-BWRERDERIT ZHE
NEHEEBEZERFEXFTE  BE
EENERB12% - BEANBEERRA
MR GERETER-BE-T
T THENA=THLEE #HREE

B o

AERNKREHBHREZBBERE
FERREE UBERMEERR &
ERREEERHE /& A A4 R B
BIEETEHmE -

AEBEBKERZREEBITHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

29. BOND RECEIVABLES

20. FEW{ES

2022 2021
—=E-= —EC—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Unlisted debt instruments, —EEhmRBEETZ

at amortised cost, FEHEBITE

issued by a listed company big 3= f N 10,280 10,280
Accrued interest receivables FEWFESTFI B 655 655
10,935 10,935
Less: impairment losses (note 6(b)(i)) & : JFERE (M 5E6(b)(ii) (10,935) (10,935)

Note:

On 2 April 2019, the Group subscribed bonds from a listed company
(“Bond Issuer”) with principal amount of HK$3,000,000. The bonds
were unsecured and interest-bearing at fixed rates of 10% per annum.
The carrying amount of HK$3,300,000 was receivable on 2 April
2020. The bonds could be redeemed by Bond Issuer at 100% of the
outstanding principal amount, together with accrued interest up to
settlement date. Upon the maturity date, Bond Issuer did not repay the
interest and principal.

On 4 May 2020, Bond Issuer issued bonds with principal amount of
HK$7,280,000 at fixed interest rate of 12% per annum to the Group
for taking up the settlement obligation of one of its subsidiaries’ bonds
subscribed by the Group. The carrying amount of HK$8,153,600 will
be receivable on 3 May 2021. The bonds could be redeemed by Bond
Issuer at 100% of the outstanding principal amount, together with
accrued interest up to settlement date.

On 5 June 2020, Bond Issuer announced that it has entered into
liquidation process, the management of the Company considered the
recoverability of these bonds was remote and full impairment was
made accordingly. As of 30 September 2022, the liquidation is still in
progress.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bond receivables are
denominated in HK$.

MIEE -

RIZE-—AFOB_H x&HR—ME
EFRF (MEFETA)) BBEETES
3,000,00078 5 2 (&5 « (B35 A |IE I > Wi
& EFH E10%5t B - fRE 53,300,000
TERZE-ZFMA —HWER B0 H
BEHFETAREREERTIEZ100%ER
EESHEABRE A BHEE - NEBHE
BEFETALREENEREE-

RIZZZFERAMH BHFHETAALR
EERTARSEEAT7,280,00058 TAIZE E
FRE12%TENES > UREHAER
REZ—BEHBARAZEHEEE - REAE
8,153,600 B TN —_E-_—FRHA=HIK
- BHFEIHBFETAREREELS
BZ100% BRI BEEAEEHIEST 27 28
@o

RoB-SEAARD BERFTASHH
ERABRER FADERERANDR
EEHNTAEMB TR KO HERER
E-BME-T-—FNA=+E BRNHE
e

AEBERRES ZREBLUBITE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE

30.

31.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

T2 "HFABZ=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

BANK AND CASH BALANCES 30. SRITRIRELEER

The carrying amount of the Group’s bank and cash balances is FEBEBZHRTRRESERZREEU
denominated in the following currencies: THEEEE -

2022 2021
—EF %
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT FHET
HK$ AT 1,403 23,053
RMB AR 3,587 350
US$ E7T 8 8
4,998 23,411

As at 30 September 2022, the bank and cash balances of
the Group denominated in RMB was HK$3,525,000 (2021:
HK$288,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

TRADE PAYABLES

Generally, there is no credit period for suppliers of natural
gas as the Group need to prepay before the purchase of the
natural gas. For liquefied natural gas, the credit period granted
by supplier to the Group was 30 days. For other business, the
credit period granted by supplier to the Group ranged from 60
to 180 days.

31.

RTECFAB=ZTH UAR
KA EZAEBRTAFEEERS
3,525,000/ 7t (Z& = —4 : 288,000
BT c NRERIRBINEAETHE
SNEEEFROAURGE EERMES
BRE -

T B H AR

—RmE > RAREERTEREEE
B REAREEERBEERARAE
TR MBRIERARMES > HERERE
FTAREAZEEHHA R - FEMETR
me HEFRFAERZEEHNTF
60&E180H °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHhA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

31. TRADE PAYABLES (continuead)

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on date of receipt
of goods, is as follows:

31.

FE{H B 5 R (&

*ETFH&ZHYP?E& HHZ7ZENE SR
BRECDMTINT :

2022 2021

—EF %

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHETT TR

0 to 90 days 0F90H 621 -
91 to 180 days 91&180H - 1
181 to 365 days 1812365H 109 695
Over 365 days BiA365H 415 177
1,145 873

The trade payables are non-interest bearing and normally BB SR AT EREBEREAENI0

settled on 30 to 180 days terms.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

F180H FABIAET ©

AERRNEZRNZERAEEDUT
HIEHEEHE ¢

2022 2021
s TEC—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FBIT

HK$ BT 15 92
RMB AR 1,130 781
1,145 873

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

32. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

32. EstERAREMEIIRR

2022 2021
—EF %
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT FHET
Payable for construction in progress 7t 22 T 12 FE{T R X 26,796 34,469
Receipt in advance (note) FaUEIE (M9sE) 1,957 2,070
Other payables and accruals HiEN R ETER 15,064 15,335
43,817 51,874

Analysed as: SaRir=
Current liabilities mENEE 40,608 51,874
Non-current liabilities FERBAas 3,209 -
43,817 51,874

Note:

Included in receipt in advance of HK$1,957,000 (2021: HK$2,070,000)
was deposits received for disposal of building (note 19(d)) of the Group

from an independent third party.

BEE :

B IE1,957,0008 0 (S - —4 .
2,070,000 7T) BEMEERERBET (I
5E19(d) BB E=Z AW ZZE -

33. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 33. aERE

2022 2021
g TET—fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFAT

Billings in advance of BHETEMIERR

performance obligation

— Sales of goods —iHEE M 191 5
— Sales of natural gas —HEXRAR 9,257 5,105
— Pipeline installation services —BETERY 1,350 1,242
10,798 6,352

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHhA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

33. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 33. aNEaFE @
Contract liabilities relating to sales of goods, sales of natural HIHEER - HEXAAKREBELER
gas and pipeline installation services are balances due to BEBzeNEaENMERBESHN
customers under goods sales contracts, natural gas sales AARHEGNUNREBLERB SN
contracts and pipeline installation services contracts. They ENEEZEF HRERALZNBABE
arise because customers pay deposits for the contracts which SHRZW@mzaNEs  HWHIR i
exceed the revenue recognised to date. Bhte
Increase in contract liabilities balances during the reporting year EHNEEEFIRREERNEN BREAS
was because of more new natural gas sales contracts were W ERBIESMAARHEESHN
signed with new customers, leading to increase in billing in REHERAR 2 BATENRIIE M
advance of sales of natural gas.
Movements in contract liabilities: BHEBBEZEF
2022 2021
- —ET £
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT TATT
Balance at beginning of year FEX SR 6,352 3,732
Decrease in contract liabilities as REANERFAFENENER
a result of recognising revenue Nk mERENaBERLD
during the year that was included
in contract liabilities at the beginning
of the year (6,039) (2,621)
Increase in contract liabilities as HEERR AR EBLRERT
a result of billing in advance of BANRRENSNEBIEN
sales of natural gas and pipeline
installation services 10,502 5,170
Exchange differences b 2 A= %E (17) 71
Balance at end of year FEREERR 10,798 6,352

There is no billings in advance of performance received that is
expected to be recognised as income after more than one year
(2021: Nil).

BRITENBE-—FREIBERAZ
BHORNER (CTTEZ—F 18 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHAA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

34.

35.

LEASE LIABILITIES 34. fHE A&
Minimum Present value of minimum
lease payments lease payments
RIEREMT REREMHRZRE
2022 2021 2022 2021
et 2 ET-F —E-_F “ET—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTAT FET FTAT FAET
Within one year —FR 1,678 1,500 1,580 1,405
More than one year, —ENEBRBEME
but not exceeding two years 659 454 623 445
More than two years, MEULBREBBRE
but not exceeding five years 632 - 614 -
2,969 1,954 2,817 1,850
Less: Future finance charges B RRBEER (152) (104)  N/A REH N/A R BB
Present value of lease obligations HESEZRE 2,817 1,850 2,817 1,850
Less: Amount due for settlement A AR12BRNEEZTIE
within 12 months (shown RrRBa’ETIT)
under current liabilities) (1,580) (1,405)
Amount due for settlement BER12ERBBEZZIE
after 12 months 1,237 445

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities range from 3.57% to 8.89% (2021: from 8.17%
to 14.76%).

The carrying amount of the Group’s lease liabilities is
denominated in HKS.

Included in lease liabilities of HK$1,303,000 (2021: Nil) was

guaranteed by a director of a subsidiary of the Group.

DUE TO DIRECTORS 35.

The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

BREAREESaGaGEZNETHIEEREES
FIRNF3.57%E8.89% (CE-—1F .
817%ZE14.76%)

AEEEES M REBUETHE.
HE & (51,303,000 (ZEZ—F :
m aEAEE-HNEATEEL R
fRe

BRHEEMIE

BNEEFRESBRF - REREANRE
REFEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHhA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

36. NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS 36. AAIIARR(ES

2022 2021

—E-C —EC—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FHET

Non-convertible bonds AR ES 16,752 27,166
Analysed as: DU -

Current liabilities mENEE 7,852 27,166

Non-current liabilities EREEE 8,900 -

16,752 27,166

The terms of non-convertible bonds (“NCBs”) are as follows:

FERES (TR RES)) AR

M
Interest rates
per annum Maturity Note 2022 2021
FRE 38 k= —E-"EF T %
HK$’000 HK$'000
TAT TAT
NCB batch 1 12% 30 September 2022 (2021: 5 November 2020 to (i) 1,900 4,144
30 September 2022)
E—MAAHMBES 12% “RCZFNR=HH(CEZI-H . ZE2E%R
+—AERE-E-_FAA=+A)
NCB batch 2 12% N/A (ii) - 3,529
ERHATHMRES 12% N
NCB batch 3 4% to 20% 10 January 2020 to 26 July 2023 (i) 5,050 10,334
(2021: 10 January 2020 to 26 July 2022)
EZHATHRBRES 4%F20% CECEE-RBTAEIEIZEYAT+AH
(ZBZ-F.Z2°2F—-At+HZE
B of = I A=)
NCB batch 4 6% N/A (iv) - 4,000
FOHFITRRES 6% B
NCB batch 5 10% to 18% 30 September 2022 (2021: 31 December 2020 to 0] 250 4,399
13 February 2022)
SARAFARKES 10%E18% ZZIZFAA=tH(CEZ-F . 22Z2%F
+ZA=+-HEZIZZZFZR+=H)
NCB batch 6 12% 27 June to 29 September 2025 8,900 -
FAMATRKRES 12% “ECHRERBZHTHEABZ+AR
Accrued interest 652 760
FEETFIR
16,752 27,166
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHAA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

36. NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

Note:

(i)

(ii

(i)

(iv)

Near the end of the reporting period, the bondholders signed
letters of intent with the Company agreeing to further extend
the maturity date to 30 September 2024. Subsequent to 30
September 2022, the bonds have been renewed with maturity
date extended to 30 September 2024.

The maturity date of the bond was 28 February 2022.

Included in the balance was 6% Bond of HK$350,000 which
was overdue since 10 January 2020. Bond of HK$3,000,000 will
mature during 10 March 2023 to 26 July 2023. Near the end of
the reporting period, the bondholders with principal amount of
HK$1,700,000 out of HK$5,050,000 in aggregate have signed
letters of intent with the Company agreeing to further extend
the maturity date to 30 September 2024. Subsequent to 30
September 2022, bonds with principal amount of HK$1,700,000
have been renewed with maturity date extended to 30
September 2024.

The maturity date of the bond was 3 December 2020.

The carrying amounts of the non-convertible bonds issued
approximate their fair values.

Non-convertible bonds issued at fixed interest rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The carrying amount of the Group’s non-convertible bonds is
denominated in the following currencies:

36. AAIARRIES &

MIEE -

(i) B sRE IR BERBEAREKAT
TERAR > ARHIPRE—F
LEREZZE_MNFNB=1+H 1K=
T _FAB=+H%B EHFEEM
B ABEREZZSZNOEANA
=+H-

iy EFNIBEEA-Z__4"H
it AN =)

iy FEFALEHAB_E=_ZTH£—HF+
BB B HIM350,000% TT6 %M 1E
% 3,000, ooo%ﬁmfﬁ%%ﬁﬁé:
E_ZF-A+RE_E_=ZFt
BZ+/HEH- Euua_iﬁiﬂﬁﬂz’
& $5,050,000 B T EREALES
1,700,000 8B tHESFAEACD AR
NEIBEEROX BEHIIHEEE—
SHEE_Z_MEAB=Z+H R
T2 "HFAB=+H%B> z&@%ﬁz%
1,700,000 T EH EEHEL
HAEEE_Z_MFEAA= +E|°

(v, BFENIBER-ZE-_TF+_/=
He

BEGTZANRRESZREERA
NFEEE

REEMEZRTZAATBRRKRESER
EEEBRAFENERLR-

FEBFABRRESZREEBEN TS

EfstE

2022 2021

k- oo —BC—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

HK$ BT 16,752 24,911
us$ E7T - 1,106
RMB AR - 1,149
16,752 27,166
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

37. BANK BORROWINGS 37. IRITMEM
2022 2021
—E__F B —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Secured bank borrowings (note) BiRRIRITER (5D 21,873 13,568
Unsecured bank borrowings MIRIRIETER 1,680 4,499
23,553 18,067
The bank borrowings are repayable as follows: IRITER AR U THBERE
2022 2021
—=E-= B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Within one year —&FRN 2,878 7,680
More than one vear, —FEM EBREBARF
but not exceeding two years 3,407 9,169
More than two years, ME EBRBBAE
but not more than five years 17,268 1,218
23,553 18,067
Less: Amount due for settlement B ZBER12E B B E 2 R IE
within 12 months (shown RREEEE TR
under current liabilities) (2,878) (7,680)
Amount due for settlement Br12@ B &iEEZRIE
after 12 months 20,675 10,387
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B

EZZTFNB=+HIEFE  For the year ended 30 September 2022

37. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Note:

Bank borrowings as at 30 September 2022 are secured by the
pledge of natural gas supply exclusive rights of Yichang Biaodian,
and a property owned by Mr. Xiong Songgan (“Mr. Xiong”), a key
management personnel of Yichang Biaodian. The bank borrowings
are also jointly guaranteed by Mr. Xiong and the non-controlling
shareholders of Yichang Biaodian.

Bank borrowings of HK$13,393,000 as at 30 September 2021 are
secured by several properties owned by NCI of Yichang Biaodian,
including Mr. Xiong and his spouse, and a company held and controlled
by Mr. Xiong. The bank borrowings are also jointly guaranteed by
NCI of Yichang Biaodian, including Hubei Biaodian, Mr. Xiong and his
spouse and Mr. Li.

Bank borrowings of HK$175,000 as at 30 September 2021 are
secured by a personal guarantee of the legal representative of Yichang
Biaodian.

The amounts are based on scheduled repayment dates set out
in the respective loan agreements.

The carrying amount of the Group’s bank borrowing balance is
denominated in RMB.

The effective interest rate of the Group’s bank borrowings
ranged from 5.00% to 12.24% (2021: 5.00% to 15.00%).

Bank borrowings of HK$21,873,000 (2021: HK$175,000) are
arranged at fixed interest rates and expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk.

Other borrowings are arranged at floating rates based on
the benchmark interest rate issued by the People’s Bank of
China during both years. Interest rate will be adjusted if the
benchmark interest rate changes, thus exposing the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk.

37. SRITEFR @

GER

RIEZZHFAA=+B RITEFUES
EHENARAREEBRENERREER
HFTEEBASERMREAE (T8REE)) #
BZYEERRRITERNTHELERE
EEE 7 JE AR R R

KRB -—FhLA=Z+TH RITER
13,393,000 T U E R HIFIERREE (B
BEREERHE® BAEZETYWENURE
BRECEER RIER 2 — B A B fFIE - $R17
BRI HREERMEIFERER (B HIR
HNBRSTAERHEBBRFLE) HRAER-

KRB -—FhAA=Z+TH RITER
175,0008 Tt/ HEERBZATER KR Z(E
AFERIEIER -

ZEREDEREERBEAN 5
BIEREH-

A E 2 SRATIE RS SR AR A D SR
R -

AEBIRBTERZERINENF
5.00% £12.24% (ZE - —F : 5.00%
F15.00%) ©

E1TfE 21,873,000 7w (Z &~ —
£ 1 175,000 7T) MEEMEZHE - F
FEEEBEATENKARE-

KmEFEEEMEGE LU SRR 2 HE
PBARBITEMZEBERN KGR -
i EEFKEH AR GEEHBE
Fit > A ER @RS REN X ER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z - _FHhA=+HLEEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

38. DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS OF A SUBSIDIARY AND

ITS RELATED PARTIES

Particulars of the amounts due to non-controlling shareholders

38. BT —HMB AR ZIFZER

A% 5R e HL. 7 B

RIH

FEAT — BB /BB R B) R4 R AR 3R S EL

of a subsidiary and its related parties are as follows: Bep 2 FIBEBROT -
2022 2021
—E-C —E 4
Name Relationship HK$’000 HK$'000
28 MR % FAT TFHT
Hubei Biaodian and its subsidiaries note (a) 16,064 27,433
b K H Y B A B BI5E(a)
Mr. Xiong and his controlled entities note (b) 11,280 16,925
EAEREET B B 5% (b)
B 8 MinsE note (c) - 65
ER=piuki=h= B 5E(c)
27,344 44,423
Notes: MIEE -

(@) Hubei Biaodian is the 21% (2021: 21%) non-controlling
shareholder of Yichang Biaodian.

(b)  Mr. Xiong is the controlling shareholder of Hubei Biaodian.

(c) EEMIFE is the 24.49% non-controlling shareholder of
Yichang Biaodian.

Amounts due to Hubei Biaodian and its subsidiaries, Mr.
Xiong and his controlled entities and B & #$A7# represented
advances for Yichang Biaodian’s capital expenditure purposes
and were non-trade in nature. They are not repayable within
12 months from the date of this report. These balances are
unsecured and interest free. Certain amounts were carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with
an effective interest rate of 10% for the year ended 30
September 2021. On 30 September 2022, the non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary and its related parties issued
declarations to Yichang Biaodian that they promised not to
request for repayment from Yichang Biaodian within 24 months
up to 30 September 2024.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F

(@) MILEAREEEERME21% (TF
TF I 21%) RIEZIFIERKER

(o) BRICERHIRAZIZERRR

) EEMREBELREAESIRME24.49%
ez JFIERARER ©

FEMHIL R ENB AR RAER
HEEfERrEEME ZRIESR
RESRHEARSZ 2B ERABIEE
%S - BRAMIED AR AR S H AL
Fr12EARNER ZEEGRARIEIRK
RE - EATEHERABERIE AIREHE
ARG BE_E-_—FhhB=1H
LEEE BEMEAB10% - R _E -
FHAE=1+8 —HEXENIEER
KRERERK DR STHEHER
AKAREFREREERANREES
THFEAB=+THBR24EB NIER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE_E__SNH=+HILEE Forthe year ended 30 September 2022

39. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current year and prior year:

39. EEMRIFEE R

UTHRAFERBEFERIZE
BIRERBEEE R HAARES)

Revaluation

of assets

BEEM

HK$’000

FHT

At 1 October 2020 (\ZQZVE—I—H H 17,377

Exchange differences REEE 1,100

Credited to profit or loss (note 12) .:Jr]\?ﬂ (FizE12) (719)
At 30 September 2021 and 1 October 2021 N ZEZ—FAB=1THXK

e e e = 17,758

Exchange differences b 2 = 28 (930)

Charged to profit or loss (note 12) NexEm (FFEE12) 3,416

At 30 September 2022 A _E__FNB=+H 20,244

At the end of the reporting year, the Group had unused tax
losses of HK$231,730,000 (2021: HK$231,830,000) available
to offset against future profits. The unrecognised tax losses

RREFEER AEBRFHZRIEE
1874231,730,0008 7 (ZE - —4F :
231,830,000 7T) @ oI LK R K&

of HK$213,395,000 (2021: HK$199,667,000) can be carried o R IER1E213,395,00078 7T
forward infinitively. The remaining HK$18,335,000 (2021: (Z& - —4% :199,667,0008 70) o] &

HK$32,163,000) related to tax losses in the PRC which will

expire in one to five years.

No provision for deferred tax assets has been recognised in
respect of tax losses and other temporary differences due to

unpredictability of future profit streams.

FRERAS & o B2~ 218,335,000 71 (=
= —14F 32,163,000 7T) B AR
BEERER HEBER—ZREREme

RSN EETRRI AR A AR B LA
FRIEREEREME R ERESDE
JERIRE E R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_—

FNB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

40. SHARE CAPITAL 40. fg7Zs
2022 2021
k- Jafent:- —EC-fF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RRip & B AL BEE G
’000 HK$’000 '000 HK$'000
T THERT Tk TET
Authorised: AR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 SREECETT
(2021: HK$0.5) each (ZBZ—5:05%87)
2EBER 8,000,000 80,000 160,000 80,000
Capital reduction (note (a)) RO E (i) - - 7,840,000 -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREGEIBTZLEER 8,000,000 80,000 8,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRHRE
At beginning of year RER 455,860 4,559 91,172 45,586
Capital reduction (note (a)) R AHIA (5 () - - - (44,674)
Rights issue (note (o)) A (M5E(D)) - - 364,688 3,647
At end of year REX 455,860 4,559 455,860 4,559
Notes: B 53
(@ On 4 August 2021, the Company announced that an order () MIZEZ—FNAOEB > ARBEM

confirming the capital reduction granted by the court from
Cayman Islands on 3 August 2021 (Cayman Islands time), the
nominal value of each of the Company’s issued share was
reduced from HK$0.5 to HK$0.01 each by cancelling the paid-
up capital to the extent of HK$0.49 on each issued share and
the existing issued share capital of HK$45,586,000 was reduced
by approximately HK$44,674,000 to approximately HK$912,000
comprising 91,172,000 shares of HK$0.01 each with effect
from 4 August 2021. As a result, an amount of HK$44,674,000
was credited to accumulated losses on 4 August 2021. Upon
the completion of capital reduction effective on 4 August
2021, the number of authorised shares of the Company was
increased from 160,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each to
8,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each. Each share
ranks pari passu in all respects.

HERELIRR_E-_—FN\8=H
(FEHERRE) & HEDREH R
MES #BFHER B ETRMD0.49
BULZBERAMBEEABERE
BEITRMVEERSROSETE LD
EER0.01EBL MRBEFBTRAE
45,586,00078 758/ 944,674,000
TEE49912,00058 7T > €23%91,172,000
KREKREECOIBTHNRG  BZ
T -—FN\AEEREMR AL
44,674,000 TR _E-_—FN\A
MBsFARSBEE - RIEZ—F
NEBEHKBRHERTRENE > &
REEER S EEH160,000,000
BEREmE.sB Tz EERIEME
8,000,000,0008% & IR EI{E0.0178 T2
TR -BRROEMBEFEZER

S £ o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE

40.

T2 FHAA=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  On 20 November 2020, the Company announced a proposed
rights issue (the “Rights Issue”) on the basis of four rights
shares for every one adjusted share held on the record date
at the subscription price of HK$0.16 per rights share, to raise
approximately HK$58,350,000 by issuing 364,688,000 rights
shares to the qualifying shareholders. Upon the Rights Issue was
approved by shareholders’ resolution passed at an extraordinary
general meeting on 21 April 2021 and completion of the Rights
Issue on 31 August 2021, the number of shares in issue of
the Company was increased by 364,688,000, resulting in a
credit to share capital and share premium by HK$3,647,000
and HK$52,612,000, after netting of the related cost of
HK$2,092,000.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new
debts, redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The primary objective of the Group’s capital risk management is
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 30
September 2022.

40. g7 (&

BisE @ (&

(b) ATECEF+—BZ+H EKRE
BfiEEUBEEESRERERMD0.16
BrRIBEBRERE—REHAE
BHEZERERKRNZEEEK
AR (TERR)) B RAEaERIREE
17364,688,000 2 AR IR 15 » EEN
58,350,000 Lo N - —4F
MEBE-+—HHREBREAZEBL
BRERSHETNR _ZE_—FEN\A8
=+ HERHEREZ KABBET
BE 15 1% N364,688,0008% » & E &5+ A HY
BE A K B 15w B 93 B 43,647,000
Tt K%52,612,00058 7T (B 0B8RI AL
752,092,000 7T) °

FEBEFEE BEREHELAER
ZHBEERD LEBBEEHER
RFEmBRREREELOR-

AEBEZRBRLEOREERTER K&
BRBEECEREZE(CREREEZ
R E EEERRBUMUFE-
WERURABERRRE  AEEAHRE
KRB #ETHR EERN -BE
HED  BRIRAEHFNHEEELUR
BEH-

FEBEARBRERE T EERAE
RAEEBFHBESEZENRRERE
WEALERUXFEEBIRARE
RAKREKEE-

AEBEEEEE A2 AR R R
MEEHEEHRE RERFIBEEE
R AEEHGRBEZLTFTREZ
KRE -BEREEARYEFTHR -EE
TEIFNB=t+HLEEE > BE-
BRI F ki o
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40. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

EZZTFNB=+HIEFE  For the year ended 30 September 2022

40.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total equity of the Group. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and convertible

bond, less cash and bank balances and excludes discontinued

operations. Capital includes equity attributable to owners of

the Company. The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting year

7

rEBEREERRILXEZEESELA &
rEBELERTEAERFEGRNUE
RmstE - FREEES RIRITREM
BEURPIHBRES  BIRE RIRITAE
FRERSRERIEEEET - EXEE
FABRAABEREZ NBEEER

was as follows: NEESGELEERNT
2022 2021
- T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TATT
Lease liabilities (note 34) HESE (M5E34) 2,817 1,850
Due to related parties (note 47(d)) & B B 75 =8 (MY sE47(d)) 9,888 1,218
Due to directors (note 35) P EERIE (f15E35) 1,142 3,011
Non-convertible bonds (note 36) Aol Es (H9sE36) 16,752 27,166
Bank borrowings (note 37) RITER (FIEE37) 23,553 18,067
Due to non-controlling shareholders of FE{S— I EB AT 2 IEEER
a subsidiary and its related parties % 2 K ELRA B 75 =8
(note 38) (F$5E38) 27,344 44,423
Total borrowings BEMEEE 81,496 95,735
Less: Bank and cash balances B IRTT RIRS AR R
(note 30) (F$5E30) (4,998) (23,411)
Net debt B 358 76,498 72,324
Total equity R 4B A 82,337 72,632
Gearing ratio EESBALX 93% 99%

The decrease in the gearing ratio during the year ended 30

September 2022 resulted primarily from significant increase in

equity attributable to profit for the year.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the

Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to

have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.

HE_Z__FHARA=1+HILEEE &
EBBILXRALIETERRERGH
JRE {1 8 2 A M 3 A0 ©

SNEBTEINZ E—EARERD > BERE
EERBMXM LT A ABEED

26%RMNZ RRFTFRE
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HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

40. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 40.

The Group checks the substantial share interests showing
the non-public float through the Stock Exchange’s website
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year.

Apart from above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

41. RESERVES 41.
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital
issued by the Company and the fair value allocated
to the separable net assets of the subsidiaries
at the date of acquisition arisen from a group
reorganisation in March 2000.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IEKEREBBE AT ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F#

nts

e 7S =

K%%Ei&ﬂ“‘?ﬁiﬂiﬂ?@ﬁﬁ‘r%@
mEREZ KREBRM D HERR
B F EFR BB T25%MREE

bR Lt E SN ARB REWB AR TR
RO BB E A RS

B
(a) =&

FEBZREREZBREEHNR
cERmkEMEERTRREGES
BEEEFHERANES]

(b) fREFEUEERER
() EBEXfEE

BEXRfERESAADEHTR
AEEHE-TTTE=/AZ
EEBEEFMEENKEWE
ANBEDANEEFERKE
HEZ AFEZETRE-



iR E MR ERARMIEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z_—

41. RESERVES (continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

)

Special reserve

The special reserve represents the difference
between the book values of the underlying net
assets of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM INC., DIGITAL
COMMERCE LIMITED and Digital Hong Kong
Limited at the date on which the shares of these
companies were acquired by the Company together
with the acquisition of a shareholder’s loan of
HK$7,640,000, and the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition. The
special reserve is available for distribution under the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium

Share premium represents the amount of the excess
of issue price of the Company’s shares over its par
value.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents deemed capital
contribution arising from non-current interest-free
loan from shareholders and the loss on disposal
arising from deemed disposal of 24% equity interest
in Yichang Biaodian.

Translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(d)(iii) to
the consolidated financial statements.

FNB=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

a1. B =

(b)

HEEEERB®N (&)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

1

BRI REE IR AN B WS
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM
INC. ~ DIGITAL COMMERCE
LIMITED K 85 & B EH KA
RABIKRMER ZEAT
EREEREFEZERU
B2 REERNT7,640,000%
o AL B EmE T 2
AABIROBEERERZZE
BoRBEHESHERETR
BE FhlEETHD IR
)Eﬁo

BRIBEE

RipaBIERAB RN 2%
TEBBEHEEZEER

Hithf#fE

Hitf#BIEIFAB R ERE
ERMAGIFEEESRA
24%REZ HEBRMESE
ZRAETE

AR

SMERERERERRNRE
IBINEFE 2 MBI
FRBINEE R ZHEBIZ
ir B BA S IR ZR Y 5E4(d) (i) PR
HEFBERER
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HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 42. XA F]

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

EJ)]

(@) FRBMBRRER

MBRRRR RS

2022 2021
—EF %
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment  ¥J¥% B E K EE 64 88
Right-of-use assets FREEE = 144
Investments in subsidiaries RNB AR ZRE - -
64 232
Current assets RENEBEE
Prepayment, deposits and FEMER - RERK
other receivables EHME AR 846 6,072
Loan receivables FEURE =R - 4,310
Bond receivables EWE S - -
Due from subsidiaries AL ENIENCIE 26,409 16,730
Bank and cash balances R1T RIR & EE’T\ 1,112 22,748
28,367 49,860
Current liabilities REIEE
Accruals and other payables FEst B B R H TR 7,144 5,627
Lease liabilities HEEaR - 158
Due to subsidiaries NN EPNETE O] 24 675
Due to directors FEEE A 1,197 2,775
Non-convertible bonds RO ES 7,852 27,166
16,217 36,401
Net current assets RHEERE 12,150 13,459

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BHE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 42. A AT B AR R R R #EE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY # @
(Continued)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) ETREMBERRE (&
(Continued)
2022 2021
—E-— —=—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHAT TATT
Total assets less current HEERTHBAE
liabilities 12,214 13,691
Non-current liabilities JEmENBaE
Non-convertible bonds ARl ES 8,900 -
8,900 -
Net assets BEEERE 3,314 13,691
Capital and reserves B K #E
Share capital [N 4,559 4,559
Reserves B (1,245) 9,132
TOTAL EQUITY AR 3,314 13,691
Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 December N ZEZFF+HBAZ+—HE
2022 and are signed on its behalf by: EEgHETARATIHNEERARSE
E=IN
Wang Wenzhou Wu Guoming
EXAE Z[EEA
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RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

FEAB=+HIEFEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

@)

(Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) HABZHEEE
Capital Special Share Other  Translation Accumulated
reserve reserve premium reserve reserve losses Total
BAfE G i EE Hitfife hHkE ZHEHR Eehy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TER FET TET TER FET
(note 41(b)(i)  (note 41(b)(ii))  (note 41(b)(iii)  (note 41(b)iv))  (note 41(b)(v))
(GEZ) I GEZ R GEZA RN GEZA ) R GEZ )
At 1 October 2020 “E-FE+A-A 7,640 1971 293,640 6,734 (1,063) (372,494) (63,572)
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (26,605) (26,605)
Other comprehensive income FREMZERS

for the year - - - - 2,023 - 2,023
Capital reduction (note 40(a)) BB (Ff15840(0)) - - - - - 44,674 44,674

Issuance of shares on rights issue SRR E TR (H5E40(0))
(note 40(o) - - 52,612 - - - 52,612

At 30 September 2021 and RIEZ-FAA=THEK
1 October 2021 “2”-%+B-H 7,640 1,971 346,252 6,734 960 (354,425) 9,132
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (12,772) (12,772)

Other comprehensive income FREMZERS

for the year - - - - 2,395 - 2,395
At 30 September 2022 RZB-—F#nB=+H 7,640 1,971 346,252 6,734 3,355 (367,197) (1,245)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F
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43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Disposal of subsidiaries

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the Group
entered into share transfer agreements with two different
buyers, which were independent from the Group, to
dispose its entire 100% and 60% equity interests in two
subsidiaries respectively at consideration in aggregate
of HK$40,000. One of the subsidiaries was engaged in
insurance broker business during the year.

Net liabilities at the date of disposal of subsidiaries in

FEAB=+HIEFEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

meaRERERMNE

(a) HEMBAE

BE_ZT-__FNA=1+HIF
ErAEEEAMEARES (598
MR AER) ST M EERE
L/(ﬁﬂ'Jﬁm/\ﬁAﬁﬁéﬁBﬁE@jE’J
2 E6100% K%60%ML 1 R ES
40,0008 HA—fEHWE QA
RERNRERBCALER -

RHENBABSHHRNEERS

aggregate were as follows: HUT -
HK$’000
FE&T
Trade receivables B 5 E WA 1
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables Fa{J 1B ~ & & K H fih FE W zh 18 3
Bank balances IRITHEER 44
Trade payables B2 R IE (77)
Accruals and other payables FEEH & A R EME[ RIE (85)
Non-controlling interest JEER R 13
Net liabilities disposed of HEFAR (101)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 9) HEWB AR WE FTsE9) 141
Total consideration WARE 40
Consideration satisfied by Cash UIRESENMRKE 40

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEENRE R FEE .

Consideration received BB 40
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERERIREEEY (44)
(4)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F
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HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

BRI ERRMIEE

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary

During the year, the Group acquired the entire 40% equity
interest in Heroic Sunshine Limited, at a consideration of
US$40 from its non-controlling interest. The transaction
was recognised directly in equity.

Major non-cash transaction
Imputed interest of approximately HK$257,000 charged

for the year ended 30 September 2021 was accrued to a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and its related

FeREeRERME @

(b)

(c)

WE—EMEB AR NER

F R A~ E B U EEHeroic Sunshine
LimitedMy 2 2840% &1 > (B2

FERERIOETL - X ZEER
HEmIESD o
FEIFRERS

RNEZE_E_-_—FhLB=1+H
HTEFEENRZGHEERNELY
257,000 B T EFHIRE — K B

parties. NE)ZIEE R R R ERAE 5 o
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing d REIHFRELEEREZHIER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TREFMARBAEEREEHMM
arising from financing activities, including both cash ELfaGrz88) g9EREKIE
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing RSy METHMELEER
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future ERAERFRERENERAD
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated HARBEIHFMEEZIRE RS
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing HRKIBEREZEE
activities.
Interest Non-cash Exchange 30 September
1 October 2021 Cash flows expenses movement differences 2022
ZEZ-% ZEZZ
+A-8H Rehig FEHx FREEH ERZE hB=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T FHET FHr FHT FHT
Bank borrowings (note 37)  $R/TE (Fi5+37) 18,067 5,703 1,116 - (1,333) 23,553
Due to non-controlling EA—REHEARZ
shareholders of a FERRERR
subsidiary and its related  ELFiH# A FUE
parties (note 38) (Ffi3£38) 44,423 (15,451) - - (1,628) 27,344
Non-convertible bonds TA#hkES
(note 36) (tz£36) 27,166 (11,714) 1,296 - 4 16,752
Due to directors (note 35) R EEHE
(F35) 3,011 (1,796) - - (73) 1,142
Lease liabilities (note 34) HESE (15H34) 1,850 (1,937) 191 2,113 - 2,817
94,517 (25,195) 2,603 2,713 (3,030) 71,608
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43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

FeREeRERME @

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (d REBIEHFRELEEGRZHIEE &
activities (Continued)
Interest Non-cash Exchange 30 September
1 October 2020 Cash flows expenses movement differences 2021
Z27%f “ET-f
+A-H Reiig flSEx FReEH EREE NA=+A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FEL T TER T TR
Bank borrowings (note 37)  SRT{E (Fi5£37) 20,601 (5,708) 1,900 - 1,269 18,067
Due to non-controlling EN—BIBARZ
shareholders of a FERERR
subsidiary and its related  Ef# A FE
parties (note 38) (Fi13£38) 40,441 1,129 257 - 2,596 44,423
Non-convertible bonds TolakES
(note 36) (t3£36) 58,896 (33,689) 1888 - 71 27,166
Due to directors (note 35)  EAEEE
(Fff5£35) 3,969 (1,198) - - 240 3,011
Lease liabilities (note 34) ~ TAEE&E (fi5£34) 1,496 (1,078) 159 1,273 - 1,850
125,403 (40,539) 4,204 1,273 4,176 94,517
Total cash outflow for leases (e) THERERH4EEE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases FARERESRERSEEE
comprise the following: MF&IE:
2022 2021
—=E-— B
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET TFHT
Within operating cash flows BRSPS RBENR 365 263
Within financing cash flows MEREREN 1,764 988
2,129 1,251

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBREE B RA R
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HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cContinued)

43. ZRIREMERMTE @)

(e) Total cash outflow for leases (Continued) (e) TEREMLIAELE (&
These amounts relate to the following: ZETREATIIER
2022 2021
—E-C —E 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT TATT
Lease rental paid BENHEEREE 2,129 1,251
44, LITIGATION 44, KR
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2018, Yichang @ REBEEZZE—N\F+A=+-—

Biaodian entered into disputes with one of its suppliers
regarding the quality of work performed by such supplier.
Legal proceedings were initiated by the supplier (the
“Yichang Plaintiff 1”) and on 14 December 2018, pursuant
to the application from the Yichang Plaintiff 1, the
Court in Yichang granted an order to preserve the bank
deposits of Yichang Biaodian amounted to approximately
RMB478,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$544,000).

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IEKEREBBE AT ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F#
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44, LITIGATION (continuea)

(a)

(Continued)

On 13 March 2019, the Court issued civil mediation
agreement which set out that the Yichang Plaintiff 1 and
Yichang Biaodian agreed with the repayment terms in
relation to the aforesaid amount. Yichang Biaodian is
required to repay RMB200,000 on or before 30 April
2019 and an order could be applied to unfreeze the bank
accounts; and Yichang Biaodian was required to settle
RMB2,000,000 on or before 30 September 2019 and the
remaining outstanding amount on or before 30 March
2020. The Yichang Plaintiff 1 has the rights to apply for
a court order to enforce Yichang Biaodian to settle all its
debts if it fails to repay RMB2,200,000 to the Yichang
Plaintiff 1 on or before 30 September 2019. Amount of
RMB8,787,000 (equivalent to HK$10,006,000) are fully
provided as liabilities of the Group at 31 December 2018.
The restricted bank balance was released on 11 April
2019 upon agreement between the Yichang Plaintiff 1
and Yichang Biaodian.

On 20 November 2019, the Yichang Plaintiff 1 has
exercised its rights to apply for a court order to enforce
Yichang Biaodian for settlement of amount overdue
and on 13 May 2022, RMB1,000,000 had been settled.
On 19 May 2022, the Yichang Plaintiff 1 and Yichang
Biaodian signed a mediation agreement which set out
that the outstanding balance would be repaid in 25
monthly installments of RMB300,000 from June 2022
to July 2024, and it would be guaranteed by Mr. Xiong
Songgan, a key management personnel of Yichang
Biaodian. If Yichang Biaodian fail to repay as scheduled,
default interest would be charged at 12% per annum on
the outstanding balance owed to the Yichang Plaintiff
1 since 1 May 2019. The directors of the Company
considered that as the full amount of the remaining debts
of RMB6,387,000 (equivalent to HK$7,353,000) claimed
by Yichang Plaintiff 1 are fully provided as liability of the
Group as at 30 September 2022, no further liability will be
incurred.

44,

FER (&

(@)

€=
RZIEBE—HE=A+=H0"%kK
BHREEERBE ETHIE
ERE—AEEZHRBTEARL
MBEZEERKR -EEIZHA
N _E—HEMNB=+HHZAH
B8 AR 1200,0007T > I 7] FA 5
BLRIBTIRS  REEIEH
BR_E—NEAB=+HZZ
g5 EBARE2,000,0007T K2
—E_EFE=F=+H=zizHE
BRETHAEESHE HEEE
HAER_ZE—NEAB=1+H
FZHBEERG—EEARKE
2,200,0007c IEERE —A#
B AT Lan B E1ZH4E
HMEGER - AR #8,787,0007T
(#8E#10,006,00087T) ERZ
E—NE+_A=+—B2HE
HBAREBRZEE TRHIRIT
ERREERE—HESIRHE
EBNR_ZE—NENB+—H#$E
B o

RZE2E—hF+—ABAZ+H E
ERE—BITEEERRFE LR
BLatEEIZHEEARNIE
ER_E-__F#HRB+=H"A
E#1,000,000c B HEE R
—__ERRtAH BERE—
B ERMEBIIRARRE 8P
HEREEEHREN -
RNBE_Z_NELBHEEA
E #300,0007c F251E B 5 (T
TEE BEBHERERLE (B
EEHEN -2 TEEEAL) E
RoWME SIZHEKRENHEE
BEEZZE—NFHRBE—HERX
NEERE—MWRKEEGHNE
F12%WERENFE c K ABE
ERAE RE__FENAB=+
H BEERE—HRREZHTERE
2 EIE A R16,387,0007T (8
& 517,353,000 T) B2 #EAE
AREBRZEGE RNIEESLH
e Ee
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44, LITIGATION (continuea)

44. iFER &

(0)

During the year ended 30 September 2019, there
was a dispute between Yichang Biaodian and one of
its suppliers regarding the settlement of outstanding
amounts for construction work performed by the supplier.
Legal proceedings were initiated by the supplier (the
“Yichang Plaintiff 2”). The Court of Sanxia Ba District
denied the application of Yichang Plaintiff 2 for the
settlement amount. Yichang Plaintiff 2 appealed to
Intermediate People’s Court of Yichang City. On 29
October 2020, the Court issued civil ruling paper which
set out the repayment of RMB1,036,000 (equivalent
to HK$1,261,000) from Yichang Biaodian to Yichang
Plaintiff 2 within 15 days of the issuance of the civil ruling
paper. Yichang Biaodian is required to pay double of the
interest expenses for late payment (the “Default Interest”).
Yichang Plaintiff 2 has the rights to apply for a court order
to enforce Yichang Biaodian to settle all its debts if it fails
to repay within 15 days of the issuance of the civil ruling

paper.

On 7 January 2021, Yichang Plaintiff 2 has exercised
its rights to apply for a court order to enforce Yichang
Biaodian for settlement of the amount overdue. On 10
June 2021, the Court issued a consumption restriction
order, to restrict Yichang Biaodian (including its
legal representative, main person in charge, directly
responsible personnel affecting the liability enforcement
and the actual controller) and a senior management
personnel from certain specified consumption activities.
Yichang Biaodian was required to apply for permission
from the court before carrying out those restricted
consumption activities. For any acts violating the
consumption restriction order, the Court has the rights to
issue penalty or detention.

(o)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F#R
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44, LITIGATION (continuea)

(0)

(Continueq)

On 27 March 2022, the Yichang Plaintiff 2 and Yichang
Biaodian signed a mediation agreement which set out
that Yichang Biaodian agreed to repay the outstanding
balance together with court fee and the Default
Interest incurred up to 28 February 2022, amounted
to RMB1,082,000 in aggregate, in two instalments of
RMB541,000 each on or before 31 March 2022 and 15
July 2022 respectively. Yichang Plaintiff 2 agreed to assist
in application for the release of consumption restriction
order upon receipt of first instalment. Yichang Biaodian
fully settled the balance during the year ended 30
September 2022.

During the year ended 30 September 2020, Shenzhen
Global has been in dispute with a former director of the
Group regarding the ownership of the building located
in the PRC. Legal proceedings were initiated by the
former director (the “Shenzhen Plaintiff”’). On 8 July 2020,
pursuant to the application from the Shenzhen Plaintiff,
the Court in Shenzhen granted an order to preserve the
building of Shenzhen Global from being sold by the Group
during the period from 9 July 2020 to 8 July 2023. On
6 May 2021, the Court in Shenzhen concluded that the
ownership of the building belongs to the Group. On 24
May 2021, the former director lodged an appeal against
the decision made by the Court. On 16 December 2021,
the Court in Shenzhen rejected the appeal from the
former director. On 14 June 2022, the Court in Shenzhen
decided to remove the preservation order on the building
of Shenzhen Global.
period, no further action was taken by the former director

Up to the end of the reporting

after the rejection from the Court in Shenzhen.

44,

AFER (&

(o)

E’S:viifﬁ BZ ‘f’tE’E_
ERE_HEEIZEHME ] H R
éﬁ’;qﬂﬁzﬁﬂaﬁﬁﬂiﬁefﬁ@
FEERBERIEERUKRE
EZEZ_FZAZ+NHE
EWENTE aHABARE
1,082,000t AR AR ZE
T IFE=BA=+—HRIZZEZZ
FEtA+RBHZAUMEI =
FHAR541,0007c - H & 12 H4
“EERRWREEEMNRE RS
FERFHEEEGFS - REBEEZZ
T ZHFNAB=+HEFEE -HEES
BB 2BENGER-

HE_ZZFNA=+THILHF
E’?xi||IEI*§5iZK$—%ETJ§
ERLU NBBERMARFEH
ZHEFMEBE# -mIES (TFRIIERE
) BREEAEERFR R 2
EE‘EH/\E BIEFINRESE 2

BE5 > R AB R < R & wR
LaiXZ@? RTETTELHA

NEBE_E_=FtB/N\HH
BAEERETFTUHE RIS
T—F R BB FIITIERR
AHEFHEEBRAER K
T —HFRA_+NHBIESE
MERERZ HRIREE iR
—E-—F+Z8+/HFIY
MEREBRBAESEN Eifo
RIZZEZZFAB+IE > FI
AR EBCEE R IIIRIKE
FHRBL - BERSHAR INFE
JIERIE® R AT E BB EE
ME—F1TH) 0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

45. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for car
parking spaces. As at 30 September 2022, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases
to which the short-term lease expense disclosed in note 20.
As at 30 September 2022, the outstanding lease commitments
relating to these car parking spaces is HK$108,000 (2021:
HK$68,000).

46. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting
year are as follows:

45.

46.

REHE T B

AEBMTESHFEE M LEPRE R
TECTFAR=TH RIPHEERE
HEHRKE0NEZ BB ERS
HERNBHAEEREHGEE - NI
TIFEAB=1+H AZEFENER
ZREERERIEAR108,0008 T (=
T~ —4F 1 68,0008 7T) °

B K I

AERRBEFERNEREKENT

2022 2021
g TET—fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFAET
Capital expenditure in respect of S ZE ~ BB M s B A
the acquisition of property, RS HEERRBAN
plant and equipment, development BEARMZ
of systems and networks
- contracted but not accounted for —BiIHNEXRAK 30,353 9,902

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IEKEREBBE AT ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F#
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(a)

. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material

FEAB=+HIEFEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

47.

BT X 53
(a) BB

PR EMBRERDEME D FA
ZRZHN REBPRERER U

transactions with related parties during the year: THEAMAZEARRS !
2022 2021
= - —E 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHAT FHET
Finance costs incurred in MRk B —RME R B SR
respect of loans from a senior EBEBABKREMAZER
management personnel of BEEZHBRA
a subsidiary and the related
parties - 257
Purchase of natural gas from R—ENEABSREEE
companies controlled by AEZEFIZ2HEABEE
senior management personnel  KAR
of a subsidiary - 1,590
Purchase of raw materials B—RENE AR EEE
from controlled by senior ANEZEFIZHEAREE
management personnel of R A48
a subsidiary 276 451
Rent of short-term lease to B — % JE 2R A% A% B AR A2 A
a non-controlling shareholder HE - 72
Sale of natural gas to B—RENER B SR EEE
a company controlled by AEEHZ —BABHE
senior management personnel KRR
of a subsidiary - (98)
Service and leasing income KE—REBEFZEHZ2—BEAFE
from a company controlled ZIRFBRBEEWA
by a director (859) (4,444)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z__SFNAH=+HIEEE For the year ended 30 September 2022
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cContinued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IRIKEXEEEEE B R A F

Related party transactions (Continued)

The related party transactions above also constitute
connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules, and the Group has complied with the requirement
in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Details of
connected transaction are disclosed in “Connected

Transaction” section in the annual report.

Details of guarantees provided by related parties for bank
borrowings granted to the Group are as set out in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel
The details of remuneration of key management

personnel, represents the emoluments of directors of the
Company paid during the year and set out in note 15(a).

47. R B R Z @)

(a)

(b)

(c)

M AE R % ()

LR 5 25 IR GEM £ T
RAB-_+EBFRAEZRERS
AFERERZ MEEEDE
SGEMETRAUE - +EZR
TEoRER S ZF BN FR MR
RPI—EIRIREE

RE A e AEBERE ZIRITHE
TRBZEREBINEETE
HRFRMIFEIT ©

TEEEAS ZH
TEEEBABZHMNEIBIEEN
ENARNBESINE > WEHNK
5E15(a) °

The remuneration of directors and other members of key FREERTEEEBHMAE
management during the year was follows: ZEBHE S

2022 2021

—E_C T4

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAT FHET

Short term benefits REREF 1,522 1,528
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BE_

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cContinued)

48.

49,

&= — —

s 2 U —

(d)

Amounts due from/(to) related parties

FEAB=+HIEFEE For the year ended 30 September 2022

47. R B R Z @)

(d) R~ (3) BBk TS =R

Name of related party Relationship Terms 2022 2021
A NS 48 M% 5N g ST
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Wu Xiachen Son of a director of Unsecured, interest-free 1,019 1,591
REBE the Company and repayable
on demand
KRB —REENRF BIKR - RERREREK
BE
Tang Xia Daughter-in-law of Unsecured, interest-free (1,151) (1,218)
e a director of and repayable
the Company on demand
EAB—REENRE BIKR - RERREREK
BE
EEEARERIRARAT  Controlled by a director of  Unsecured, interest-free (8,737) -

the Company

and repayable

on demand
MAAT—LEEES  ERR SEREBER
g
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 48. AEE

Apart from as disclosed in elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group did not have any other
significant contingent liabilities at 30 September 2022 (2021:
Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 25 November 2022, Shanghai Senchou has completed the
acquisition of certain machinery with price of RMB24,270,000
from an independent third party vendor included in the
contracts signed with the vendor on 29 March 2022 and 3
August 2022 as announced on respective dates. Deposits for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment of RMB7,289,000
(equivalent to HK$8,391,000) as at 30 September 2022 are
utilised on that date. Details of the acquisition of machinery are
disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 29 March
2022 and 3 August 2022.

GLOBAL STRATEGIC GROUP LIMITED IREKEBE EEE B[R A F

49.

MBZE AN RREMEDFIRE
B R B _HEANB=+H &&
Bl EATEMEAHAGE (T
——F i\

HEMRER

RIE-_F+—BZ+HH> LE/HK
ETHEBYE = A HERUREE
AE#24,270,000c BB T 183 > %
REHFNEAHERN _S - _F=7
_‘f’j_LEEZ_v__E/\H ElEE_L
TR BEAMHEN - N
FEANB=Z1TH RBYUWE BERR
H2ime AR7,289,00070 (FBER
8,391,000 70) I\ & HESE A - IREEHE
BHNEBRARAHBEAZZT =
=B+ ABERZZE_"_F)N\B=H
BAEHE-
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Five-Year Financial Summary

The following is a summary of the consolidated results and the
assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the

last five financial years.

UTRAEERBELEAMBEEZAEE
BREE -BERIFEREDHRE-

RESULTS e
Nine months
ended Year ended
Year ended 30 September 30 September 31 December
BHE HE
NB=+E +ZR=1+-H
HEABZ=THILEE IEAfER IHFE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ZEICE “E-F “EI%E “Z-0E “2-\#
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn FEL TAL FER FEL
Revenue Wi 136,241 71,486 42,734 35,925 108,716
Profit/(loss) before tax BIRETER,/ (F18)
~ from continuing operations - REFECEEH 14,131 (23,410) (295,167) (68,643) (84,884)
~ from discontinued operations ~-REBALTEEE - - (7,345) - (5,520)
Income tax (expense)/credit el (B /R (3,450) 643 28,349 4,981 1,973
Profit/(loss) for the year EREH/ (58) 10,681 (22,767) (274,163) (63,662) (88,431)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: UTALEEER (B8 /57
Owners of the Company EREEBA (15,504) (20,982) (101,836) (31,585) (70,595)
Non-controlling interests FERER 26,185 (1,785) (172,327) (32,077) (17,836)
10,681 (22,767) (274,169) (63,662) (88,431)
Loss per share ERER
Basic (in HK cents) EX (BREW) (3.40) (16.20) (110.89) (40.71) (98.92)
Diluted (in HK cents) &% (BRAEN) (3.40) (15.20) (110.89) (42.65) (98.92)
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(= E5) (55 (#ZE5)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEHAR
As at
As at 30 September 31 December
®+ZA
BhB=+H =1+-H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
k- St “ET-F -5 “Z-0E “2-\f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FEL FAL FET FAEL
Total assets HEER 239,857 245,243 225,668 495,321 553,917
Total liabilities HeRE (157,520) (172,611) (191,921) (217,538) (196,502)
Net assets BEIE 82,337 72,632 33,747 277,783 357,415

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 F#R
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